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s E
Financial Highlights

TRARNEEBESEMKFEE 4L - EE - B The following tables are summaries of the Group’s results, assets,

BERERBTE liabilities and equity for the past five financial years:
BZ12831HLEE
Year ended 31 December
2012 20114 20104 2009 F 2008
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
ARETT ARETTL AREBTTL ARETTT AREBFTL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HEKA Revenue 538,335 481,402 396,298 615,391 777,807
Hep: Where:
MLCC ¥£7% MLCC business 414,143 357,274 396,298 300,289 232,646
BEFRIEE Sale of mobile phones
(FizE1) (Note 1) - - - 315,102 545,161
BEFRES Trading of mobile phones
(FizE2) (Note 2) 112,993 124,128 - - -
BHER Battery business 11,199 - - - -
HERAK Cost of sales (473,998) (417,333) (308,350) (529,227) (679,592
el Gross profit 64,337 64,069 87,948 86,164 98,215
FE(ER)/FE (Loss)/profit for the year (8,159) 14,556 33,955 19,703 11,317
PATR A& attributable to:
— RRRRERBA — Equity holders of
the Company (8,159) 14,556 33,955 19,703 11,317
BREK(EE)/BH Basic (loss)/earnings per share  (2.0) 1L cents 3.61licents 8.4{licents 491l cents 2.81licents
W12B318
As at 31 December
20125 20114 20104 20094 2008
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
ARETR ARETT ARETTT ARETT ARBTT
Assets and liabilities RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEE Total assets 792,177 833,461 662,375 600,239 677,357
BEE Total liabilities 346,487 389,066 225,105 190,144 288,694
aEn Total equity 445,690 444,395 437,270 410,095 388,663
MTALTRE attributable to:
— RRARRERBA — Equity holders of
the Company 445,690 444,395 437,270 410,095 388,663
5T - Notes:

The manufacturing and sale of Eton brand mobile phones and mobile
phone components segment of the Group was discontinued upon the
pass of the ordinary resolution to dispose of its entire equity interest in
Eycom Technology Co., Limited at the EGM held on 14 October, 2009.

() FAEEBHFAREREEERARTFEREY (O
FHTHH M2 RFE2009410 A 14 H EBITH K
RERAE ERBHEENRITEANZER
NAN BB T BRBRR R -

In August 2011, the Company set up the new mobile phones trading
business which engages in purchase of mobile phones from third party
suppliers and sales to overseas customers.

Q)  R201MF8A  AATRIFHLBHFRES XY O
IZNEEE=THERBEERH TR IR
HEEHEBBFH

On 12 November 2012, the Group acquired the business of
manufacture and sale of battery.

@ R20NENMARE AEEKESsRERY O
ECK
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liao Jie (resigned on 18 September 2013)
Mr. Xu Chuncheng (retired on 18 September 2013)

Mr. Jing Wenping (appointed on 7 May 2013)

Mr. Wang Ye (appointed on 18 September 2013)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Shuang Mei (resigned on 25 January 2013)

Mr. Chen Hao
Mr. Cheng Wusheng
Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

Mr. Liang Rong (appointed on 7 May 2013)

Mr. Mak Ka Wing (@ppointed on 18 September 2013)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman)
Mr. Pan Wei
Mr. Liu Huanbin

Mr. Liang Rong (appointed on 4 November 2013)
Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (@ppointed on 4 November 2013)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Weirong

Ms. Shuang Mei (resigned on 25 January 2013)

Mr. Pan Wei
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman)
Mr. Chen Weirong
Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

2012F F 3R
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Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands

MMEERETETRE R

BB EEFE 2265
BEMERL20BAE

PR EEERBE

R BRI R L &
I RMEREILE
BAIL SR B
EERE3W
FBAE

REAK

BRIBERSELE
REBREE

NRIWE
2EBIEECPA

FERDBFELE

Appleby Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
PO Box 2681,

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

unit A, 20/F., Po Wah Commercial Centre
226 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

EYANG Building

No. 3 Qimin Street

No. 2 Langshan Road, North Area
Hi-tech Industrial Park

Nanshan District

Shenzhen, the PRC

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chen Weirong
Mr. Leung Wai Chung

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Chung CcPA

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Appleby Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands
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B
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SEANER183%

BB L17E 1712165748

FEEREBIT
B AR ERTT
BrEReT
RINF L2 IRTT
BELBELRT
BEERITERAF
B A R R
B EREET
FEeRBER
Conyers Dill & Pearman

¥ B

RS R EBHARAR
HERHE

IR KSR

00117
DA AL

http://www.szeyang.com

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
China Construction Bank
China Merchants Bank
Shenzhen Ping An Bank

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Hang Seng Bank Limited

PRC LAWYER

Win & Sun Law Firm

AS TO CAYMAN ISLANDS LAW
Conyers Dill & Pearman

AUDITOR

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

STOCK CODE

00117

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.szeyang.com
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Directors’ and Senior Management Profile

HITES

PRIZEEELE 555 ARRAMITEERESTE
& TR, - BEDEEE  RERERER -
BRACETERNEENAINA - R 1982F B ENEE
BAISKROABEREIANS) RIEIRE28 L
By BEE  RNI9R2FRALERBRN—REE
EFHEEREERSHARREEERNDAER
NEEERME - N1994% - BREL BT BEE
EENEFELIPE T 200146 o 1996 F » R
BIRNEETFLER] R1997FEREH
[H— | 8HiEE - YR 1998 FRELAFENELH
ARRERGEBZEGRE - BRELEHE2001F
MA—BEEAREEEE -

WX FRE325% M2013F5A7HERZTA
RRABMITES - AL LB T ARNEBMLCCE
XMEBIRLE  BEXRASEMICCERER -
BIERAE - MY EESIRE o UL AR 2005F
EENBETRIFAE BEBENMALER R
20084F2 A S BMLCCEEFRMAERBIME
2009F 4 ARERAEE - R2012F1AEFMA
REB - BAER2013F5 ABZ T AR R B
WITEE o

* EHRES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Weirong (BR & 48), aged 55, is an Executive Director and
Chairman of the Board, as well as Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He is in charge of the corporate strategy, planning and
overall development. He is also the founder of the Group. Mr. Chen
graduated from # g T 2 p7 (South China Institute of Technology*,
now known as #F3E T K&, South China University of Technology*) in
1982 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Upon graduation, Mr.
Chen started his career as a technician in BEEE B KM BER Q7
(Konka Group Company Limited*) in 1982, a major consumer
electronics manufacturing and distribution enterprise in the PRC, and
became its managing director in 1994 until 2001. In 1996, Mr. Chen
was elected as "Outstanding Young Entrepreneur of Shenzhen”, in
1997, he was awarded the “National May 1st’ Labour Medal” (&
[A— ] %8)EEE) and in 1998, he was elected as a representative in
the Standing Committee of the 9th National People’s Congress. Mr.
Chen has been the Chairman of the Group since November 2001.

Mr. Jing Wenping (83 ), aged 32, is an executive Director of the
Company appointed on 7 May 2013. Mr. Jing is the deputy general
manager of MLCC division of the Group. He is in charge of the
Group’s MLCC product management, including development, quality
and production. Following his graduation from & F & & A £
(University of Electronic Science and Technology of China*) in 2005,
Mr. Jing started his career in the Group and was promoted to the
deputy factory director of the MLCC Production Centre in February
2008. He left the Group in April 2009, but rejoined later on in January
2012. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
May 2013.

* For identification purpose only
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FHES AL - A75% 0 1989 F E 275 S B E 1l hb
HER (R IANMKMBAZ)LERER(LER
¥ - 2008 FMISHF BV LBIERNEBEE BT
H EAFE A MBATE T 2247 o 1989 & 1999 “E stk T
EACEL  FAMBHRER AR TRAD - &
R 200022004 F BN EEEERDBR A
7l T1BEFEENRR A G RIS IEAIE © 2004 F
E25RBRNRIFGRIEERERAR  FEE
EREE  HERLBLEE - BIZ8eFHE
FRIF AR A AIMRKEIE - THAER2013F9 A
ZIARARRITES -

FHITES

MRS A - A8F% AN ARIMIERITES - [RIAE
MNI1989 FE R NERIE T KB (RFEPREAKR
B) . BSstEMetL s - s 8RR EAR
BBI16F R L8 o BRI AR 1992F N A B8 &
B R AEKRA(LE) RRNAIRAKE
IR AN A SR EEREKHNT -
B SE A A 2001 FEBI LB B IR E AR AT © EILIE
TRERE  BAZARINES  AEZLARE
BIEB) AR BE I B K 155 58 o PR ST A R EF IR B
EEREARHEESE B BERMBMNER
A7) (NASDAQ:SPRD) K & I Bt B IR A 7 (4966.
TWO) » b RN Z B E R RETEE B - B
2007 F4 AEZXBARBIMIERITES -

* EHRES

Mr. Wang Ye (E &), aged 47, and graduated from the Department of
Chemistry of m 2 B% % £ 17 & &8 £ Bt (Nanchang Technology and
Education College*) (now known as ;T 78 & £ b # K 22 (Jiangxi
Science & Technology Normal University*) with a degree in Applied
Chemistry in 1989. He obtained a postgraduate degree and a
master’'s degree in MBA from & & Bf 48 I /& K & (the College of
Management of Zhongnan University of Economics and Law*) in
2008. From 1989 to 1999, he served on jT P& £ Z % (the Provincial
Economic and Trade Commission in Jiangxi*), where he was
appointed as engineer and director in a printed circuit company
under the Commission. From 2000 to 2004, he was the MD Manager
of B REENRIRAGR A A (Boluo Konka Printed Board Co., Ltd.*),
a member of FE £ & B & {5 B R 2 7] ("Konka Group Co., Ltd*").
Since 2004, he has been serving Il F 5 Bl 2 & H R 2 7
(Shenzhen Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd.*) as production
factory manager and chief manager of the manufacturing centre.
Currently, he is the general manager of Z#H & FBEFRIFEBRA
A (Anhui Jineyang Electronic Technology Co., Ltd*). Mr. Wang was
appointed as an executive director of the Company in September
2013.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Hao (B&>#%), aged 48, is a Non-executive Director of the Company.
Mr. Chen graduated from ZEAR 12 T K& (Huazhong University of Science
and Technology*, now known as /R £H% K22 with a bachelor’s degree
in computer science in 1989. He has over 16 years of experience in the
information technology industry. Mr. Chen joined Legend Group in 1992. He
was the founder and the general manager of Legend Advanced
System Ltd. During his tenure, he was responsible for strategic
management and business implementation. Mr. Chen founded
Legend Capital, a venture capital firm, in 2001, and has served as
head of investment ever since. He is currently a director of the
company, responsible for overall control and coordination of
investment activities. Mr. Chan is also a director of a number of
information technology companies, including Spreadtrust
Communications, Inc. (NASDAQ: SPRD) and Parade Technologies Ltd.
(4966.TWO). He also serves as a director in a number of investment
companies. He was appointed as a Non-executive Director of the
Company in April 2007.

* For identification purpose only
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BRESLE 4658 RNARIFERITES - B%EAE
R1990F 10 BE 1996 F 6 AETRESERHDE
BARMERHLERRAREEFERAFAE
s BEHEENREERER  RABS QAR
NTHESEEEERAANES - BEEFEB
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RNATRIPRHE o R 2007 F4 AEERERARAT
BIEMITES -

REMIAAE 6355 NRABIERITEE - sRALE
R1981E2 AE1985FE 11 AE HIBHEHERAE
SEMENEERERE - R 1985F 12 AE 1994 F 1
AELSHEREEBRBREFHEHE  BEERK
BRMANERER - RAEBALEBERBE

RAR . EBEGHEBEAERRAR - LEERS
BEEARARF LERERBEREBERAARL
FEBEREEVRYGMNES U ERARHA
BIFEENTA] - R 2007 F4 R ELZEAARNRQRIE
HITES -

BAKHTES

BEERE SRR ARBVELIFRITES - BT
AP 1982 5 B R AL Uil # B B (R 4 mBHR
RE)  BRSYRBELEM - b RIR1987 &
R1I9NFRELEABRETIREELRIELE
- BRIRBEABMHMBRTREAHE - &
FEBRMANMES  IERMRALRHERE B85
EERAF - BREENE - BRI REER
Hip BEHEM KL o MR 2007 F4 A ERERA
NEVEILIERITES -

* EHRES

Mr. Cheng Wusheng (125 4 ), aged 46, is a Non-executive Director
of the Company. He was regional manager of Konka Group Company.
Limited and deputy general manager of Bk 8 £ £ F & R A A
(Shaanxi Konka Electronic Co., Ltd.*) from October 1990 to June
1996, responsible for product sales and promotion. Mr. Cheng is
currently the director of R Th &R £ B 2% B R A 7 (Shenzhen
Nanhua Yaxing Industrial Co., Ltd.*) which is a trading company. He
has shareholding interests in the Company through his wholly-
owned company WU SHENG Management Limited. He was appointed
as a Non-executive Director of the Company in April 2007.

Mr. Zhang Zhilin (38 5#K), aged 63, is a Non-executive Director of the
Company. He was the factory director of /8 H R = A& E# A5
i m F% & $ B (Shanghai Pudong Heging Town Xiangyang Village
Xiangyang Electroplating Factory*) from February 1981 to November
1985 and was also the factory director of /& MR EZ B BE MR

(Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory*) from December 1985 to
January 1994. As a factory director, he was responsible for
production operation and human resource management. Mr. Zhang
is currently the director of _E/8ZE E) & % F R A & (Shanghai Huali
Packing Co., Ltd.*), E/8EGiEEIERBR QA (Shanghai Meiyang
Precision Moulding Co., Ltd.*), & &[5 & % & R A 7] (Shanghai

(Shanghai Taihui LCD Co., Ltd.*), and E /8B R EE B B & B W
(Shanghai Pudong Meiling Plastics Factory*), all of which are
manufacturing companies. He was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company in April 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pan Wei (;&1&), aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. Pan graduated from Jt 5 88 £2f5 (Beijing Institute
of Steel*, now known as 1t & %} # K 2, University of Science and
Technology Beijing*) with a bachelor’s degree in physical chemistry in
1982. He obtained a master’s degree in engineering and doctoral
degree in engineering from Nagoya University in 1987 and 1990
respectively. He is currently a professor in the Department of
Materials Science and Engineering, Tsinghua University. Mr. Pan
specialises in material science, engineering research and educational
projects, including thermal barrier materials, transparent ceramic
materials, nano materials and devices and other conductive ceramic
materials. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in April 2007.

* For identification purpose only
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T REHEHE - 2007 F4 AEZEARETAT
BN IEITESE -

* EHRES

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (4 f27=), aged 49, is the Company’s independent
non-executive Director since April 2007. He is also the chairman of the audit
committee of the Board. Mr. Chu has over 20 years of experience in
corporate finance, audit, accounting and taxation. Mr. Chu is an
executive director of Chinese People Holdings Company Limited (7
R = & & B 2 7)) (stock code: 681) and an independent non-
executive director of China Vehicle Components Technology
Holdings Limited (# B & & £ 20 £+ & & B R A 7]) (stock code:
01269), Huayu Expressway Group Limited (EESRERB AR A 7))
(stock code: 01823), Flyke International Holdings Limited (7 7 B B
= §& B IR A 7)) (stock code: 01998) and China AU Group Holdings
Limited (f Bl & & & B #% ik A R 2 7)) (stock code: 8176) and
Telecom Service One Holdings Limited (2 1l & BHZ % B R 2 7))
(stock code: 8145). During the period from September 2005 to March
2007 Mr. Chu was the executive director of Mastermind Capital
Limited (223 & B R A 7)) (stock code: 905) which was known as
Haywood Investments Limited during the relevant period. Mr. Chu
was an independent non-executive director of Substainable Forest
Limited (5 4 #8 2 12 Bx B BR 2 7l) (formerly known as Bright
Prosperous Holdings Limited (& &1 AR A 7)) (stock code: 723)
from January 2008 to August 2010. Mr. Chu served at Sun Century
Group Limited (X 5t 42 & E /5 IR 2 &) (formerly known as Hong
Long Holdings Limited) (M&F£#% /% PR 22 7)) (stock code: 1383) as a
company secretary during the period from 2008 to 2010, All of the
aforementioned companies are companies listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chu graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Master Degree in Business Administration. Mr.
Chu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
Mr. Chu is also an associate member of both the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Company Secretaries.

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Z2I%#), aged 72, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from ZEg T2z (South
China Institute of Technology*, now known as ¥ 38 T A2, South
China University of Technology*) in 1965 with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering. He holds professorship in chemical engineering in &g
I T K £ (South China University of Technology*), and was later
promoted to the principal of the university for the tenure from May
1995 to September 2003. In 2001, Mr. Liu was awarded as a foreign
academician by Academy of Engineering of Russia. He is currently a
professor in the South China University of Technology. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in April 2007.

* For identification purpose only
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* EHRES

Mr. Liang Rong (2 £8), aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company appointed on 7 May 2013. Mr. Liang
attained his master’s degree in science from & BEIRIE2Bz 3¢ T ATHF
FTFT (the Institute of Optics and Electronics of Chinese Academy of
Sciences*) when he graduated in 1989. As the executive vice
president and director cum president of EEE £ B KM AR A 7
(Konka Group Co., Ltd.*) previously, Mr. Liang has served as the
director and general manager of J® I T MERIBERI K AR A 7
(Shenzhen Vcall Communications & Technology Ltd.*) (formerly )&l
W # BB 12 BB B BR 2 Al (Shenzhen Weike Communications
Technology Co., Ltd*)and F I T EHEEZBERE B R QA A
(Shenzhen Furuide Communication Technology Co., Ltd.*)) since
2003. He has been the director of Zhong Shan City Richsound
Electronic Industrial Ltd.* since 2010. Mr. Liang was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in May 2013.

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (“Mr. Mak"), aged 50, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director with effect 15 January
2009. He is a registered solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong and
Managing Partner of Patrick Mak & Tse, Solicitors. Mr. Mak has over
10 years' legal experience as a practising solicitor. He was awarded
the Common Professional Examination Certificate in Laws by the
University of Hong Kong in 1995 and was awarded his Postgraduate
Certificate in Laws (P.C.LL) by the University of Hong Kong in 1998.
Mr. Mak worked in Dublin, Ireland with Messrs. Donald T. McAuliffe &
Co., Solicitors of Ireland from 1990 to 1991 and worked in London,
England with Messrs. Sparrow & Trieu, Solicitors from 1991 to 1992.

Mr. Mak is currently a director of Asia Green Agriculture Corporation
which was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada, USA.
He is also an independent non-executive director of FU JI Food and
Catering Services Holdings Limited (stock code: 1175) and EYANG
Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (stock code: 117).

Mr. Mak was an independent non-executive director of Sinogreen
Energy International Group Limited (stock code: 1159) from 22 April
2010 to 31 August 2013, independent non-executive director and
non-executive director of China Kingston Mining Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1380) for the period from 6 February 2013 to 16 April
2013 and from 17 April 2013 to 13 June 2013 respectively.

* For identification purpose only
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I hereby present the annual financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012 on behalf of the Board of the
Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2012, the global economy was still on the basic trend of slow
recovery in the aftermath of European sovereign debt crisis, and
there was no strong rebound of global demand for electronic
products. As a cyclical industry, the digital product sector was
plagued by the problem of overcapacity. MLCC, the main business of
the Group, which is situated in the upstream of the electronic
products sector, experienced an even more complicated business
environment and intensified competition, in particular in terms of
price competition. These factors, coupled with the increase in costs
caused by the surging price of raw materials, utilities and staff
salaries, resulted in a drop in the gross profit of MLCC business
despite the significant growth of the operating income.

For the Group’s mobile phone trading business, in view of the
shrinking sales volume, decrease in gross profit, limited management
resources and other factors emerged in 2012, the Board decided to
close down the businesses, and carried out the voluntary winding-up
process in respect of the company operating the business in June
2013.

The battery business acquired by the Group in 2012 saw sluggish
performance and recorded a loss due to various factors such as
changing market conditions and industry regulations. Given that the
business would not bring any foreseeable and reasonable returns to
the Group under the current business environment and regulatory
requirements, the Board decided to sell the business to the original
vendor in November 2013.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The Group recorded an operating income of RMB538.3 million,
representing an increase of RMB56.9 million, or 11.8% as compared
t0 2011; and a gross profit of RMB64.3 million, an increase of RMB0.3
million, or 0.4% as compared to 2011; of which, the operating income
from MLCC amounted to RMB414.1 million, representing an increase
of 15.9% over 2011, although its gross profit recorded a decrease of
1.3%.

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company in 2012 amounted
to RMB8.2 million. Profit after tax attributable to shareholders of the
Company in 2011 amounted to RMB14.6 million. Loss per share was
RMB2.0 cent while the earnings per share in 2011 were RMB3.6
cents.
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DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of final cash dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

OUTLOOK

The world economy is still on the rocky road to recovery, and MLCC,
an upstream business of electronic and digital products, still faces
the market environment with a slowdown in demand and an
intensified competition. However, the rapid development of
innovative terminal products, such as smart devices and tablet
computers, as well as the Internet across the globe has brought new
opportunities to the Company. We offer up-to-date solutions for the
development of customers’ products, which not only enhance the
quality of the products and services, but also strengthen the
supporting sales capability of such products, making us the strategic
supplier and provider of passive component solutions for many
customers. Meanwhile, leveraging on the advantage of our strong
R&D capabilities, the Company is committed to improving its market
competitiveness through various measures including continuous
innovation in high-tech products, productivity enhancement and cost
reduction.

APPRECIATION

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank all of our customers
and shareholders for their continuing support, our directors for their
guidance and insights, as well as our staff for their dedication and
efforts.

Chen Weirong
Chairman

16 July 2014
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2012, the global economy was still under depression, and there
was no rebound of demand for electronic products. For this reason,
demand for MLCC products, which are located in the upstream of
the electronic industry, lost momentum to grow and competition
among the industry intensified. As a result, as of 31 December 2012,
the revenue of the Group increased by RMB56.9 million to RMB538.3
million, representing a growth of 11.8% as compared to that of 2011.
The gross profit increased by RMBO0.3 million to RMB64.3 million,
representing a rise of 0.4%. In particular, the sales revenue from
MLCC was RMB414.1 million, representing a growth of 15.9% over
that of 2011, but a decrease of 1.3% in gross profit margin. In 2012,
loss attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to
RMB8.2 million.

As part of the Group's effort to venture into the production and sale
of lead-acid batteries and benefit from the rapid emergence of the
renewable energy market on 25 September 2012, the Company
signed a sale and purchase agreement with related parties,
Shenzhen Eyang Investment Group Limited, Ms. Shuang Mei and Mr.
Liao Jie (as vendors) through Shenzhen Weichang New Energy Co.,
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, to purchase the entire
equity interest in Shenzhen Eyang Energy Company Limited. The
completion of the Acquisition took place on 12 November 2012.
However, after completion of the Acquisition, Shenzhen Eyang
Energy Company Limited recorded weak financial performance and
a loss in 2012. The business operation was also adversely affected
by certain external factors, such as the new rules and requirements
regulating enterprises engaged in the production of lead-acid
batteries issued by the PRC government authorities. The Board of
the Group has noted that such new regulations, which cover a
considerable range of stringent requirements may have unexpected
adverse impact on the business operations as well as the developing
opportunities for the newly acquired company. Given the fact that
the company is no longer capable of offering the Group relevant
opportunities, on 15 November 2013, Shenzhen Weichang New
Energy Co., Limited entered into the Share Disposal Agreement with
the original vendors, under which the original vendors agreed to
repurchase the entire equity interest in Shenzhen Eyang Energy
Company Limited from Shenzhen Weichang New Energy Co., Limited.
For details, please refer to the notice of extraordinary general
meeting of the Group dated 9 December 2013.
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REVENUE FROM PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The revenue of the Group’s business for 2012 increased by RMB56.9
million to RMB538.3 million, representing an 11.8% increase over that
of 2011; this was mainly due to the increase in revenue of the
Group’s MLCC business and the revenue generated by the battery
business acquired on 12 November 2012.

In particular, the revenue of the Group’s MLCC business was
RMB414.1 million, representing an increase of 15.9% over 2011. This
was mainly attributable to the reclamation and expansion of market
share as a result of adjustment in the Group’s marketing strategies
during the second half of 2012.

The revenue from the Group’s mobile phone trading business for
2012 was RMB113.0 million, representing a decrease of 9.0% over
that of 2011.

Revenue of the newly acquired battery business, which was
incorporated into the Group's statements for the year 2012 after the
date of acquisition, was RMB11.2 million.

Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit margin of the Group for 2012 was 12.0%,
representing a decrease of 1.3% as compared to that of 2011. This
was mainly due to the decline in the gross profit margin of MLCC.

The gross profit margin of the Group’s MLCC business for 2012 was
14.6%, representing a decrease of 1.3% as compared to 15.9% of
2011.

The gross profit margin of the Group’s mobile phone trading business
for 2012 was 3.4%, representing a decrease of 2.6% as compared to
6.0% of 2011.

The gross profit margin of the Group’s newly acquired battery
business for 2012 was -0.6%.

Other Revenue and Other Net Income

Other revenue and other net income of the Group for 2012 were
RMB13.8 million, representing an increase of RMB2.3 million as
compared to that of 2011. This was mainly benefited from the
increase of RMB1.0 million in government grants in 2012 as
compared with that of 2011, and the increase of RMB0.5 million in
rental revenue.
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Selling and Distribution Costs

The selling and distribution costs of the Group for 2012 were
RMB18.3 million, representing an increase of 39.3% over that of
2011. This was mainly due to the rise in operating costs associated
with the growth in MLCC sales revenue.

Management Costs

The management costs of the Group for 2012 were RMB38.0 million,
representing an increase of 40.1% over that of 2011. This was mainly
due to (i) the increase in the wages, welfare and social insurance for
the staff; (ii) the upward adjustment in rates and scope of certain
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries in the Mainland.

Research and Development Costs

The research and development costs of the Group for 2012 were
RMB7.7 million, representing an increase of 7.8% over that of 2011.
This was mainly due to the increased investment in new product
research and development.

Other Expenses

Other expenses of the Group for 2012 were RMB9.9 million,
representing an increase of 298.6% over that of 2011. This was
mainly due to the increase in provision for inventory falling price
reserves.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group for 2012 were RMB7.6 million,
representing a RMB1.3 million decrease over that of 2011. This was
mainly attributable to the greater focus on implementation of
appropriate financing strategies and effective control of finance
COSts.

Income Tax

Income tax of the Group for 2012 amounted to approximately
RMB8.3 million, representing an increase of RMB6.1 million over that
of 2011. This was mainly due to the increase in earnings of some of
the Group's subsidiaries.
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Gearing Ratio

The Group monitors its capital through gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by capital plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as the
sum of bank loans, trade and bills payables and other payables and
accruals (excluding deferred income, deposits from customers,
grants from PRC government and provision of warranty) less cash
and cash equivalent. Capital represents equity attributable to the
owners of the Company (excluding share capital). As at 31 December
2011 and 2012, the gearing ratio of the Group was approximately
34% and 40% respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The net book value as at 31 December 2012 was RMB277.4 million,
representing a decrease of RMB16.8 million from that of 2011. This
was mainly due to: (i) depreciation of approximately RMB31.7 million
with respect to the Group’s property, plant and equipment. (i) The
Group’s new MLCC production equipment and construction in
process valued at approximately RMB21.6 million.

Investment Properties

The Group’s investment properties for 2012 amounted to RMB26.6
million, representing an increase of RMBO0.3 million over 2011. This
was mainly due to the slight increase in property for lease.

Other Intangible Assets

The other intangible assets of the Group for 2012 amounted to
RMB1.0 million, representing a decrease of RMB0.2 million when
compared to that of 2011. This was mainly due to the amortisation of
intangible assets associated with the Group’s SAP management
software.

Trade and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2012, the net book values of trade and bills
receivables were RMB221.9 million, representing an increase of
RMB65.2 million from that of 2011. This was mainly due to the
increase in trade receivables as a result of the MLCC revenue
growth, and trade receivables from the newly acquired battery
business.
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Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

As at 31 December 2012, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of the Group were RMB32.1 million, representing an
increase of RMB7.8 million from that of 2011, primarily due to an
increase in indemnification asset receivables for Energy’s original
shareholders.

Cash and Bank Balances and Pledged Bank
Deposits

As at 31 December 2012, cash and bank balances and pledged bank
deposits of the Group were RMB88.7 million, representing a decrease
of RMB103.0 million compared to that of 2011. This was mainly due
to the issuance of letter of credits and a decrease in bills receivables
as well as pledged bank deposits.

Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2012, the balance of the Group’s trade and bills
payables was increased by approximately RMB50.0 million from that
at the end of 2011, while the balance of bills payables increased by
RMB1.4 million. It was mainly due to: (i) the fact that the credit term
granted by the Group’s suppliers to the Group was extended; (i) the
Group increased its monthly purchase; (iii) the increase in bills
payables was due to the fact that the Group issued bank acceptance
bills to suppliers who opt to settle in the form of bills.

Deferred Income, Accruals and Other Payables

As at 31 December 2012, deferred income, accruals and other
payables of the Group were RMB45.8 million, representing an
increase of RMB9.6 million from that of 2011. The increase in
deferred income, accruals and other payables was mainly due to the
corresponding increase in year end bonus, which led to an increase
of RMB2.3 million in staff remuneration payables at the end of the
year, the additional auditing costs of RMB1.5 million, after-sale
expenditures of RMB2.5 million incurred by the newly acquired
battery business, as well as the increase in other tax payable of
RMB9.8 million.

Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2012, outstanding bank loans of the Group
amounted to RMB144.6 million, representing a decrease of RMB117.0
million over that of 2011, which was mainly due to the fact that bank
loans increased as a result of capital needs generated by the major
purchase of MLCC production equipment in 2011, while there were
no such needs in 2012.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the capital commitments of the Group
were RMBO0.1 million, representing a decrease of RMB25.4 million
over that of 2011, which was mainly due to the decrease in new
outstanding contracts in 2012 after the execution of outstanding
contracts entered into in 2011, during which an increase in the
Group's equipment purchasing contracts was recorded as a result of
expansion in MLCC production.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Net Current Asset

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB125.5 million, including current assets of
RMB463.8 million and current liabilities of RMB338.3 million.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had aggregate banking facilities
of approximately RMB390.3 million, of which approximately
RMB244.5 million had not been utilized.

Foreign Currency Risk

In 2012, the Group's sales were mainly denominated in RMB, US
dollars and Hong Kong dollars, while its purchases were mainly
denominated in RMB, US dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Japanese
Yen. The trade receivables denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong
dollars were greater than the trade payables denominated in US
dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Meanwhile, the Group is exposed to
risks in respect of trade payables denominated in Japanese Yen, but
is basically not exposed to risks in respect of trade receivables
denominated in Japanese Yen. In the event of vigorous fluctuation of
the exchange rate, foreign currencies risk will exist to a certain
extent.

STAFF

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had a total of 1,119
staff, whose remunerations and benefits are determined based on
the market, state policies and individual performance.

18 FHER(EE)HER2LT o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED



A s S/ E
IEE I RMmE

Corporate Governance Report

NABEENR2012F181HE2012F3 A 31
HEMEACEE AT RTU(EERERT
A1) RTHA 2 2 B 48 B8 <7 Al i XX 7R 20124 4 A1
AE202FNANHHEERSEH AR S
BRARES ERAMNER14FTE B EE AT
([EEARTA DAz EBHEETANE - &
EeR2HA - EIESEECEEAEMS
2EERN L - AQFEET—HRF - LIRIE
BERNEERTE—PREARRDEERER

EE2ERARRCEETATRIELTE  RE
KRG REBEE2012F12A3MBILEERNDEZE
BTrEERERTHRCEEATE T
FrEg & R AN o

BExg
ESECHRRESAER

EECRARAKET RSB BERGIFTREE
AEREERR UREBEAEERR -EFE
HAREEFATER  UBRRESSABES

NAXBLEMT2HEEMDM - e Bwlkz
FRIEERE -

R2012F12A31H  EEEH 108K E * B3
FRTES AL RTEENIRBIUIENTE
$ o

The Company has made every effort to apply all relevant code
provisions as stipulated in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“Code on CG") during the period from 1 January 2012 to 31
March 2012 and those of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited during the
period from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012. The Board fully
understands that a higher standard of corporate governance is the
common view shared by market participants. A review is underway
to further improve the Company’s corporate governance practice
pursuant to the tightened regulatory requirements.

The Board has assessed the corporate governance practices of the
Company and form an opinion that the Company has complied with
the Code on CG and the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2012, save for the exception as stated and explained
below.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board and Directors’
background

The Board is responsible for setting the Group's business objectives
and devising strategic plans and operation policies and overseeing
the Group's performance. The Board comprises people from
different sectors to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise,
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company's business operation.

As at 31 December 2012, there were 10 members in the Board

comprising 3 executive directors, 4 non-executive directors and 3
independent non-executive directors.
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The executive directors of the Board participate in the Group’s daily
operation and management, convey a clear picture of the direction,
business objectives and goals of the Company to the staff. They keep
track of the performance of the senior management with reference
to the pre-determined goals and objectives. The diverse backgrounds
of the non-executive directors enable the Board to look at matters
from different perspectives and provide a bigger scope for the
management to attain the target results. On the other hand, the
independence of the three independent non-executive directors
serves the purpose of check and balance so as to safeguard the
interests of shareholders as well as other stakeholders of the
Company. The chairman of the audit committee possesses the
necessary professional qualification and expertise in accounting and
financial management as stipulated in the Corporate Governance
Code.

During the year, directors’ training (CG Code A.6.5) was not arranged
due to the limited resources and manpower as well as the busy
schedules of the directors. Also the Company had not commenced
issuance of a monthly update on the Group's business performance
(CG Code C.1.2) as the finance department was pre-occupied with a
thorough review of the department operation and allocation of
manpower. The Board was in the process of identifying suitable
insurer to arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its directors (CG Code A.1.8). The Board understands
that compliance with the revised CG Code is the essence of lifting
the Company’s corporate governance standard to meet public’s
higher expectation and it would strive to meet the requirements of
the three provisions as soon as possible.

The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 6 to 10
of this annual report. The composition of the Board and the
Committees of the Board as at the date of this report is given below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman) (Chief Executive Officer and

member of Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee)
Mr. Jing Wenping
Mr. Wang Ye

Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Zhang Zhilin
Mr. Chen Hao
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Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus (Chairman of Audit Committee and
member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Huanbin (Chairman of both Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee and member of Audit Committee)

Mr. Pan Wei (member of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Ccommittee)

Mr. Liang Rong (member of Audit Committee)

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (member of Audit Committee)

On 25 January 2013, Ms. Shuang Mei resigned as a non-executive
director and a member of Remuneration Committee so as to devote
more time to her own business, Mr. Jing Wenping and Mr. Liang Rong
were appointed by the Board on 7 May 2013 as an executive director
and independent non-executive director of the Company
respectively. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
18 September 2013, Mr. Xu Chuncheng retired from the Board and
resigned from the post of chief financial officer and Mr. Liao lie also
resigned as an executive director. On the same date, the
appointment of Mr. Wang Ye and Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick as an
executive director and independent non-executive director
respectively was approved by shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting. On 8 February 2014, the Board appointed
Mr. Ruan Ren Zhong as the new chief financial officer to head the
finance department.

There is no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among the directors. The Company has received from
each of the independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Nomination Committee has assessed the independence
of all the independent non-executive directors and the Board is
satisfied with their independence.

Responsibilities

The directors of the Board, appointed by shareholders of the
Company in the general meeting, are entrusted with the duties
including setting the business objectives of the Group, devising
strategic plans for the development of the Group’s business,
monitoring the execution of the plans and assessing the
effectiveness and efficiency of the Company’s operation in attaining
the goals. The Board believes that clear and coherent corporate
values and standards can facilitate the management’s fiduciary
duties of safeguarding the interests of the Company’s stakeholders
and creating values for the Company. Therefore the Board has put
considerable efforts on ensuring that the management as well as the
staff share the same values and standards. The Board is also
responsible for business activities like acquisition and disposal
transactions, connected transactions, investments and capital
expenditures and discuss the related issues thoroughly.
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The Board delegates the duties of daily operation and execution of
business plans to the Chief Executive Officer and senior
management under the Board’s close supervision and constant
monitoring. The Board also carries out periodic appraisal on the
performance of the management and achievements of the preset
business goals.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

The articles of association of the Company, of which a copy has
been posted on websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited respectively, clearly lay out the proper
procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal of
directors. It also requires that at least one-third of the directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years, which coheres with the requirements set out in the Corporate
Governance Code of the Listing Rules with respect to the
appointments of directors of a listed issuer. A retiring director shall
be eligible for re-election at the annual general meeting. Besides, any
new director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the
following general meeting. All non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company have been
appointed for a term of three years from the date of their
appointments. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the composition of the Board from time to time and
making recommendations to the Board with respect to enhancing
expertise, knowledge and experience of the Board members in
formulating the set of directives on running the business of the
Group.

Board Committees

The Board established three Board committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees are established with defined written
terms of reference which are available to shareholders on the
website of the Company and Hong Kong Stock Exchange. All Board
committees reported to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations made.

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Chu Kin Wang,
Peleus (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Liu
Huanbin.
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The principal duties of the Audit Committee were to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (ii) review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; and
(iii) review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

During the year ended 31 December 2012 the Audit Committee met
twice and reviewed the financial results and reports, financial
reporting and compliance procedures, report of the Company’s
internal control and risk management review and the re-appointment
of the external auditors. The Committee had not taken a different
view from that of the Board regarding the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. The Group’s annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2012 had been discussed,
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2012, the Remuneration Committee comprised 5
members, namely, Mr. Liu Huanbin, Mr. Pan Wei and Mr. Chu Kin
Wang, Peleus, being independent non-executive directors. Ms.
Shuang Mei, being non-executive director, and Mr. Chen Weirong,
being executive director. Mr. Liu Huanbin was the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The principal objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policies and structure and remuneration packages of the directors
and senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures to devise such
remuneration policy and structure that no director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration
packages.

The Remuneration Committee adopts the approach of making
recommendation to the Board on the compensation packages of the
directors and senior management with reference to the skill,
knowledge, experience and the tasks assigned and individuals’
performance and overall results of the Company. In determining the
remuneration package, the Remuneration Committee also obtain
reports, surveys and relevant information from external sources for
the competitive level of remuneration and market trend for the
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
forms an opinion that the current directors’ fees for the directors and
remuneration for the senior management for their duties and
responsibilities undertaken were commensurate with the market
level.
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Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2012, the Nomination Committee comprised 3
members, namely, Mr. Liu Huanbin and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus,
being independent non-executive directors and Mr. Chen Weirong,
being executive director. Mr. Liu Huanbin was the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee’s major principal are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors according to the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee reviews the composition of the Board
whenever necessary to meet the business demands, opportunities
and challenges and to comply with the laws and regulations. The
Nomination Committee will select and evaluate the balance of skills,
qualification, knowledge and experience of the candidate to the
directorship as may be required by the Company from time to time
by such means as the Company deems fit. The Nomination
Committee shall consider the candidate from a wide range of
backgrounds, on his/her merits and against objective criteria set out
by the Board and taking into consideration his/her time devoted to
the position and independence as independent non-executive
directors.

Newly appointed directors would be provided with an induction so
as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Group and full awareness of
directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and
time commitments of such individual, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
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EEnE
Name of Directors

PRIZEEE A

Mr. Chen Weirong
Eigt

Ms. Shuang Mei
BEfE

Mr. Liao lJie

TREBIRL ST

Mr. Xu Chuncheng
BRALE

Mr. Cheng Wusheng
SREMEE

Mr. Zhang zhilin
PR o A

Mr. Chen Hao
EEEAE

Mr. Pan Wei

Bl k4

Mr. Liu Huanbin
RERFE

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Board Meeting

Regular board meetings are held for directors to discuss and
determine the strategies of the Group, monitor the execution of
plans, review the Group’s business performance and financial
reporting as well as all other material matters. Additional meetings
were held when significant events or important issues were required
to be discussed and resolved. Notice of the Board meeting is given
at least 14 days in advance to all directors, and the agenda or all
related document are prepared and dispatched to all directors by the
company secretary at least 3 days before the meeting to ensure all
directors have sufficient information and relevant material when
preparing for the meetings. The company secretary is responsible for
preparing and keeping minutes of all board and committee meetings.
All directors have full access to the advice and services of the
company secretary to ensure that the Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed. Details of directors’
attendance at the meetings of the Board, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2012 are set out below:

HESBRHE
BZ2012F12A31ALFEE
Attendance/Number of meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2012

BEREEE FHEES REEES

BEEg Audit Remuneration  Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee

3/4 A3 A - -
N/A

3/4 A iE A - -
N/A

3/4 i A - -
N/A

3/4 TiEA - _
N/A

4/4 TiEA - _
N/A

3/4 TiEA - _
N/A

4/4 i A - _
N/A

4/4 2/2 - -

4/4 2/2 - -

4/4 2/2 - -
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code states that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Company does not
have a separate chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Chen
Weirong currently holds both positions. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in the
same person provides the Group with strong and consistent
leadership, allows for more effective planning and execution of long-
term business strategies and enhances the efficiency of decision-
making process in response to the changing environment.

The three independent non-executive directors provide the Board
with independent judgment and views from different perspectives
and ensure that the interests of concerned parties can be taken into
account and proper processes are followed to avoid possible conflict
of interests. The Board therefore believes that the Company already
has a strong corporate governance structure in place with adequate
check and balances. The Board will continue to review the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s corporate governance
structure and performance so as to assess whether any changes are
necessary in the future.

Model Code for Dealing In Securities by Directors

Code provision A5.4 of the CG Code stipulates that directors must
comply with their obligations under the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. In addition, the Board
should establish written guidelines on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in
the securities of the issuer.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
governing the directors’ dealing in the Company'’s securities. Specific
enquiry has been made of each director of the Board, all directors
confirm that they have fully complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for governing the securities transactions by employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012.

26 FHRER(EE)EGRLF o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED



RN
1TEE SRR

Corporate Governance Report

MBEBRERELE

B E

EARBEVBRERDT EESREERTH
BHEERE 2AmBE T KMERZERE TR
BN TE [ R A 5 B R R BT 2 RO DA B 3 4 K
BERE  ARARZERBERIEMBHEBEAEZER
FERE RGN EEQenIdREOEE
MRz @K - RABBREE 2 AE
HEEHE R b EESGEREHARASR
EEABRHKZEERE MV BREHHARER -
NS EE ST ARBERM BERRIEHL FBFE o

BEFECHAMREFRUARRBE2012F12 431
AIEFEMBHRRZEME -

ARRINEZBED L I I IMK 2 A MEAEE
BN ANFIRFR2EEISE 2B IZHBENRE -

B B 35 B

RESEAMEBHAERARNIEGERARR
FESAMBBRRERZERSG - FR - BHT
ARARSNEREE 2 BFHAARE27BET
HAMBAAMT

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Board, with the assistance by the Group’s Chief Financial Officer,
is responsible for overseeing the preparation of accounts for each
financial period with a view to ensuring such accounts give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow for that period. The Company'’s accounts are prepared
in accordance with all relevant statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards and the Board reviews those accounting
policies as selected and applied to ensure that appropriate judgment
and estimates be made in a prudent and reasonable manner. The
Board has received from the senior management of the Company
the management accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The statement about the reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the external auditors of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 42 to 45 of this annual
report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

CCIF CPA Limited are primarily responsible for providing audit
services in connection with the annual consolidated financial
statements of the Company. During the year, the total remuneration
payable to the Company’s external auditor amounted to RMB2.7
million, with breakdown as follows:

P AR 75 Bt ENEHR
Services rendered Fee paid/payable
ZE RIS ARE27TEETT
Audit services RMB2.7 million
IEZE RS 5
Non-audit services nil
et ARB27TEHETT
Total RMB2.7 million
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Internal Control

The principle underlying the code provision C.2.1 and C.2.2 of the CG
Code is that the Board should ensure that the issuer maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the issuer’s assets.

In view of the qualified opinion issued by Ernst & Young, the former
auditors of the Group, for the financial year ended 31 December
2011, the Audit Committee came to a conclusion that a thorough
review of the Group’s internal control was necessary and put forward
before the Board a proposal of engaging an external internal control
consultant to conduct an internal control review. The proposal was
concurred by the Board and Shinewing Risk Services Limited
(“Shinewing") was subsequently appointed in July 2012. A draft of an
interim review was issued by Shinewing in November 2012 with
focus on the operation of Hong Kong Weichang NER Co., Limited, the
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company carrying out the mobile
phone trading business, detailing its findings and proposed
improvements. By the end of the year, the mobile trading business
ceased to operate. The audit committee and the Board opined that
the review of internal control of the Group should be extended as an
ongoing process to the year 2013 to evaluate and identify the
shortcomings of the Group’s internal control system and implement
the corresponding remedial procedures.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s website remains the major communication platform
to provide its shareholders and potential investors with its up-to-date
information on the Company’s business activities and development.
The Company endeavours to abide by the practice of timely
disclosure of useful information with high degree of integrity so that
stakeholders of the Company can assess the performance of the
Company when making their business decisions.

The Company has adopted the policy of effective communication
with shareholders for promoting higher transparency of the
Company’s operation activities and greater investors’ understanding
of the Company's business. The Company’s website contains up-to-
date information on the Company’s business developments. The
practice of timely disclosures of information with high degree of
integrity is consistently observed to allow shareholders and any
other parties concerned to make judgment.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides an important
channel for shareholders to exchange ideas with the Board. Notices
and circulars regarding the annual general meeting and other
general meetings are given in well advance to ensure that
shareholders have sufficient time and information to prepare for the
meetings. During the general meetings, the directors of the Company
will answer questions and queries raised by the attending
shareholders and the Board believes that such face to face
interaction with shareholders can promotion mutual understanding
between the Company and shareholders. The Company embarks on
arranging as many members of the Board to attend the annual
general meeting as possible. For the annual general meeting held on
21 June 2012, all three executive directors, namely Mr. Chen
Weirong, Mr. Liao Jie and Mr. Xu Chuncheng, attended the meeting.
The rest of the Board were not able to attend the meeting as they
were engaged in either their business or personal schedules. The
Company will try to arrange at least a member of each board
committee to attend the annual general meeting in the future.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

During the year, directors’ training (CG Code A.6.5) was not arranged
due to the limited resources and manpower as well as the busy
schedules of the directors. Also the Company had not commenced
issuance of a monthly update on the Group's business performance
(CG Code C.1.2) as the finance department underwent a thorough
review of the department operation and allocation of manpower. The
Board was in the process of identifying suitable insurer to arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
directors. The company secretary of the Company has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the financial
year. No meeting for the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee was held during the year. The Board understands that
compliance with the revised CG Code is the essence of lifting the
Company’s corporate governance standard to meet public’s higher
expectation and the Board would strive to meet the requirements of
the CG Code as soon as Practicable.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 46.

No interim dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2012

was declared. The Board recommends no final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution as at 31 December
2012 amounted to approximately RMB424,303,000 (2011 as restated:
RMB429,117,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and fixed
assets of the Company are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 33 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and as of the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Weirong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liao Jie (resigned on 18 September 2013)

Mr. Xu Chuncheng (retired on 18 September 2013)

Mr. Jing Wenping (appointed on 7 May 2013)

Mr. Wang Ye (appointed on 18 September 2013)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Shuang Mei (resigned on 25 January 2013)
Mr. Chen Hao

Mr. Cheng Wusheng

Mr. Zhang Zhilin

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus

Mr. Pan Wei

Mr. Liu Huanbin

Mr. Liang Rong (appointed on 7 May 2013)

Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick (@ppointed on 18 September 2013)

Change of Composition of the Board

Ms. Shuang Mei resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect on 25 January 2013 so as to devote more time
to her personal business.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, one-third of
the directors for the time being should retire from office by rotation
at every annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Xu Chuncheng,
Mr. Liu Huanbin and Mr. Chu Kin Wang, Peleus retired from office by
rotation at the annual general meeting held on 18 September 2013.
Mr. Liu and Mr. Chu, being eligible, offered themselves at the annual
general meeting for re-election which was subsequently approved
by shareholders. Mr. Xu Chuncheng decided not to seek re-election
at the annual general meeting and retired from the Board as an
executive director effective at the conclusion of the meeting. Mr. Xu
also resigned from the post of chief financial officer of the Company
with the same effective date.
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During the year 2013, Mr. Jing Wenping and Mr. Liang Rong were
appointed as an executive director and independent non-executive
director respectively on 7 May 2013. Both of Mr. Jing and Mr. Liang
retired and were re-elected pursuant to the articles and association
of the Company at the annual general meeting. At the meeting, Mr.
Wang Ye and Mr. Mak Ka Wing, Patrick were also appointed as an
executive director and independent non-executive director of the
Company respectively.

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual written confirmation with respect to his
independence pursuant to Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules. So far as
the Company is aware, all Independent Non-executive Directors
have no interest in the Company’s shares, underlying shares and
contracts relating to any business of the Group. Hence, on the basis
of the confirmations set out in the independence confirmation, the
Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

Each Executive Director has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for a term of 3 years until termination by giving no less
than 3 months’ written notice to the other party or pursuant to the
terms of the agreement. Executive Directors are subject to the
retirement and rotation requirements in accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association.

Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors

All Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive
Directors have entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a term of 3 years. The appointment shall comply with the
retirement and rotation requirements in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, no director has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is expiring within one year
or determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation). The Company
has no service contract with the directors with a term of more than 3
years or not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s directors is determined
based on their respective terms of service agreement (if any). The
directors’ fee is reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee
and the board of directors is authorized by the shareholders at the
annual general meeting to approve the remuneration of the
directors. Details of remuneration paid and to be paid to the
Company'’s directors for the financial year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the connected transactions as stated in the report, no
contracts of significance relating to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principles and practices of corporate governance of the
Company are set out under the section of “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 19 to 29.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders of the
Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

The biographies of directors and senior management are set out on
page 6 to page 10 in the report.
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R2012FE12 8318 =1 ANl EFEMF At 31 December 2012, the directors’ interests and short positions in
BEAE(TERBLFNLAEEMN([EFHLEEE  the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
B BEXVE) 2B RAABRGD R HEEIRIESS  associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
LEAEIEGIE32EBEFE 2 &S LMPsiiEE £ Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded in the
MRS F AR ERETEESL HIZEST  register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
B ([{Z&~FR] ) EMERATREEBAX S otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
BRAF([BRAT]) 2= R B T Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

HEBTRSG
BAOB DL
EZEREE HEE Approximate
Number of ordinary shares Bfr & B percentage of
ERfER AT ER Number of total interests
EEHR Beneficial  Corporate underlying in the share
Name of Director Interests Interests shares in issue
BRiE A4 — 143,044,000 1,400,0007 144,444,000 35.62%
Mr. Chen Weirong
Eigt 424,000 18,000,000? 1,300,0007 19,724,000 4.86%
Ms. Shuang Mei
BEEE — 18,000,0009 1,300,0007 19,300,000 476%
Mr. Liao Jie
TREEH ST 25,000,000 3,299,000 2,000,0007 30,299,000 7.47%
Mr. Xu Chuncheng
BRESE — 16,174,000® — 16,174,000 3.99%
Mr. Cheng Wusheng
oK AT A& — 23,106,000 — 23,106,000 5.70%

Mr. Zhang Zhilin
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15 4L % 19 A WUSHENG Management Limited Pt %
o RRAESEBAZARDBEITRAREEZ
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i LB {5 A ZHILIN Management Limited FriE &
REMREEBBXLARIEBTRAREEZS
100% °
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Notes:

Save

Mr. Chen Weirong legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of
Eversharp Management Limited (“Eversharp”), which in turn legally
owned 36.71% of the issued share capital of EY SHINE Management
Limited (“EY Shine”). Mr. Chen Weirong also legally owned 53.15% of
the issued share capital of Everbright Management Limited
(“Everbright”) which in turn owned 19.40% of the issued share capital
of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owned 100% of EY Ocean Management
Limited (“EY Ocean”) which was interested in 143,044,000 shares of the
Company. For the purposes of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Chen Weirong
was deemed to be interested in all the shares held by EY Ocean.

Ms. Shuang Mei legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of
HEYANG Management Limited, which in turn legally owned 12.58% of
the issued share capital of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owns 100% of EY
Ocean. Ms. Shuang Mei therefore was indirectly interested in
approximately 18,000,000 shares.

Mr. Liao Jie legally owned 100% of the issued share capital of LJ
Management Limited, which in turn legally owned 12.58% of the issued
share capital of EY Shine. EY Shine legally owned 100% of EY Ocean.
Mr. Liao Jie therefore was indirectly interested in approximately
18,000,000 shares.

Mr. Xu Chuncheng legally owned 11.89% of the issued capital of
Everbright which in turn owns 19.40% of EY Shine, therefore Mr. Xu
was indirectly interested in approximately 3,299,000 shares of the
Company.

These shares were owned by WUSHENG Management Limited of which
Mr. Cheng Wusheng had 100% equity interest of the issued share
capital.

These shares were owned by ZHILIN Management Limited of which Mr.
Zhang zhilin had 100% equity interest of the issued share capital.

These represented interests in the share options granted under the
share option scheme adopted on 30 November 2007, further details of
the share option scheme are set out in the section “Share Option
Scheme” hereof.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the

directors nor the chief executives of the Company (including their
spouse and children under 18 years of age) had or was deemed to
have any interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).
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FERRERWELS SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

EANREEREEEMEE  HN2012F12 31  So far as the directors and management of the Company were

B RIEEERPEEMEIRIKREFENEE  aware, as at 31 December 2012, shareholders (other than the

MrEss  RAQE RO SEER IS AR directors and chief executive of the Company) who had an interest

KEMRE(RABEERSRITHAERSIN G or short position in the Company’s shares or underlying shares as

T recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:

BT

B A B4

BALE

g Approximate

BHEE percentage of
BERAE B aE Number of issued share
Name of Shareholder Notes shares held capital

BRIZE K4 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Mr. Chen Weirong

EY Ocean Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
EY SHINE Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Eversharp Management Limited 1 143,044,000 35.28%
Legend New-Tech Investment Limited 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Right Lane Limited 2 26,910,000 6.64%
B8 IR B RR A A 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Legend Holding Limited*

PERIERE B EELEBR AT 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Chinese Academy of Sciences Holdings Co., Ltd.*

GRERERARBISRS 2 26,910,000 6.64%
Employees’ Shareholding Society of Legend Holding Limited

HEQ Management Limited 3 20,795,000 5.13%
ZHILIN Management Limited 4 23,106,000 5.70%
IREESEE 5 28,299,000 6.98%

Mr. Xu Chuncheng
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1. % % KA | 2 143,044,000 B & 38 B% B EY Ocean
Management Limited ([EY Ocean)) Bz A © EY
Ocean J5EY Shine Management Limited ([EY
Shinel) 2 2 &t B A & - Eversharp Management
Limited (TEversharp]) Bz # & EY Shine B %17/
ANH36.71% %S - AEEY Shine B &R RERMN =5
Z — LA _E ° Eversharp A if % 4% & %k %5 EY Ocean
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2. Legend New-Tech Investment Limited ([ Legend
New-Tech]) & & # 5 48 A 7 26,910,000 A i 17 °
Legend New-Tech 71 &Right Lane Limited ([Right
Lanel) 22 EWB AT - BBIERBR AR EE
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4. ZRREzYES AT 23,106,000 BV 0 7%
NEIRARBBERITERREME LTS 100% °

5. &b & A K ¥ BEverbright B # 17 % A
11.89% - i Everbright BII# % EY Shine B 8 1TAE A&
1940%° AL BAEAEBEFEERARRAY
3,299,000 & 10 - A A M E AR A A A
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Notes:

1. These 143,044,000 ordinary shares in the Company were beneficially
owned by EY Ocean Management Limited (“"EY Ocean”). EY Ocean was
a wholly owned subsidiary of EY Shine Management Limited (“EY
Shine”). Eversharp Management Limited (“Eversharp”) was beneficially
interested in 36.71% of the issued capital of EY Shine, representing
more than one-third of voting shares in EY Shine. Eversharp was
therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares held by EY Ocean.
Mr. Chen Weirong, the executive director and chairman of the
Company, was beneficially interested in 100% of issued capital of
Eversharp.

2. Legend New-Tech Investment Limited (“Legend New-Tech”) was
beneficially interested in 26,910,000 shares of the Company. Legend
New-Tech was also a wholly-owned subsidiary of Right Lane Limited
("Right Lane”). B 78 ¥ i A R 2 &) (Legend Holding Limited*) legally
owned 50% of the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited and also
owned the remaining 50% of the issued share capital of Right Lane
Limited as a beneficiary of two trusts. Liu Chuanzhi was holding 25% of
the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for and on
behalf of Legend Holding Limited. Zhang Zuxiang was holding 25% of
the issued share capital of Right Lane Limited as a trustee for and on
behalf of Legend Holding Limited. F B B B L EL L H R A A
(Chinese Academy of Sciences Holdings Co., Ltd.*) beneficially owned
65% of the total issued shares of B #8142 %% R 22 &) (Legend Holding
Limited*) and Bt A8 AR B BR /A 7158 T#% A% & (Employees’ Shareholding
Society of Legend Holding Limited*) legally owned the remaining 35%
of the issued shares.

3. The company, which beneficially owned the 20,795,000 shares of the
Company, was 100% owned by a former director Mr. Li Hegiu who did
not seek re-election as a director of the Company and resigned from
his office upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 31 May 2010.

4. The company, which beneficially owned the 23,106,000 shares of the
Company, was 100% owned by Mr. Zhang Zhilin, a non-executive
director of the Company.

5. Mr. Xu Chuncheng legally owned 11.89% of the issued capital of
Everbright which in turn owns 19.40% of EY Shine, therefore Mr. Xu
was indirectly interested in approximately 3,299,000 shares of the
Company. Mr. Xu was also beneficially interested in 25,000,000 shares
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any
other person who had an interest or short position in the Company’s
shares or underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange and as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, or was otherwise a
substantial shareholder (as such term is defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Ssummaries of the share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
adopted by all shareholders of the Company on 30 November 2007
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the movement of options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2012 were as
follows:

R20125 R2012F
1818 12A318
AT REE REH il REH R AT
SRTEE  Outstanding AR AT RR M8 Outstanding
RERSRENERAER Exercise asat Granted  Exercised  Forfeited  Cancelled asat e
Name or category of eligible REAH price 1 January during during during during 31 December Exercise
participants Date of grant per share 2012  theperiod  theperiod the period  the period 2012 period
Bz
Directors
REREE 200818228 10527 1,400,000 - - - - 1,400,000 *
Mr. Chen Weirong 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
Rifat 200841 A 228 105257 1,300,000 - - - - 1,300,000 *
Ms. Shuang Mei 22 lanuary 2008 HK$1.052 *
BT 200841 A 228 10527 1,300,000 - - - - 1,300,000 *
Mr. Liao Jie 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
s 200818228 10557 2000000 - - - - 2,000,000 *
Mr. Xu Chuncheng 22 January 2008 HK$1.05 ¥
Nt 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Sub-total
BREEAR  EER
HtAERSEE (KE) 200818228 10527 11,200,000 - - 900,000 - 10,300,000 *
Senior management, Employees
and Other qualifying
participants (in aggregate) 22 January 2008 HK$1.052 *
&y
Total 17,200,000 - 900,000 - 16,300,000

* FEB2HPBHRERAZMES -

BEROHESF 2ZH

B bt BB AR BION - MFEAARDQ B S
(RPN % NIz GNCIE £230 NCT A= 2 )
MEBAR  WEFLLZHEARESARRER
) AT EL AR A 10 SAE 75 1 BN 2

*  Please refer to note 31 to the financial statements for details.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the above share option scheme, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or the holding
companies of the Company or any subsidiaries of its holdings
companies a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The Company'’s directors had no interests in any business that may
compete with the Group's business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
confirmed that it has maintained a sufficient public float in the
market as at the date of the report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2012.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had no contract entered into in
respect of the management or administration of the overall business
or any material business.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available

to the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of purchases from the major
suppliers of the Group to total purchases of the Group is as follow:

Percentage of purchases from the largest supplier

of the Group to total purchases: 52.0%
Percentage of purchases from top five suppliers
of the Group to total purchases 26.6%

No directors nor their associates have interests in the above
suppliers.
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During the year, the percentage of sales from the major customers
of the Group to the total sales of goods and services of the Group is
as follows:

Percentage of sales from the largest customer of

the Group to total sales of goods and services 10.7%
Goods and services sold by the Group
to its top five customers during the year 27.1%

None of the directors, nor their associates or any shareholders
holding more than 5% of the share capital of the Company has an
interest in the customers referred to above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year the Group had entered into certain material
transactions with parties which were regarded as “Related Parties”
under the applicable accounting principles. Details of those related
parties transactions are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.
Some of these transactions which are considered to be connected
or continuous connected transactions under the Listing Rules are
further disclosed in following section “Connected Transactions”.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Agreements with SZ Eycom
Terms of the agreements

Shenzhen Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“SZ Eyang”) and
Dongguan Eyang Technology Development Co., Ltd. (“DG Eyang")
entered into new leasing agreements with Shenzhen Eycom
Technology Co., Ltd. ("SZ Eycom”) on 1 January 2012 and 1 August
2012 regarding the premises occupied by SZ Eycom and its
subsidiaries (“New Leasing Agreements”). On 1 January 2012 SZ
Eyang and SZ Eycom also entered a purchase agreement with
respect to the supply of MLCC products by SZ Eyang to SZ Eycom
(“Purchase Agreement”). The directors, including the independent
non-executive directors, were of the view that the terms of the New
Leasing Agreements and Purchase Agreement were in normal
commercial terms and in ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company. The New Leasing Agreements and Purchase
Agreement fall under the definition of continuous connected
transactions pursuant to the Listing Rules, and the maximum
aggregate annual cap of both the New Leasing Agreements and
Purchase Agreement is RMB13,129,000, which is more than 0.1% but
less than 5% of the applicable percentage ratios and therefore
subject to reporting and announcement requirements only in
accordance with Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.
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As at 31 December 2012, the total rental paid under the New Leasing
Agreements and total purchase by SZ Eycom under the Purchase
Agreement was approximately RMB1,993,000 and RMB4,438,000
respectively (2011: RMB867,000 and RMB2,119,000 respectively).

Pursuant to the Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules the independent
non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and are of the opinion that the
above continuing connected transactions have been (i) carried out in
the usual and ordinary course of business of the Group; (ii)
conducted on normal commercial terms; and (iii) entered into in
accordance with the terms of the respective agreements.

The Company’s auditor has also confirmed that the above-stated
continuing connected transactions (i) have been approved by the
Board of the Company; (ii) have been entered into on terms of the
agreement of relevant transactions; and (iii) have not exceeded any
caps as set out in the agreements as mentioned here above between
SZ Eyang, DG Eyang and SZ Eycom.

AUDITOR

The Company’s original auditors Ernst & Young tendered its
resignation on 11 December 2012 with effective the same day. On 14
December 2012, the Board appointed CCIF CPA Limited as the new
auditors of the Company. CCIF CPA Limited was subsequently re-
appointed at the annual general meeting held on 18 September
2013.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
audited by CCIF CPA Limited. The auditors shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, but have agreed to offer
themselves for re-appointment. According to the advice of the Audit
Committee, a resolution will be proposed to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint CCIF CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Weirong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2014
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Causeway Bay Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the Shareholders of
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of
EYANG Holdings (Group) Co. Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to 160, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
as explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement. Because
of the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion
paragraphs, however, we were not able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

(1) Scope limitation — Prior year's audit scope
limitation affecting opening balances and
corresponding figures

As detailed in the auditor’s report dated 30 March 2012, a
qualified opinion was issued by the predecessor auditor on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 on the trading of mobile phones (the “Mobile
Phone Business”) with two foreign enterprises in Africa (the
“Africa Customers”). During the year ended 31 December 2011,
in respect of the Mobile Phone Business, the Group recorded
revenue and segment profit of RMB124,128,000 and
RMB5,567,000, respectively, and corresponding trade
receivables with a carrying amount of RMB25,249,000 at 31
December 2011. The predecessor auditor was unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the sales of mobile
phones to the Africa Customers and the corresponding trade
receivables because (i) there was inadequate documentary
evidence available for the predecessor auditor to verify the
identity of the Africa Customers and the delivery of mobile
phones; (ii) there was no satisfactory explanation provided to
the predecessor auditor to explain the reason for the cash
received by the Group totaling RMB98,879,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2011 and RMB25,249,000 subsequent to
31 December 2011 being transacted through intermediaries for
the settlement of the recorded sale transactions; (iii) the
predecessor auditor was unable to carry out any effective
confirmation procedure in relation to the sales of mobile
phones for the purpose of the audit and (iv) there were no
alternative audit procedures that the predecessor auditor could
perform to satisfy themselves as to whether the above
transactions and balances recorded under the Mobile Phone
Business were free from material misstatement for the year
ended 31 December 2011.
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Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary
in respect of the above would have had a consequential effect
on (i) the net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and
(i) the Group's revenue, results and cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2011 and the related disclosures in the
financial statements.

The comparative figures disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012 are based
on the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011 in respect of which the predecessor
auditor’s report dated 20 March 2012 expressed a qualified
opinion. Therefore, the comparative figures shown may not be
free from material misstatement and any adjustments to the
opening balances as at 1 January 2012 would have a
consequential effect on the loss for the year ended 31
December 2012 and the net assets of the Group as at 31
December 2012.

Scope limitation — Mobile Phone Business

During the year ended 31 December 2012, in respect of the
Mobile Phone Business, the Group recorded sales, costs of
sales and segment profit of RMB112,993,000, RMB109,130,000
and RMB1,819,000 respectively. We were unable to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the sales of mobile
phones to customers and the corresponding cost of sales and
segment profit because (i) there was inadequate documentary
evidence available for us to verify the delivery of mobile
phones both from the suppliers and to the customers; (i) there
was inadequate documentary evidence available for us to
verify the identity of all customers; (iii) there was no satisfactory
explanation provided to us to explain the reasons for the bank
receipts of the Group totaling RMB30,543,000 and the bank
payments of the Group totaling RMB48,281,000 during the year
ended 31 December 2012 being transacted through
intermediaries for the settlement of the recorded sales and
purchase transactions; (iv) we were unable to carry out any
effective confirmation procedure in relation to the sales and
purchase of mobile phones for the purpose of our audit; and (v)
we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to verify the occurrence and accuracy of these sales and
purchase and there were no alternative audit procedures that
we could perform to satisfy ourselves as to whether the sales
and purchases transactions recorded under the Mobile Phone
Business were free from material misstatement.

Any adjustments that might have been found to be necessary
in respect of the above would have a consequential significant
effect on the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2012, the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended and the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
Statements.
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraphs, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements as to whether they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2012 and of the Group'’s loss for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
as to whether the consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In all other aspects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without further qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to an
allegation of false accounting regarding the Mobile Phone Business
of the Group (“the Allegation”) as more fully disclosed in note 2(b)(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements. A Special Committee was
set up by the Company to investigate into the Allegation. According
to the results of the investigation, there was no false accounting
identified in the Mobile Phone Business as alleged.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011 were audited by another auditor who
expressed a qualified opinion on those financial statements in their
report dated 30 March 2012.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 16 July 2014

Kwok Cheuk Yuen
Practising Certificate Number P02412
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HZE20124E12 4318 |4 E For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012
2012
B AR¥ET T
Notes RMB’000
WA REVENUE 6 538,335 481,402
SHE R AN Cost of sales (473,998) (417,333)
EF Gross profit 64,337 64,069
E A YA R E A F M e Other revenue and other net income 7 13,848 11,516
SHE Mo SHAK AR Selling and distribution costs (18,257) (13,104)
1T EH Administrative expenses (38,029) (27,150)
H B Sz Other expenses (9,893) (2,482)
AN REFE L Change in fair value of Net Contingent
NEEZE Consideration Payable 34 3,510 -
T FE & B B AR Research and development costs 8(c) (7,714) (7,158)
R R Profit from operations 7,802 25,691
ELEZ 9N Finance costs 8(a) (7,644) (8,924)
RR%% A1 F PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 158 16,767
TSt Income tax 9(a) (8,317) (2,211)
FE(EEB) FHE (LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (8,159) 14,556
Hp2m (F5E) OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/
INCOME
MEGINETSHIE H =5 Exchange differences on translation of
NkZEFIE foreign operations, net of nil tax (14) 2,758
FEDE(FHE) WEME%E  TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (8,173) 17,314
KAREE ANELFEE (Loss)/profit for the year attributable to
(B8),/FH owners of the Company (8,159) 14,556
AAREEAEEEZE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/
(B58), WEBE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY (8,173) 17,314
AREAL AREAL
RMB cents RMB cents
SR (E5E) BF (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 15
HAR#E#E Basic and diluted (2.0) 3.6

EL3BEE10B MR It S8 5 R A —28  The notes on pages 53 to 160 form part of these financial statements.
D BERAGEBFENEZENANARESR AZIKR Details of dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
BRBHRHE4 - to profit for the year are set out in note 14.
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2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012

2012 & 20114
2012 2011
AR® T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Wz - BB MR Property, plant and equipment 16 277.415 294,183
EME Investment properties 17 26,625 26,277
T EIBNFUE Prepaid land lease payments 18 20,341 20,829

WEEMIZE - 5 ek Deposits paid for acquisition of property,

Fr{TiEe plant and equipment 10 - 5,696
HEmEpEE Other intangible assets 19 1,025 1,197
IR IEE E Deferred tax assets 30(a) 2,891 2,702

328,297 350,884
RBEE CURRENT ASSETS
TE Inventories 21 110,363 103,062
JEWE ZRA R EWEE Trade and bills receivables 22 221,873 156,680
TEMFRIE - e R EM Prepayments, deposits and other

FE U FhE receivables 23 32,080 24,276
FEUL A& 5 B R IA Due from related parties 36(C) 10,869 6,739
PTESFBMTEA Derivative financial instruments 24 - 161
[REZEEIESN Pledged deposits 25 40,677 125,772
R RIRTTAER Cash and bank balances 25 48,018 65,887

463,880 482,577
nBAE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BB SRR RENEE Trade and bills payables 26 119,440 69,439
ELEWA - FEETER R AEM  Deferred income, accruals and other

FEST IR payables 27 45,849 36,280
FERT R 5 R Due to related parties 36(C) 40 =
FERTREIE Tax payable 28,155 12,703
RITE N Bank loans 29 144,599 261,590
FER AR S Dividends payable 256 256

338,339 380,268

REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 125,541 102,309
EEABRRBAR TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT

LIABILITIES 453,838 453,193

20124k « Annual Report 2012 47



e BEIRRER
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012

2012 & 20114
2012 2011
B =E AR® T ARETIT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
FERENEE NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
EEUTA Deferred income 28 2,138 3,193
REFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 30(b) 6,010 5,605
8,148 8,798
EEFRE NET ASSETS 445,690 444,395
BEXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
A% Share capital 33(a) 3,824 3,824
1 Reserves 441,866 440,571
AATEE AEMEER TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 445,690 444,395
MR201457 H16 AESE g EW T - Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
16 July 2014.
BRIZBEEAE B EEE
Mr. Chen Weirong Mr. Jing Wenping
0 EFE
Director Director

D W

53E Z 160 B iR I FR kB —&  The notes on pages 53 to 160 form part of these financial
- statements.
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2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012

2012 % 20114
2012 2011
AREFIT
RMB'000

AR®T T
RMB’000

ERBEE Non-current assets
Wz - BB MR Property, plant and equipment 16 3 1
R B AR ZZE Investments in subsidiaries 20 365,001 365,000
365,004 365,011
REEE Current assets
TEMFRIE - e R EM Prepayments, deposits and
e FRIE other receivables 23 65 68
A I EENGIE ¢ Due from subsidiaries 20 85,437 96,869
e MIRITHR Cash and bank balances 25 402 378
85,904 97,315
REEE Current liabilities
HiENZE R EER Other payables and accruals 27 2,798 1,241
PR B Dividend payable 85 84
R EENGIE ¢ Due to subsidiaries 20 15,298 23,275
FET RS FUR Due to related parties 36(c) 40 =
18,221 24,600
REBEERE Net current assets 67,683 72,715
EEFE NET ASSETS 432,687 437,726
BARR #E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
& s Share capital 33(a) 3,824 3,824
EE Reserves 33(b) 428,863 433,902
AARHEE AELEER TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 432,687 437,726

R20144E7 A 16 BEEE < HE ENT RT3 o Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

16 July 2014.
BR{BSEE B E L%
Mr. Chen Weirong Mr. Jing Wenping
EF EF
Director Director

E53H £ 160 B H s Il S B EMmEXR —3  The notes on pages 53 to 160 form part of these financial

AN

77 e statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE20124E12 4318 |4 E For the year ended 31 December 2012

Bx

Share
capital
AREFTL
RMB'000

i
HER
Share

premium
account
ARETT
RMB'000

BA

Contributed
surplus
¥
RMB'000

AARERAELER
Attributable to owners of the Company

ERERE

Share
option
reserve

ARETT

RMB'000

Ex
RBRE
Exchange
fluctuation
reserve
AREFT
RMB'000

Statutory
reserve
ARBTT
RMB000

BEREA

Retained
profits
ARETT
RMB'000

Bk
KRS
Proposed
final
dividend
ARBT
RMB000

L

Total
equity
ARETT
RMB'000

R201151 A1 BIOERFIE ALt January 2011, as previously

Stated 3824 104,657 198,939 5,044 204 - 114,363 10,239 437,270
REFPRZETHEMES  Restatement due to reallocation

to statutory reserve - - - - - 35,023 (35,023) - -
B2011E1 51 BEE] At 1 January 2011, as restated 3824 104,657 198,939 5,044 204 35,023 79,340 10,239 437,270
EEFIE Profit for the year - - - - - - 14,55 - 14,55
BEGNERRNELZE Bxchange differences on

translation of foreign operations - - - - 2,758 - - - 2,758
EERENGER Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 2758 - 14,556 - 17314
ERERE Transfer to reserve - - - - - 1,205 (1,245) - -
B ERER S (M31)  Equity-settled share option

arrangements (note 31) - - - 50 - - - - 50
BRIERE Share options forfeited - - - (309) - . M _ _
ER010FERARS Final 2010 dividend declared - - - - - = = (10.239) (10,239
R2011E128318 At 31 December 2011 3824 104,657 198,939 4785 2962 36,268 92,960 - 444 395
R20124 1 A1 RINSEATFIE A1 January 2012, as previously

Stated 3824 104,657 198,939 4785 2962 - 129,228 - 444 395
REFHRDATHEMNES  Restatement due to reallocation

t0 statutory reserve - - - - - 36,268 (36,268) - -
120125151 BEEF| At 1 January 2012, as restated 3824 104,657 198,939 4785 2962 36,268 92,960 - 444,395
EEFR Loss for the year - - - - - - (8,159) - (8,159)
BHBNEBNELZE Exchange differences on

translation of foreign operations - - - - (14) - - - (14)
FEEARBER Total comprehensive loss

for the year - - - - (14) - (8,159) - (8173)
BEDERE Transfer to reserve - - - - - 1,667 (1,667) - -
REBRABIELET(H3E34)  Deemed contribution from

the shareholders (note 34) - - 9468 - - - - - 9468
BRIERE Share options forfeited - - - (229) - - 25 = -
R2012512 8318 At 31 December 2012 3,824 104,657 208,407 4,560 2,948 37,935 83,359 - 445,690
ES3BEE10B MBIt S8 5 KRA—2F The notes on pages 53 to 160 form part of these financial
e Statements.
50 PR (%£ME)ER2AR ¢ EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED



FEEERERXR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE20124E12 4318 |4 E For the year ended 31 December 2012

20114
2011
AREFT
RMB’000
REEH Operating activities
BR 7% A7) E Profit before taxation 158 16,767
Gk Adjustments for;
= (%N Finance costs 7,644 8,924
Sk AR (EF R Change in fair value of Net Contingent
NEEEE Consideration Payable (3,510) =
FEWA Interest income (1,393) (1,179)
ANTE(ER), T Fair value losses/(gains), net:
TETR — NS EREH Derivative instruments — transactions
RS not qualified as hedges 161 (161)
e Depreciation 32,446 28,891
+ Ho 78 E B R 5 Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 488 488
HhER & Amortisation of other intangible assets 172 172
FEU B ZEETORME,/ CREREE)  Impairment/(reversal of impairment) loss of
&8 trade receivables 908 (801)
M - BB KRB ZREER Impairment loss of property, plant and
equipment 1,903 -
FEREC Write-down of inventories 8,240 1,732
e B LA BERET A Equity-settled share-based payment
53 expenses - 50
HEME  BERZEZER Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 133 -
RMEBADE - BENMEREZ Forfeiture of deposit paid for acquisition of
B s property, plant and equipment 1,100 =
48,450 54,883
EEESEE Changes in working capital
FEZEm Increase in inventories (10,396) (373)
Al L A ES S Increase in trade and bills receivables (29,267) (2,780)
FENFIB - ke REMER Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
%kIEﬁM\/ (32 0) deposits and other receivables 12,277 (10,704)
FE U BEE 5 2E () A (Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
related parties (4,130) 171
e B S ERF R fE [ =38 10 Increase in trade and bills payables 13,868 11,857
EIEWA ~ FESTFRIE R E A Increase in deferred income, accruals and
eI RIAIE AN other payables 3,330 4,702
JE{<F B2 75 FRIA IS N Increase in amounts due to related parties 40 =
REELZRE Cash generated from operations 34,172 57,756
YA E Interest received 613 398
2t B AL 18 PRC tax paid (2,901) (4,277)
RETHELEZRSFE Net cash generated from operating
activities 31,884 53,877
BREEE Investing activities
BEWE  BEREB IR Payment for the purchase of property, plant
and equipment (14,052) (62,897)
HEME - BERHK Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
FT1S 3R 38 and equipment 3,493 =
WEHRBEAREEZRERA Net cash inflow from acquisition of
Pzt subsidiaries 885 =
RETEFACREFE Net cash used in investing activities (9,674) (62,897)
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FEEERERXR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE20124E12 4318 |4 E For the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 % 20114
2012 2011
AR®T R AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
MEEE Financing activities
FERITERZ B RIE Proceeds from new bank loans 348,401 381,166
BEREBTER Repayment of bank loans (465,392) (230,242)
BHF & Interest paid (8,169) (9,449)
BNAARHEAAZIRE Dividends paid to owners of the Company - (10,154)
EHIRIRT T 7 50 M A A Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits
RAZEAA @A EA 2 and bank deposits with original maturity of
BIEIORL/(Em) over three months when acquired 109,581 (120,672)
BMETEH (A EEcRe Net cash (used in)/generated from
B financing activities (15,579) 10,649
FeRBLEENZ Net increase in cash and
BN cash equivalents 6,631 1,629
M1A1BZBEEREL%EY  Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 70,487 66,101
HNEEZESEH 2 HE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (14) 2,757
R12A3MBzEHE&REELZEY Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December 77,104 70,487
ReRACEEBNEADIN Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
e RIRTEHS Cash and bank balances 25 48,018 65,887
EBARERIHATR3MEA  Pledged bank deposits with original maturity
ZEBERRITER of less than three months when acquired 25 29,086 4,600
REABRERERTE2HEER Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
HeEEYN consolidated statement of cash flows 77,104 70,487
ES3BEE10B MBIt S8 5 KRA—2F The notes on pages 53 to 160 form part of these financial
e statements.

52 FBER(EE)EGRLF o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED




B RR M5
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE20124912 A31H |F4E For the year ended 31 December 2012

—REHR

FRER(EB)ERAR(ARRF DR
2007F3A6REREHERERESFHE A
B2 ZE RN EDE(961 FEEIFER » KA
FERIER]) EMK L AREER AR ° A
A &) 2 7 B3 = & & Codon Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited = 3% =5 & - #b ik & Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands » 4~ 2
A2 ER R EEEEME AR BUR
HIITrE U & = e B L = BA 1L — SR B
BEREIFRFHAE -

ARAZEBEBRREZER - MIBARE
BEG 2 FABENPBRKRMFE20

FESFTBER
(@) &HEH

HEFBRERERIFEERT B REE
A(TERMEREEN DR 857
ARDALESHBEREHEERES
(BB RELZ B S )t 2 R
EaBAFMBBERSFENZESH]
EZBEREHEREGRELZE®
2B WIRREBRRIRIZKER
TEMRBL o It F B WK THIRIBEE LA
REFRERE  YAARBETARE )
25 RABHAEN B ZHER
ENERAAZRERIZ T -

REREREGCBME THA]
MBIEFTBRR MBS HREED  FLEE
AYRAKEEARRRNERN 5T H
B ERERK A HERRANEL -
MIFE3&A T B REAELERIFEL
METHRRES  EATHEAEH
P B 5 R R PR BR Y B B KB
EestHIEER -

GENERAL INFORMATION

EYANG Holdings (Group) Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 6 March 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised).
The Company's registered office address is the office of Codon
Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands, and the head office and the principal place of business
of the Company are located at EYANG Building, No.3 Qimin
Street, No. 2 Langshan Road, North Area, Hi-Tech Industrial
Park, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 20 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”), and the International
Accounting Standards and Standing Interpretations
Ccommittee Interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Committee that remain in effect,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention and
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except where otherwise indicated.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs which
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from the initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these financial
Statements.
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2. TESTHE®)

54

(b) MBHMRZMREE

HE2012F12A3NBIEEE 2
RE SRR BIEA R B K E B
BAR (HfE [ AEE]) -

AEBEET S ERMBHRRAE
REANERKEMAEMNTE
RERBNEE (8B )&t
B - HRAMBHREUARE (A
REDZ25 MARERARA
HIREE -

AT X FrE 2 & 5t BRR AT
B BRIRARERTEEHMTA
TR AFEHRIN - BBHRKR
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HAEo
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BRAEF RBERREREAE
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

(i)

FREIER (£@)HR AT o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2012 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi ("“RMB”) and the
functional currency of the Company is RMB.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the contingent consideration and the
derivative financial instruments are stated at the
fair value as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSS requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have a significant effect on
the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.
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HZE20124912 A31H |F4E For the year ended 31 December 2012

2. TESTHE®)

(b) FAFEHmER 2 mBEE (4)

(if)

EHEEZ2012F12A318 L&
RFEHEIZBRESR  FE—8
ERASEBBHFREFIER
([ZB)FHER ) HiERE BiE
P ([Rz4EHE]) -

Exe([E5g)R20135F4 A
0BEH » KRRz ARMER
BT N EBB B T E
BiERE 2 51H - )R2013454
A 25 BWEBLHME - A5E
BEFHESHAQT 2 —HH
BAR - IEBBEFERER
AR([BBEE]) - R20114F8
HZ=2012F 3 A HiE&EE - A
MEDEFRE o

BE2R2013F 6 A28 HRY
EB2012F 12 ARBEEHAER
FHREXNBEEREREMAEFRS
B2 o

R2012%5 8 » NARIKIES
eEfZEg([BEMZEE]) -
AEZEETNEEeEENE
AEBARIIE I FERIER o

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

(if)

During the audit process in respect of the financial
year ended 31 December 2012, there was an
allegation of false accounting regarding the trading
of mobile phones (the “Mobile Phone Business”) of
the Group (“the allegation”).

On 30 April 2013, the board of directors (the
“Board”) was informed that the company secretary
of the Company was arrested by the Hong Kong
Police on 25 April 2013 in connection with alleged
false accounting with respect to the Group’s Mobile
Phone Business which was operated by a
subsidiary of the Company, Hong Kong Weichang
NER Co. Limited ("HK Weichang"), for the period
from August 2011 to March 2012. The company
secretary was released on bail.

The Board resolved on 28 June 2013 to voluntarily
wind up HK Weichang which had ceased its Mobile
Phone Business since December 2012.

In May 2012, the Company established a special
board committee (the “Special Committee”) to
investigate the allegation and to recommend
remedial procedures to the Board to improve the
Group’s internal control.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

(if)

FREIER (£@)HR AT o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

(continued)

The Special Committee carried out an investigation
with the assistance of an independent PRC law firm
and made reference to the internal control review
report issued by Pan China and completed the
investigation in November 2013. The Special
Committee concluded that:

No fraudulent trading occurred in the mobile
phone trading business conducted by HK
Weichang;

The operation of the mobile phone trading
business conducted by HK Weichang did not
contravene any PRC laws and related rules
and/or regulations,

The mobile phone trading business
conformed to the international practice
regarding sale and purchase of goods and fell
within the threshold of normal and
reasonable business activities commonly
practised in the PRC;

The problems associated with the mobile
phone trading business resulted from
inadequate supervision from the
management and apparent defects in the
internal control systems. However, there was
no evidence showing any integrity problem of
the management of the mobile phone trading
business.

On the basis of findings in the investigation carried
out by the Special Committee, the Board
considered that no further actions should be taken.

Subsequently, on 13 June 2014, the Board was
informed by the company secretary of the
Company that on 12 June 2014, Hong Kong Police
had removed his bail and released him
unconditionally.
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2. TESTHE®)
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss (see note 2(i)).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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FESTHEE®) 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(d) #¥¥&E6tE) (d) Business combinations (continued)
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FREIER (£@)HR AT o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values, except that:

o a deferred tax asset or liability arising from the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
business combination and the potential tax effects
of temporary differences and carryforwards of an
acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise
as a result of the acquisition are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes;

o assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits; and

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below).

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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2. FESTBXR#) 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(d) #¥¥&E6tE) (d) Business combinations (continued)
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Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,
when applicable, on the basis specified in another IFRS.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding
adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or
a liability is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in
accordance with IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, or IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.
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FESTHEE®) 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(d) #¥¥&E6tE) (d) Business combinations (continued)
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When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control) and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or l0ss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if
that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period (see above), and
additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect
new information obtained about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would
have affected the amounts recognised at that date.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(i)). The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of comprehensive income in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal estimated useful lives and residual
values used for this purpose are as follows:

st AR AE
Estimated Residual
useful lives values
gx Buildings 40 years
or over the
remaining term
of the lease,
if shorter
A0FHEE
T4 5 HA
(AEEHEA%E) 10%
= R ezs Plant and machinery 5-10 years 4 10%
WMAEREMBRE Office and other equipment 3-10 years 10%
JEE Motor vehicles 4-10 years 10%
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Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at the end of each
reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or 10ss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and equipment
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use.
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Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
2(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. Such properties are initially measured at
cost, including transaction costs subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less,
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
calculated on the straight-line basis over the estimated
useful lives of 40 years.

Any gains or losses from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or 0ss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(t)(ii).

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subseguent accounting is its carrying amount at the date
of change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment” up to the date of change in use.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

ty)

(h)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the
end of each reporting period.

The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised from the date they are available for use and
their estimated useful lives are as follows:

—  computer software 10 years straight line

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in
return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

FREIER (£@)HR AT o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair
value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present
value of the minimum lease payments of such
assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset, as set out in note 2(e). Impairment losses are
accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policy as set out in note 2(i). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit
or loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations
for each accounting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(h) Leased assets (continued)

(iv)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lumpsum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "prepaid land lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.
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Current and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment 10ss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For trade receivables and other current

receivables and other financial assets carried
at amortised cost, impairment l0ss is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

(ii)

Impairment of trade and other receivables
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
and bill receivables whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or l0ss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— investment properties,

— prepaid land lease payments;

— other intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries in Company's
statement of financial position.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its
value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating
unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying amount of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
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FREIER (£@)HR AT o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subseqguently remeasured to their fair value at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or 0SS is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify to hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading and are classified as current
assets or current liabilities.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(k) Research and development costs

U]

All research costs are charged to the statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the Group
can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product
development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

(m) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts (see note 2(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.
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Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost with any difference between the
amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.



B RR M5
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE20124912 A31H |F4E For the year ended 31 December 2012

2. TESTHE®)

() EEEH @)

(i)

URHBRER ZNRRS

ARBRIFB I B M H AL
BEBKEEMBERMZAERZ
BEIR MR M 2R E o ARE 2
BE(BRES)SBBUBRN S
EW 2 R 577 AW EURE)
Bl - mES S RMURY - £
WERA R m fetg TR 2 (B (TAX
REERZS)) -

HEBETREGER S ZKA
DEREERZAFEHE -2
FETH—BINEEEER
AABEETE - EABFBEN
BI TSR RES2 ©

BREGEER P 2 RANERRAE
HEF RN ERRA R, R
Bt 2 FARIHERR - IXER I B AT
BEFREHRABREER F
RZBBFX - RRE @R B
HI IR 2 B S Je AN S5 [ Y B 4%
SEBCBRETAME Z2&EMR
it B HEEEKER 2R
FEREZAMMARMERRED
R RIER 228

BRAR R 57 B - TR T & i SR B
3 ERE L mMIAT S R
BB IR RIRMT - BEERHE
R A RE &SRB G218
AT TamaREDZM SR
NI B RIS RIFREEIE
2 REBER SRR o

BRREE R 2 RRIER] R
i PR BRI 2 R ST 15k - S RER
RO 2R AR AR (E
R o AN RIERTELEZE
AR BER I NRR B 2R
FEARE 2 E N E s 7 3
BEAMERTIRERIB 2 E
MR -

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(q) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive incentives and
rewards in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”) of the Company.

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given
in note 32 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of comprehensive income for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled
transactions where vesting is conditional upon a
market or non-vesting condition, which are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases
the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of earnings per share.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided that
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(r)
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Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs and
returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(i)

FREIER (£@)HR AT o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms,

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

commission income, when services are rendered.
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Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. All differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or
loss arising on retranslation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of foreign operations outside Mainland China
are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their consolidated statements of
comprehensive income are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Mainland China which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them.

Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as
deferred income in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statements of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.



B RR M5
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE20124912 A31H |F4E For the year ended 31 December 2012

2. TESTHE®)

(x)

(y)

Hﬁ /%\ (Ié%\s)

HRARE Z BB AKAERE R AR
REZTIRTHBRE - Bt HERE
AURREZERTIR - Bt - 23
LER®E THERSSNEBERSE

& e

BER

ETRIERTEALHZALZ
BRETIREKRBERES/AE
B BEN

@)

(i)

(if)

(iif)

\L/
il B

B

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

2 Tl 7 5% 8] 2 AL R 2 Il A
8

AHAEEEEEALE
VA=

RASEREBRANE
BEIEAS -

Ba AT EMES - BA
SEZHEES
ZEREAEEBR %

Bk E AR (NEE2 &
NG PEETGEL
BARRS—HEE) -

/N E
e S A
F=HREEE AT

538 #) B8 ) J
BUR IR 8 -

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x)

(y)

Dividends (continued)

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan

for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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(b)  (continued)

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group'’s board of directors (the chief operating decision
maker) for the purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines
of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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3. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR'S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS")

(@)

In preparing the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group has identified certain errors in the comparative
financial information presented. A detailed description of
the nature is provided as below. The amounts of
restatement for each financial statement line item
affected are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

(M

Statutory reserve in the consolidated
financial statements

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to
appropriate 10% of their profit after tax (after
offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory reserve
until such reserve reaches 50% of their registered
capital. Transfers to the reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to shareholders.
Upon approval by relevant authorities, the statutory
reserve can be utilised to offset the accumulated
losses or to increase the registered capital of the
subsidiary, provided that the balance after such
issue is not less than 25% of its registered capital.

However, this reserve was included within retained
earnings in prior years and not separately
identified. The appropriate amounts were re-
allocated to this reserve in these financial
Statements.
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3. RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR'S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSS") (continued)

(@) (continued)

(i)

Exchange differences in the Company’s
financial statements

It has also come to the attention of the directors
that there were incorrect measurement of the
exchange differences on translating monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies to the functional currency of the
Company and on translating the Company’s
statement of financial position items from its
functional currency to the presentation currency.
Such exchange differences during the year ended
31 December 2011 mainly arose from the
Company’s amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries.
Adjustments for material differences have been
made accordingly.

(b) In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised IFRSS issued by the IASIS.

RIERIA : WO B & E
Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

TERMTA: WE —SRMEENER X

Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets; and

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in the
financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new amendment
standard, or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting
period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

(@) Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

(i

(ii)

Operating lease commitments — Group as
lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio. The
Group has determined, based on an evaluation of
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out
on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed
criteria in making that judgement. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Judgements (continued)

(ii)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out
separately under a finance lease, the Group
accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on
an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property
does not qualify as an investment property.

(b) Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i

(ii)

Useful lives and residual values of property,
plant and equipment (Carrying amount:
RMB277,415,000 (2011: RMB294,183,000))

In determining the useful lives and residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment, the
Group has to consider various factors, such as
technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
changes or improvements in production, or from a
change in the market demand for the product or
service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar
limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the
estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment are
different from the previous estimation. Useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at the end of the
reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.

Deferred tax assets (Carrying amount:
RMB2,891,000 (2011: RMB2,702,000))

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference and losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing
and level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

FREIER (£@)HR AT o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

Impairment assessment of long-term assets
(Carrying amount: RMB325,406,000 (2011:
RMB348,182,000))

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is an indication that long-term assets may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group
makes an estimate of the recoverable amount of
long-term assets. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of long-term assets. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from
long-term assets and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable
value (Carrying amount: RMB110,363,000
(2011: RMB103,062,000))

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
made based on the estimated net realisable value
of inventories. The assessment of the required
write-down amount involves management’s
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimate, such difference will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and
the write-down charge/write-back amount in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)
(b) Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(v) Impairment of trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related
parties (Carrying amount: RMB242,006,000
(2011: RMB163,419,000))

The Group estimates the provisions for impairment
of trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties by assessing
their recoverability based on credit history and
prevailing market conditions. This requires the use
of estimates and judgements. Provisions are
applied to trade receivables, other receivables and
amounts due from related parties where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
balances may not be collectible. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of
trade receivables, other receivables and amounts
due from related parties and thus the impairment
loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group reassesses the provisions at
the end of the reporting period.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports which provide information about components of the
Group. These information are reported to and reviewed by the
chief operating decision marker (“CODM") for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment. The identity
of CODM is the board of directors. The CODM considers the
business from a business activity perspective. Each of the
Group’s segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of the other segments. The Group has the
following three reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the reportable segments.

(i) the multi-layer ceramic chips (“MLCC") segment engages
in the manufacture and sale of MLCC and the trading of
MLCC,

(i) the trading of mobile phone segment engages in the
trading of mobile phones; and

(i) the battery segment engages in the manufacture and
sale of batteries.
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5.

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s CODM
monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets,
non-current assets and current assets that are directly
managed by the segments. Segment liabilities include all
current liabilities and non-current liabilities attributable to the
activities of the individual segments and including bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those segments
and the expenses incurred by those segments. To arrive at
segment results, the Group allocated income and expense to
those segments but excluded interest income, finance costs
and change in fair value of Net Contingent Consideration
Payable.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment result, the Group’s CODM is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
sales), interest income and expense from cash balances and
borrowings managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted
with reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the prevailing market prices.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments and
the reconciliation to the corresponding consolidated totals in
the financial statement are shown below.
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5. 2#HE @ 5. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
HE2012512AMBLEE BHIRES ix: oI
Year ended 31 December 2012 FRZE Trading Inter-
BEEAH of mobile it segment @5t
MLCC phones Battery elimination Total
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
DEBUES Segment revenue:
HETHIARP Sales to external customers 414,143 112,993 11,199 - 538,335
PRk Inter-segment revenue - - 6,783 (6,783) -
414,143 112,993 17,982 (6,783) 538,335
DEEE Segment results 4,039 2,423 (3,563) - 2,899
EEER Reconciliation:
FEBA Interest income 1,393
RARA Finance costs (7,644)
SAEMREEE  Change in fair value of
ZAFEED Net Contingent Consideration
Payable 3,510
BRI Profit before taxation 158
PHEE Segment assets 736,667 165 55,556 - 792,388
FE Reconciliation;
HESFIEURBR 8 Elimination of inter-segment
receivables (211)
BERE Total assets 792,177
FHEE Segment liabilities 297,300 1,960 47,227 - 346,487
5 Reconciliation:
DERE R  Elimination of inter-segment
payables -
BEAS Total liabilities 346,487
Ht D HER Other segment information:
MNemElERER 2 Write-down of inventories
BFERL recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income 8,077 - 163 - 8,240
W2EUEREZ 2 Impairment of trade receivables
el Z S8 TURME  recognized in the Statement
of comprehensive income 908 - - - 908
W BEREE  Impairment loss of property,

BEEE plant and equipment - - 1,903 - 1,903
HEWME HEE  Lossondisposal of property,

RIBER plant and equipment 133 - - - 133
FTEREH Depreciation and amortisation 32,286 - 820 - 33,106
FRIEREHHERE  Additions to non-current

IIRE* segment assets during

the year* 18,748 - 2,807 - 21,555

RERFERA Research and development costs 7,714 - - - 7,714
MEKA Interest income (1,393) - - - (1,393)

BERA Finance costs 7,644 - - - 7,644
) EAMXBREYR  BERSEIRE * Capital expenditure consists of additions to property
BREKEHBAREEZAE - plant and equipment including assets from the

acquisition of subsidiaries.
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

HE2011F12A31HILFE
Year ended 31 December 2011

FAZE

MLCC

ARBETT
RMB'000

BEBFHRES
Trading

of mobile
phones
ARBT T
RMB'000

SN
s
- —
< j; ‘
1
%
k| | =

2 EBULEE - Segment revenue:
HE TINREP Sales to external customers 357,274 124,128 481,402
DEBHEE Segment results 18,945 5,567 24,512
FED Reconciliation:
FLEWA Interest income 1,179
BhE AN Finance costs (8,924)
B A5t B A P Profit before taxation 16,767
PHEE Segment assets 799,764 33,697 833,461
e Reconciliation:
HEPEIFEY BRI ES  Elimination of inter-segment
receivables -
BERE Total assets 833,461
PEHEE Segment liabilities 360,867 29,615 390,482
D Reconciliation:
DEFEENBEZ S Elimination of inter-segment
payables (1,416)
AfEsesE Total liabilities 389,066
HitnBER : Other segment information:
RemmizsRiERz  Write-down of inventories
FERE recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income 1,732 - 1,732
RaemkzRiER 2 Reversal of impairment of trade
FEW B 5 ERFORE receivables recognised in the
# ol statement of comprehensive
income (801) = (801)
YIEE - WE R RERE  Impairment loss of property, plant
18 and equipment = - -
HEWE - WE RH&ME Loss on disposal of property, plant
[E518 and equipment - - -
HrEE M 5 Depreciation and amortization 29,551 = 29,551
FRNIERBHIEE  Additions to non-current segment
IINE assets during the year 61,837 - 61,837
7t K F B A AR Research and development costs 7,158 = 7,158
R EHA Interest income (1,179) - (1,179)
B R Finance costs 8,924 _ 8,924
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(@) Geographical segments

(i) Revenue from external customers

The geographical analysis of the Group'’s revenue
from external customers by geographical location
based on where the goods are sold and delivered
and services are rendered, is as follows:

2012 & 20114
2012 2011
ARET T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A B K e Mainland China 293,673 216,258
R ] A Bz LA 71N b 3 [ Regions other than Mainland China 244,662 265,144
538,335 481,402
(i) FRBEE (ii) Non-current assets

el A 74 42 B 7 0% fir 4 o
ABE - E 30 5% A B 7 o3
(& 25 RBEER AL
aH o

FREEIEEFNEH

BEE -2 AAREE2012F X 2011
FERBEMLCCH ZBR2012FE K B E it
8B 2 Ug ARSI 10% S LA _E BB o

I A HR 49 A R #557,859,0007 (20114F
AR #124,128,00070) RE FHE 5
DHBH—BEFPHHEE  HAELKE
U A H5 38 10% 3 A - B B ©

REEBREMEBREZBA

AEEXREETZEMMREZWAD
1 BRF 5T 6 FTE B AR ©

No non-current assets and capital expenditure
information is presented for the Group's
geographical location, as over 90% of the Group'’s
assets are located in Mainland China.

(b) Information about major customers

(c)

No single customer contributed 10% or more to the
Group's revenue from MLCC Segment for 2012 and 2011
and battery segment for 2012.

Revenue of approximately RMB57,859,000 (2011:
RMB124,128,000) was derived from sales by the mobile
phone trading segment to one customer who contributed
10% or more to the Group's revenue.

Revenue from major products and
services

The analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major

products and services is the same as that set out in
note 6.
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REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns

and trade discounts.

WASITIAT : An analysis of revenue is as follows:
2012 F 20114
2012 2011
ARB TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
MLCC $H& Sale of MLCC 414,143 357,274
BEMIHE Sale of battery 11,199 -
BEFRE S Trading of mobile phones 112,993 124,128
538,335 481,402

7. HttWAREMFENE

Hg A
ABERFEFAREZ SR
BENBBA — RITHE

7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME

20114
2011
AREFIT
RMB'000

2012 F
2012
AR®T T
RMB’000

B =
Notes

Other revenue
Interest income on financial assets
not at fair value through profit or

A loss — bank interest income 1,393 1,179
LW A Rental income 8 6,262 5,745
BT R B Government grants (@) 1,504 458
BB BB R B VE AU Release of government grant

as income 28 1,055 1,055
SHEREM R Sale of materials 2,407 2,271
a2 BA Commission income 975 =
FETEA Sundry income 252 647
13,848 11,355
Hitg s Other net income
N EW S FEE Fair value gains, net:
PTEERMIAE —T/FE Derivative instruments —
EEY P25 transactions not qualified
as hedges - 161
13,848 11,516
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7. HWARHEAMFRE 2 7. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME
(continued)
(@) BF@mEiRE R T BEEEANERE (@  The government grants represent the subsidies received
POEHEERR E—FHaHmetRe from the Shenzhen Financial Bureau as a reward of the
Y —IHEF) o excess amount of export sales of a high technology
enterprise in the current year over that in the previous
year.
8. PBRFLAEF 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
BREBIFER R (GEA) T5EE Profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the
following:
(a) MEHE (@) Finance costs

2012 F 20114
2012 2011

AR®T T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000

BRREERNZHERNZ8R/T  Interest on bank loans wholly repayable
B2 A within five years 7,644 8,924

KA EE AEZE SR Total interest expense on financial

BEMNEMAT &5 liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss 7,644 8,924
(b) EIRAX(BEEEMSE) (b) staff costs (including directors’
remuneration)
2012 & 2011 £
2012 2011
ARET R AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AER-FCERIRET B2 3K Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 3,254 1,585
Fe  LEREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits
(F=ET Rz i) (note i and ii) 57,045 52,474
[eEEE AR D BER 2 Equity-settled share-based payment
MR expenses - 50

60,299 54,109
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8. BRTANER (&)
HiEH

96

(0

FEMRA
e
&8
T3 E TR FOR

B

HAb & R

T R P A
AEEFRX

BFREENRERE
IR

ZHEN B =
bE = 2 OFRR)
BEERLE 2B HE

BRI - BB K&
Rz O RS

B E 5 R BRE,”
CRE R E) (K E i)

HEWE  BEREEZ
Eia

REMERLS WA EE
RERT AR
348,000 7T (2011 4F :
AR #387,000 7T)

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

(c) Other items

Cost of inventories

Depreciation

Impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid land
lease prepayments

Amortisation of other intangible
assets

Research and development costs:
Current year expenditure

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases in respect of
buildings

Auditors’ remuneration

Foreign exchange differences, net

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

Forfeiture of deposit paid for
acquisition of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment/(reversal of
impairment) of trade receivables
(note iii)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Rental income on investment
properties less direct
outgoings of RMB348,000
(2011: RMB387,000)

2012 & 20114

2012 2011

B ARET AREEFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
21(@a) 482,238 419,065
32,446 28,891

1,903 =

488 488

172 172

7,714 7,158

308 259

2,683 1,140

147 (423)

8,240 1,732

1,100 —

908 (801)

133 -

7 (5,914) (5,358)

FEKRABIFEE TRARITE
R 2 AR 64,382,000 75 (2011
F: AR¥67,147,0007T) * IVE
RESERLEXNEBEEZ L
ﬁq o

MREFAEXABEITEARK
137,0007C (2011 : A R ¥
173,00070) & B TR AN A R #&
3,758,0007C (20114 : A B ¥
4,736,0007T) + MEIEESER
EXEBEWE L BEA -

(i

FREIER (£@)HR AT o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

Cost of inventories includes RMB64,382,000 (2011:
RMB67,147,000) relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately
above.

Included in research and development costs are
depreciation of RMB137,000 (2011: RMB173,000)
and staff costs of RMB3,758,000 (2011:
RMB4,736,000), which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately
above.
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8. BR®ADGEF (2 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)
(c) HAMIER (#) (c) Other items (continued)
(iiy FEWESEFRERBREELRSE (i) The impairment of trade receivables are included in
ZEKER [HMEI BT - “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
9. FiiE®H 9. INCOME TAX
(@) FHEEZANRZRANMESHE (@ Income tax in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income represents:

2012 % 20114
2012 2011

ARBTR ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB’'000

EEATH I — AREERFEME  Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income

FriS &t Tax for the year 7,961 2,842
EEFIR Deferred taxation 216 178
BEFERETE/ Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior

(FRRERE) years 140 (809)
FRATER Income tax for the year 8,317 2,211
() AEEERAEENKE QAT ()  The Group is subject to income tax on an entity

e R & 2 R ERE R E £ 2 FF basis on profits arising in or derived from the
RE B BT SR o jurisdictions in which members of the Group are

domiciled and operate.

(il BHERTEEFRARBEBILLEE (i) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
Ak BRERE R AE - MU ARE made as the Group had no assessable profits
B mREENERIEL B - derived from or earned in Hong Kong during the

year.

(il WBEFSHEMABRIESZ (i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
RAIREE AEEEEDFIR Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Group is not
HAEHESRABELHSHMNE subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
AIFR1SH and the BVI respectively.
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9.

98

FEH &) 9.
@ &)

(iv) FRAR R BAREZHEA
AR FEREEREGR A A
(f}hﬂllﬂﬁj)#zmoimﬂsw
EE/A%HX;%E**&JJ: 7 u.m ’
B 72011 F £ 2013 4F BifE 22
BNz TSR A 15% ©

V)  BEXFARIIFTHREE 15%
BEBR I ARARHEARE
Z B~ B 7R 1R 25% 1R 4
BEGNERAEHR -

b)) BERAXBREAREGFEZGH

£ N SANaN)
S e
o —
< j; ‘
%
k| | =

INCOME TAX (continued)
(a) (continued)

(iv)  On 31 October 2010, Shenzhen Eyang Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“SZ Eyang”) &I F& R
REER AR A Al), a subsidiary of the Company in
Mainland China, was recognised as a high
technology enterprise again and was subject to
enterprise income tax rate of 15% from 2011 to
2013.

(v)  Except for SZ Eyang mentioned above that was
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%, the
subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China
were required to pay enterprise income tax (“EIT")
at the standard rate of 25% during the year.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

TR profit at applicable tax rate:
RER
Group
2012 F 2011 4
2012 2011
AR® T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R Wt BT AE Profit before taxation 158 16,767
WA EMRTE 2 T Tax at the statutory tax rate 39 4,192
LA &IB 2 FIEFE Tax effect of:
FEMR IR 2 Lower tax rates for specific
R TR R districts or countries 1,281 (9,240)
T IE B IS e Tax incentives (2,219) (1,238)
BARTIA Income not subject to tax (962) (143)
DEE 5 Expenses not deductible for tax 7,072 (243)
RER 2 T IAE1E Tax losses not recognised 1,696 9,282
EA YN 50% T 3T K Additional deduction of 50% of
R the research and development
expenses (816) (524)
BEFE Underprovision/(overprovision) in
BBTRGRREEE) prior years 140 (809)
%’TKEIZEP Bl ABEKE AT Effect of withholding tax on
SR AE 2 B TR%; the distributable profits of the Group’s
Mainland China subsidiaries 405 538
Eh Others 1,681 396
BERHIERS Actual tax expense 8,317 2,211
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10. gﬂﬁ#@% HBERREZEHIZE

HE20MF12ANBLEFEE  AEESH
e ANR¥5,6960007T @ BRURE K 28
AEBEEREAEZ&ERKSS - REZE
202F12ANBILEFE AEBEEBRE
LH 7 R ES A AR ¥ 4,596,0007T °
EERE RNEUHEERBRE Z A TR ER -
ERDEAZER M ASEZBAEE
B#®RER - AEEBE MR - TR
HE2012F 12831 B IEFERGAEEZEK
mRI AR -

1. ESM=

REBEBE(RRGIDE 161GZHE  EF
MEmEWT

10. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group paid deposit of RMB5,696,000 for acquiring and
installing plant and machinery in the Group's production plant
during the year ended 31 December 2011. Plant and machinery
of RMB4,596,000 were installed in the Group’s production plant
during the year ended 31 December 2012. The directors were
satisfied that the then expanded production capacity was
adequate for the Group's forecast operational use and
production capacity after cancelled the rest of the orders with
the contractor. The deposit paid by the Group was forfeited
and recorded as expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 December
2012.

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

HZ2012E12A31ALEE REgE
Year ended 31 December 2012 FeREE  RARANMER RRERX
Salaries  Retirement Equity-settled ame
ik and benefit  share option Total
Fees  allowances contributions expense remuneration
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HITESE: Executive directors:
REX%E Mr. Chen Weirong (“Mr. Chen”)
(MR%EE]) (Chairman and Chief
(ERFORER) Executive Officer) - 713 2 - 737
BEEA(TE%EE]) M. Liaolie (‘Mr. Liao") - 845 2 - 866
RS (MR%4£])  Mr.XuChuncheng (‘Mr. Xu") - 459 17 - 476
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
BRE%AE Mr. Cheng Wusheng - - - - _
REMIE Mr. Zhang Zhilin - - - - -
BEEE Mr. Chen Hao - - - - -
Lt ((BLt])  Ms. Shuang Mei ("Ms. Shuang”) - - - - -
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
£/ Mr. Liu Huanbin 68 - - - 68
EEEE Mr. Pan Wei 68 - _ - 68
RRESE Mr. Chu Kinwang, Peleus 98 - - - 98
234 2,017 62 - 2,313
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1. EEME ) 11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

BEIONE12ANBLEE RiEmE
Year ended 31 December 2011 TERER  RIARHGRH ERER S
Salaries Retirement  Equity-settled N
ik and benefit  share option Total
Fees allowances  contributions expense  remuneration
ARETT ARETT ARBETT ARETT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HITES Executive directors:
RERTE Mr. Chen Weirong
(EERTBER) (Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer) - 405 16 4 425
BiEE Mr. Liao Jie = 545 16 4 565
R EE Mr. Xu Chuncheng - 415 16 6 437
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
BRE%E Mr. Cheng Wusheng - - - - _
REMEE Mr. Zhang Zhilin = - - _ _
BERAE Mr. Chen Hao - - - _ _
it Ms. Shuang Mei = - - 4
BUEHTES: Independent non-executive
directors:
A e Mr. Liu Huanbin 68 - _ _ 68
BERE Mr. Pan Wei 68 _ _ _ 6
REREE Mr. Chu Kinwang, Peleus 98 - - - 98
234 1,365 48 18 1,665

RELEMBARRZITRAR - EXAEE
RELEZ S BB RMEETRAR MR
AR 2 B

FR - AEBWES MEHMNTARREMAE
EEABNMAARSE 2 RS HIERBRE
B - REZE2012F % 2011612 A31 H EF
B WEESEERPKAEREEMEHH -

ETESARSAAKERBMEREAR
Al R B TRREE - BRE—TF
BEHNRHBERARMEI - ZFBREZL
FEEERFBHEN G Z2AKRERA
BR)ERRE BHERE - Mt ARBHER
ZEHOBRELXEEME 2 BEERNA -

Mr. Chen is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and his remuneration disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, no remuneration were paid by the Group to
any of the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.

Certain directors were granted share options in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option scheme of the
Company, further details of which are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such options which has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the vesting period was
determined as at the date of grant, and the amount included in
the financial statements is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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12. BEFHET AL 12.

FR - sEEmFeEREEE28(Q0NEF:
3R)EE HFMFRERN EXME1 -
FAN - E#M3BQONEF:28)FEF 3
TRAZNESHFCREEZFMNFBEOT

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2011: three) directors, details of whose emoluments are set
out in note 11 above. Details of the emoluments of the
remaining three (2011: two) non-director and non-chief
executive and highest paid employees for the year are as
follows:

2011 €
2011
AREETIT
RMB’000

2012 &
2012

AR®T T
RMB’000

e KoER Salaries and allowances 2,215 847
RIRAE LR Retirement benefit contributions 12 17
IR 45 & B IR R S Equity-settled share option expense - 1

2,227 865

HEELATHEZIFES  FTREHRNR
=HeEREHAMT

ZZ 1,000,000 7T (2012 £ -

The number of non-director and non-chief executive and
highest paid employees whose emoluments fell within the
following band is as follows:

20114
2011

AEL
Number of
individuals

2012
2012

AE

Number of
individuals

Nil to HK$1,000,000 (2012: Nil to RMB813,000,

Tz AR 813,0007T : 2011: Nil to RMB830,000)

201MF : EEARK

830,000 7T) 2 2

1,000,001 77T 1,500,000 7 HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

(20124 : AR¥813,0017C (2012: RMB813,001 to RMB1,220,000,

= AR¥1,220,0007T : 2011: RMB830,001 to RMB1,245,000)

20114« AR¥ 830,001 7T

= AR#1,245,0007T) 1 =
3 2

FER - BE Q0N E : E)FFBEEALTRIET
BaZNsEafeEERESAERBRBEM
BEEBERE  BlE—PHBEIRTBR
FEHEE31 c MEE2011FE12 A31BILEE -
ZEEREZATFEHEREBHER 2
HRERANER) EREHBEETE - mat
AP BHRER 2 SHEEBEE L XGFEERIE
TREEEkEeTEEMNE ZHEERR -

During the year, no share options (2011: 0) were granted to
non-directors and non-chief executive and highest paid
employees in respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 31 to
the financial statements. For the year ended 31 December
2011, the fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the statements of comprehensive income over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included .in the financial statements is included in the above
non-director and non-chief executive and highest paid
employees’ emoluments disclosures.
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13.

14.

15.

ENBGEE AL (BR)FE

HE2012F12ANBIEEE2ARRIES
ANEEGZE (BB /FBeEERARE
5039,0007C(2011F : F B A R #
33,257,000 7T (42 E%1]))  :ZEBERAAF]
BTSRRI (M EE33(D)) °

O

@ M2012FAJ|I BB EMMAS -
WA E BR R TR AT AR (2011
FE)

b BEMBFERNARRRERAZK

13. (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 includes a loss
of RMB5,039,000 (2011: profit of RMB33,257,000 (restated))
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 33(b)).

14. DIVIDEND
(@  No dividend was paid or proposed during 2012, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the

reporting period (2011: nil).

(b)  Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable

BERFARERZH to the previous financial year, approved and paid during
the year:
2012 £ 2011
2012 2011
ARBT R ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FAHE RS 2B Final dividend in respect of the previous
HFEERAREER financial year, approved and paid
TLBATZ (L (2011 4F ¢ during the year, of nil cents per
3.0784) ordinary share (2011: HK3.0 cents) - 10,239
SR (&8) BR 15. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

BREAX(ER),/ BINSERARAES
AEGEFE(BR) /FBREFREHETT
405,500,000 A% & 388 % (2011 4 : 405,500,000
B 2 T RETE

HE2012FR201MEFE12A3NHILEE - &
RARRBREZTEESRERFEAM
B BEUTEEREE(BR) BT E
BRERA R BRI TERE AR T(E ©

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is
based on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 405,500,000 (2011: 405,500,000) in issue during the
year.

The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise prices of the share options of the
Company are higher than the average market price per share
for the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.
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16. % - BENZE 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AEE The Group

WERR
BF HEREE Hiti e RE hRIRE @t
Office and
Plant and other Motor Construction

Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Total

ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMT:x
RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

RANERAINBR At 31 December 2011 and

0121818 : at 1January 2012:
XA Cost 59,138 344,290 15,004 2,460 24,205 445,097
ZAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (9,466) (130,227) (9,813) (1,408) - (150,914)
BREE Carrying amount 49,672 214,063 5,191 1,052 24,205 294,183
RONE1A1H At 1 January 2012, net of
MR ZFAERAE accumulated depreciation and
impairment 49,672 214,063 5,191 1,052 24,205 294,183
NE Additions 701 11,638 1,851 - 4,566 18,756
BBERA G2 W Acquisitions through business
combination - 1,829 857 113 - 2,799
HE Disposals - (3,080) (538) - (8) (3,626)
R Transfers 22,706 2,71 2,074 - (27,491) -
HRERANR Transfer to investment
(MizE17) properties (note 17) (5,807) - - - - (5,807)
BRAMFER Transfer from investment
(HzE17) properties (note 17) 4,739 - - - - 4,739
FNTERE Depreciation provided
during the year (1,513) (28,834) (1,149) (230) - (31,726)
FRHE Impairment during the year - (1,224) (601) (78) - (1,903)
R2012%128318 At 31 December 2012, net of
MR EFRERAE accumulated depreciation and
impairment 70,498 197,103 7,685 857 1,272 277,415
R2012E128318 : At 31 December 2012;
KA Cost 80,855 357,189 16,224 2,573 1,272 458,113
RAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (10,357)  (160,086) (8,539) (1,716) - (180,698)
REE Carrying amount 70,498 197,103 7,685 857 1,272 277,415

2012 43R » Annual Report 2012 103



B SR R B 5
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE20124E12 4318 |4 E For the year ended 31 December 2012

16. W% - BMERRKRE @) 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
AEE#E) The Group (continued)

HEER
B RS YR "E ERIRE @t
Office and
Plant and other Motor  Construction

Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles i progress Total
ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET:
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R210E12ANBR At 31 December 2010 and

011F1A18 : at 1 January 2011;
AR Cost 56,428 299,35 14,016 1,765 14,996 386,561
LAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (8,205) (104,746) 8,579) (1.177) = (122,707
FHE Carrying amount 18223 194,610 5437 588 14,996 263,854
R201E1A18 - At 1 January 2011, net of
MR EFRERFE accumulated depreciation and
impairment 48,223 194,610 5437 588 14,996 263,854
NE Additions = 43338 988 695 16,816 61,837
(& Disposals - (5,368) - - (643) (6,011
EE Transfers - 6,964 - - (6,964) -
ERERAYE Transfer to investment
(HzE17) properties (note 17) (801) - = = = (801)
BRAMEER Transfer from investment
(HzE17) properties (note 17) 3,511 = = = - 3,511
FRTERE Depreciation provided
during the year (1,261) (25,481) (1,234) (231) - (28,207)
R201E12A318 At 31 December 2011, net of
B2 ERAE accumulated depreciation and
impairment 49,672 214,063 5,191 1,052 24,205 294,183
R2011E128318 : At 31 December 2011:
KA Cost 59,138 344,290 15,004 2,460 24,205 445,097
ZAMERAE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment (9,466) (130,227) 9.813) (1,408) - (150,914)
REE Carrying amount 49,672 214,063 5191 1,052 24,205 294183
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16. W%  BERRE® 16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
b N/NC| The Company

WERER
HihfE
Office and
other

equipment
ARETT
RMB'000

MR2011412 A31H X% 20124 1 A 1H : At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012:

BN Cost 40
REinE Accumulated depreciation (29)
BREE Carrying amount 11
R201241 818 @ KR RAIE At 1 January 2012, net of accumulated depreciation 11
FRTERE Depreciation provided during the year 8)
R20124612 A31H - IR EEHTE At 31 December 2012, net of accumulated depreciation 3
R2012F 12 A31H : At 31 December 2012:
[B%N Cost 40
REtineE Accumulated depreciation (37)
BREE Carrying amount 3

7R20104 12 A31H X% 201141 A 1H : At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011:

BN Cost 40
25 E Accumulated depreciation (22)
AREE Carrying amount 18
R201MFE1H18 @ KR E:HIrE At 1 January 2011, net of accumulated depreciation 18
FRTERE Depreciation provided during the year @)
MN2011E12 A31 8 - 1K 25t E At 31 December 2011, net of accumulated depreciation 11
R2011F 128318 : At 31 December 2011:
RN Cost 40
25T E Accumulated depreciation (29)
BREE Carrying amount 1
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16. V¥ - BERRE @)

PAN/NCITE D)

(@

(b)
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74 B 2 18 4 o0 B AR DA BT
A o

AREEBEHETF - BF R a8 AER
REBE 2 RITERZFHIEHNMIE29

FERE B R M R B AR B A R
SENZHE - R2012412 A 31 BEEAEF
o RI# A AR 4,554,000 AR
#8 431,000 (20114F : DRl A AR
#4,668000L REL) 2B TIEFZ
FRERER o

REZE2012F 12 A31HLEFE - AR
BUEREE N E  AAEEHZE
ERR AR 2 AT B S B TR
A REEERNAEBEZE S ES o
% 5t HE R A R ¥ 1,903,000 7T 2 SR (B &S
B ERGEEEKRERZEMAX
HTHER - HEEE 2 AT B 58T
SRERMBIEAFERLERAE
TE o ANE B 2011 F 3 4 Uk BB B ot Al
SRDEE - B 2011 F I £ TR
(ERZE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Company (continued)

@)

(b)

The Group’s buildings are held under medium term
leases in Mainland China.

Details of the Group's building and plant and machinery
pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans are set out in
note 29.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings
of the Group located in Dongguan and Anhui with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB4,554,000 and
RMB8,431,000 as at 31 December 2012 respectively
(2011: RMB4,668,000 and nil respectively) have not yet
been issued by the relevant PRC authorities.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, as the result
of the poor performance of a manufacturing plant, the
Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of
that manufacturing plant and the related equipment.
These assets are used in the Group’s battery segment.
The review led to the recognition of an impairment loss
of RMB1,903,000, which has been recognised in other
expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The recoverable amount of the
relevant assets has been determined on the basis of fair
value less costs of disposal with reference to active
market. The Group has not acquired battery reportable
segment in 2011. Accordingly, no impairment
assessment was performed in 2011.
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17. REY* 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ARETT
RMB'000

M2011E12A31B K&
R2012F1H18 :

At 31 December 2011 and at 1 January 2012:

%N Cost 27,714
2t E Accumulated depreciation (1,437)
AREA Carrying amount 26,277

R2012F 18 1H 2K

Cost at 1 January 2012, net of accumulated

R BT E depreciation 26,277
B - B ML Transfer from property, plant and equipment 5,807
EEEa R Transfer to owner-occupied property (4,739
FAFTERE Depreciation provided during the year (720)
2012124318 At 31 December 2012 26,625

2012512 318 :

At 31 December 2012:

%N Cost 28,324
2FHE Accumulated depreciation (1,699)
BRI B Carrying amount 26,625

MR2010F 12 A31 B K&
R20ME1H18 -

At 31 December 2010 and at 1 January 2011:

PR R Cost 30,714

2t e Accumulated depreciation (1,043)

FREA Carrying amount 29,671
2011818182 - Cost at 1 January 2011, net of accumulated

MR RFHTE depreciation 29,671
B - BE KRR EBER Transfer from property, plant and equipment 801
R G A Transfer to owner-occupied property (3,511)
FAFTERE Depreciation provided during the year (684)
K201 12 A31H At 31 December 2011 26,277

R201ME12A318 :

At 31 December 2011:

AR Cost 27,714
25 E Accumulated depreciation (1,437)
BRI (B Carrying amount 26,277
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17. BREWMXE &) 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
@ AEEzZEEMFEBETBHBANFEE (@) The Group's investment properties are held under
A7 PR B K BE o medium term leases and are situated in Mainland China.
(b) 20126 12A318  AEBREY (b) At 31 December 2012, the fair value of the Group's
ZRFELHENRET6461,0007T investment properties was approximately
TR IS BEA SR GERMSET RMB76,461,000, based on the valuations performed by
HAER R IRR R EARAHE - Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on income capitalisation
approach.
(€ WMIFE29FTE - B TIREMEDHE (c) Certain investment properties were pledged to secure
FRAER AN B 2 SRITEK © the Group’s bank loans as set out in note 29.
18. T EFRTNKIE 18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
rEE
The Group
2012 & 2011 £
2012 2011
ARET R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
R1ATRZRAEE Carrying amount at 1 January 21,317 21,805
FRNEHEE Amortisation provided during the year (488) (488)
R12 A31 B ZEREE Carrying amount at 31 December 20,829 21,317
BIEETENFIE e MEM  Current portion included in prepayments,

JEWRIA 2 BNERER 5> deposits and other receivables (488) (488)
FERNERE Non-current portion 20,341 20,829
() AEEzHEELHBEPBHEOTE (@) The Group's leasehold lands are held under medium

A7 PR B K BE o term leases and are situated in Mainland China.
(b) WHIFE29FTE - /T LA E TR K (b)  Certain prepaid land lease payments were pledged to
HE MK ERITTERER - bank loans as set out in note 29.
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19.

20.

HiEBLEE

19. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

REH
The Group
2012 F 20114
2012 2011
ARET R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R Cost
®1A1H At 1 January 1,713 1,713
E-Sg: £ Accumulated amortisation
®1A18 At 1 January 516 344
F NS Amortisation provided during the year 172 172
®12H31H At 31 December 688 516
RE{E Carrying amount
R12H31H At 31 December 1,025 1,197
EMEFEERASERB 2EREG - K Other intangible assets represents computer software held by
FEHEY N AGEEEARERZITHRE the Group. The amortisation charged for the year is included in
AR - administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
REB AR ZRE 20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
KAF]
The Company
2012 F 20114
2012 2011
ARET R ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
JE ETRARD - IRAKAME Unlisted shares, at cost 365,001 365,000
FEWENHIB AR RIBAEER 28K The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
RERIEE - LSRRI EAHEARR interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying amounts

R RHERE AT EMEE -

of these amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries approximate their
fair values.
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20. AMIB AR Z2RE (&)

R2012F 12 A318 ' BB R A 2=+ B 75

W

Eyang Management Co., Ltd.
("Eyang Management”)

ERFHER (RE)ERAA
Hong Kong Eyang Holdings (Group)
Co., Ltd.

ERFHAMRAERAA
Hong Kong Eyang Technology
Co., Ltd.

R
SZEyang *

HEMRYL/
B

Place of
incorporation/

business

RBRREE/
ER
BVI/HK

&R/ H
HK/PRC

&R/ H
HK/PRC

E/
PRC/PRC

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2012 are as

follows:

BRTRER/
AR A

Issued and

fully paid-up/
registered capital

10,000 B &A%
Eva:] Ve
50,000 A& & %

1R AT EBR
10,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each/

50,000 authorised
ordinary shares

of US$1 each

10,000 B &
bowa 3l Ve
10,000 B F &

BT ZEE L AR
10,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each/

10,000 authorised
ordinary shares

of HK$1 each

500,000 i &A%
a1l ve
500,000 B =A%

1B AT BR
500,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each/

500,000 authorised
ordinary shares

of HK$1 each

HREA

A 350,000,000 7
Paid-up capital of
RMB350,000,000

110 FBER(£E)ER2F o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

RNF L
REFDH
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
E#
Direct

%

100

&
Indirect

%

100

100

100

TEER
Principal
activities

REER
Investment holding

REZKRREEMLCC
Investment holding and
trading of MLCC

BEMLCC
Trading of MLCC

g RIHEMLCC
Manufacture and
sale of MLCC
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20. AMIB AR Z2RE (&)

REmFHARERER AR
(IR=FH)*

Dongguan Eyang Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (DG Eyang")*

ZHETHETHRBERRA"

Anhui Jineyang Electronic
Technology Co., Ltd.#

NER Management Ltd.

Eyang Energy Management
Co., Limited

EBTHERERAA
Hong Kong Eyang Energy Co., Limited

FMA&YL
EE

Place of
incorporation/

business

E/
PRC/PRC

FE/ T
PRC/PRC

ABELES/
BB
BVI/HK

RBRUES,/
80
BVI/HK

B/ TE
HK/PRC

BRTRAR/
AR A

Issued and

fully paid-up/
registered capital

N

AR 20,000,000 7T
Paid-up capital of
RMB20,000,000

R
AEH5,000,0007T
Paid-up capital of
RMB5,000,000

1iRER
1ET2ERR/
50,000 B &%
1ELEEEBR
1 ordinary share

of US$1 each/
50,000 authorised
ordinary shares

of US$1 each

100 &%
(Eva:] Ve
50,000 B¢ &

1R AT LR
100 ordinary shares
of US$1 each/
50,000 authorised
ordinary shares

of US$1 each

10,000 ix &A%
1€z ERR/
10,000 ix &A%

1R AT EBR
10,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each/

10,000 authorised
ordinary shares

of US$1 each

NG )3
REBAL
Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

EiZ &
Direct  Indirect
% )

= 100

= 100

100 =

100 -

= 100

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

TEER
Principal
activities

MELBEREEMLCC
Lease of properties and
trading of MLCC

FE RIEEMLCC
Manufacture and
sale of MLCC

REER
Investment holding

REER
Investment holding

REER
Investment holding
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20. RMB AR ZRE (©) 20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

FMA&YL BRIRAR/ PN 20
EEMY AR A REBAL
Place of Issued and Percentage of TEEK
incorporation/ fully paid-up/  equity attributable  Principal
business registered capital  to the Company activities
E# CiE
Direct  Indirect
% %
MR R ERAR AR * HE/FE fERBRA = 100 REER
Shenzhen Weichang New Energy PRC/PRC 3,000,00075 7T Investment holding
Co., Ltd.* Paid-up capital of
HK$3,000,000
wmFEERERAR HE/ BRRA = 100 BUEREESH
Shenzhen Eyang New Energy PRC/PRC AR #15,000,0007% Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.* Paid-up capital of sale of battery
RMB15,000,000
ZHBRIERERAR" HE/HE BB = 100 BUERHEESH
Anhui Weichang New Energy PRC/PRC AR #5,000,0007C Manufacture and
Co., Ltd.* Paid-up capital of sale of battery
RMB5,000,000
BERRIAEBRAR B/ H 10,000 RS - 100 BHFUELS
(BRRERY) HK/PRC 1AL LB/ Trading of mobile phones
Hong Kong Weichang NER Co., Ltd. 10,000 B &A%
(in voluntary winding up) BT EEERR
10,000 ordinary shares
of HK$1 each/
10,000 authorised
ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
* ZERPRBIKY 2 AR BINEBERE - @ These companies were established in the PRC in the form of
wholly-foreign-owned enterprises.
5 ZERFPBEXLZ AR BFEALIEER 5 These companies were established in the PRC as PRC domestic-
= invested companies.
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21. & 21. INVENTORIES
RER
The Group
2012 F 2011 4
2012 2011
AR® T ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EM R Raw materials 14,858 19,340
ERE Work in progress 21,537 20,236
B o Finished goods 84,740 71,966
121,135 111,542
T B R Provision against slow-moving inventories (10,772) (8,480)
110,363 103,062
(@) HERAEEIWIABRZZEESESY (@)  The analysis of the amounts of inventories recognised as
T : an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows:
2012 F 2011 &8
2012 2011
AR® T ARETIT
RMB'000 RMB'000
EHEFEEZREE Carrying amount of inventories sold 473,998 417,333
FER=T Write-down of inventories* 8,240 1,732
482,238 419,065
% FERLCEEESAEZEKEER Z The write-down of inventories are included in “Other
[HMFES BT o expenses” on the face of the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.
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22. EWEZRAEEKREE

. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

REE

The Group
2012 & 20114
2012 2011
AR¥T T ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB’000
FEUE SRR Trade receivables 185,396 137,301
e Bills receivables 45,118 27,112
230,514 164,413
B RE Less: Impairment (8,641) (7,733)
221,873 156,680

AEBEAXFZE 5T AURERS
T-EEH-—RR2ESEA - BFP
RERREER ASEHREERE
WRRIRA BRI - B EE K
RUBEEERBRRERE - BEEE
NEERRSBHAERR  BEER
PERABRE

Fr E W IR S R RS BR B RT 60 2
180 H W EIHA -

RBERR REZAHR/ELEZE
WE SRR BREEDITIT

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit periods are generally two to five
months. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy to
minimize its credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by management. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

The bills receivables were all due within 60 to 180 days
from the end of the reporting period.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period based on the invoice date is as
follows:

AEH

The Group
2012 20114
2012 2011
ARET R ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000
90HA Within 90 days 132,996 117,730
912180 H 91 to 180 days 42,171 11,145
181£ 360 H 181 to 360 days 1,762 693
1825 110 2 years 1,239 573
HiE3F Over 3 years 7,228 7,160
185,396 137,301
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22 FEWESERIFIREVRERE®) 22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
(d MI|EHR REBZHL BB AEE (d) An aged analysis of the hills receivables as at the end of
2R 7 BRE DT ¢ the reporting period based on bills issued date is as
follows:
REE
The Group
2012 & 20114
2012 2011
AR® T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
90HA Within 90 days 30,354 16,840
912180 H 91 to 180 days 14,764 10,239
181 £ 360 H 181 to 360 days - 33
45,118 27,112
€ EWESESREREEFNT ()  The movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

TEE
The Group
2012 F 20114
2012 2011
ARET T ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
®1A1H At 1 January 7,733 8,534
BEERBEEE Impairment losses recognised 1,273 410
NERIEEEE] Reversal of impairment (365) (1,211)
124318 At 31 December 8,641 7,733
HA FEWE SRR ERE A Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
RIESHERE IS 5 R 2k B A R receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
8,641,0007T(20114E : AFR#¥7,733,000 receivables of RMB8,641,000 (2011: RMB7,733,000) with a
7o) - HEEEE A AR 8,641,000 carrying amount of RMB8,641,000 (2011: RMB7,733,000).
(20114 : AR¥7,733,0007T) ° &5 The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
B R E FE U 5 BE = B T BG B AR IR 26 customers that were in financial difficulties and are
CEEARE BTHETMH . REEW doubtful. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
iy ) e = S R (e R = ) credit enhancements over these balances.
s EE#EE -
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22. EWESRAREKREE#)

) WIHEHHXARRERREZEKE S ()
R KW 2 BRI T -

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

rEE
The Group
2012 %
2012
ARET R
RMB'000

20114
2011
AREFTT
RMB'000

EWE SRR Trade receivables

15 A 280 HA 7 4 3R SR B Neither past due nor impaired 159,170 111,033

#HEf 90 H Less than 90 days past due 15,140 18,351

#HI91E 180 H 91 to 180 days past due 175 184

#HA181 2360 H 181 to 360 days past due 2,186 =

B HARR @ 1 F Over 1 year past due 84 -
176,755 129,568

AEE
The Group
2012 & 2011 4F
2011
AREFIT
RMB'000

2012

ARBT T
RMB’000

Bills receivables
Neither past due nor impaired

YRS

i) A 280 HA 78 L3RR (B 45,118 27,112

fe) AR 380 A 71 B o3RRI (B 2 FE KR B 2
BRTRAEFAR  REXNTHTE
EHTTIRRCER ©

EBHBESELRBEZEBEE SRR
HPLBIRFPAR  HERAKE
R R - RBAELER &
AREFRREGEEERYIEEANN
g AnFEsnDRsr 28kE -
D bt B R h UL S B BR A R (B -
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Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

The trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers
that have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.
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23. ANRE REREMEWRIR

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

rEE PN
The Group The Company
20125 20114 20125 2011 &

2012 2011 2012 2011
ARETR ARBTT ARBTR ARBTET

RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

L He Commission receivable 972 = - -
REEEEWIE Indemnification asset receivable 8,292 = - =
B R EWRIE Loans and receivables 9,264 = - _
P B Z T8 I8 Prepayments to suppliers 3,626 4,535 - -
e Deposits 710 791 - _
AR Prepaid expenses 3,244 5,317 65 68
T A E TS FIA Prepaid land lease payment 488 438 - -
o Ath fE U FR IR Other tax receivables 15,134 13,531 - =

32,466 24,662 65 68
B Impairment (386) (386) - =

32,080 24,276 65 68

24, TEERITA

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EE
The Group
2012 F 2011 £
2012 2011
ARET R AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEBHELH — A TE Interest rate swap contracts
PTET A — derivatives under fair value - 161
(@ M20129 128318 » KREBEET[ K (@ At 31 December 2012, the Group did not have
HEEFREHEH o outstanding interest rate swap contracts.
(b) 201M%F128318 ' TEEREL D2 (b)  The net unrealised fair value gain/(loss) on interest rate

FIRREA N2 R ERATEFR
2%/ (BB ERGA ZERERAK -

MR2011F12 A31H @ REB AT RS
B R HE OB R EI7C) I’
= o ZEAAR 2012 FEIH] o

swap contracts as at 31 December 2011 which are not
qualified as hedges has been accounted for in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Details of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts

held by the Group as at 31 December 2011 are disclosed
in note 37(c). These contracts expire in 2012.
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25. HERBITHEBREEHEEITHE 25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND
o

E PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
rEHE
The Group
2012 £ 2011
2012 2011
ARET R ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RS RIBTEE Cash and bank balances 48,018 65,887
FHIE R Time deposit 40,677 125,772
88,695 191,659

B ERENEE R =R Less: Pledged bank deposits for bills payable

2 BIERIRITER and letters of credit (8,453) (13,927)

ERIRTER Z B HKE Pledged bank deposits for bank loans
RI7F R (BT EE29()) (note 29(a)) (32,224) (111,845)
48,018 65,887

i WEERRBIEA R DR Add: Bank deposits with original maturity of

3M@B Z BT : less than three months when acquired:
ERENZEREHE Pledged for bills payable and
letters of credit 3,223 -
ERBITER Pledged for bank loans 25,863 4,600
AP REERANVIES Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated
RIESZEY statement of cash flows 77,104 70,487

¥ /N
The Company
2012 % 2011 €

2012 2011
AR®T T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000

B4 RIRIT4E Cash and bank balances 402 378
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25 RERBITEBRREERRITE

S
(&)

@)

RBERR AEBZRE RBTE
BETEBHTRAARBIE  BAR
#62,829,0007C (201145 : A R ¥
169,856,0007T) ° AREERTA] B B 1%
BEME AW RIBRBREEZ
CONE S ARG ) R HETE ~ 1B R E
EEBETE) AEBEAEREREE
THNEXEIE 2 IRITHBARE o

25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (continued)

@)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's cash and
bank balances and time deposit denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB62,829,000 (2011: RMB169,856,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

(b)y LIRS DIREFHRITERFZRZ (b)  Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
SEENF K BEENF B o 55 HE S HRfZ 2k HR daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
BALIMAZE1ENE  WiIRERIE made for varying periods of between three months to
HATE BRTF 3R R BRER A B, o SR1T 45 3 one year, and earn interest at the respective short term
REEBRTERFRRAEER T2 time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged bank
RITAN - e RIBITEKEBEEEE deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks. The
TRz EmEEEATEEE - carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances and the

pledged bank deposits approximate their fair values.
26. ENESRARENSEE 26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
rER
The Group
2012 F 2011 £
2012 2011
AR TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
e B SRR Trade payables 118,022 69,439
FEEE Bills payables 1,418 _
119,440 69,439
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26. ERESRARESNEE @)

@ RBERAR RERAHR/EEZRE @
NEZERRZREDITAT

26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
the reporting period based on the invoice date is as
follows:

TEH
The Group
2012 20114
2012 2011
ARBT ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
90 HRK Within 90 days 84,386 65,352
91Z=180H 9110 180 days 31,693 3,433
181360 B 181 to 360 days 1,077 13
1504 1102 years 194 623
838 2 Over 2 years 672 18
118,022 69,439
b ENEZERXRASRE —HKN30OE () The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
120 BIE 1T © normally settled within 30 to 120 days.
© REREHAR REBFLHAHAEE (c) Anaged analysis of the bills payables as at the end of the

ZRNRREZREDITT

Within 90 days
91 to 180 days
181 to 360 days

90BN
91£180H
1812 360 H

reporting period based on bills issued date is as follows:

M
The Group
2012 F

20114
2012 2011
AR® T AREETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

629 =
668 =
121 =

1,418 =
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27. EZEWA - EstERARHEMES 27. DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND
I8 OTHER PAYABLES

TEE PN
The Group The Company
20125 20114F 2012 £ 2011 4F

2012 2011 2012 2011
ARBTRT AREBTT ARBTR ARETET
RMB’'000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000

EstER Accruals 7,028 8,036 2,798 1,241
iANE R Salary payable 11,620 9,359 - =
FERTEREm (FiEa) Consumables payable (note a) - 4,127 - =
WY - BB K& Other payables for acquisition of

sz HMRERFIE  property, plant and equipment 10,332 10,224 - =

LA SERC AT 2 2 Financial liabilities measured

SRAE at amortised cost 28,980 31,746 2,798 1,241
RIEWA (FIEE28) Deferred income (note 28) 1,055 1,055 - -
BEER Deposits from customers 1,414 318 - -
R T #REA (MisEb)  Grants from PRC government

(note b) - 1,080 - -
REBR M (fisEc) Provision of warranty (note c) 2,534 = - _
E b FIE Other tax payable 11,866 2,081 - -
45,849 36,280 2,798 1,241
BT Notes:
@) ZZEARNMEAFEERREREMEY (@  The amount represents unsettled purchase amounts for parts
REEIRE S o consumed in a machine upgrade project.
(b) ZEIEASBEBATR2009E5H 2 ) - (b)  The amount represents the fund granted by the PRC government
EHAET(RHEE  AEBAFRZEE in 2009 and the Group can utilize such grants when certain
B o RELZ 2012512 AN BILEE » &~"&E conditions are complied with. The Group fulfilled those
B M RZEE W EERAEMILA o requirements during the year ended 31 December 2012 and

recognised as other revenue.
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27. IEFEW A - EFTE AR HEMFE( 27. DEFERRED INCOME, ACCRUALS AND

I (%) OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
BisE : (&) Notes: (continued)
(0 IEREBEEEHSWTET : (c)  Analysis of movement of provision for warranty:
REE
The Group
2012 2011 4
2012 2011
AR%®TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
®1A1H At 1 January - -
FARNBERE Provision made during the year 2,534 =
EBAKIE Amount utilized - _
MW12A31H At 31 December 2,534 _

EREGAREBASENDREBHEA L
ZREBEEEREZ R KB GER 2 E
EREMGBRE  REEDRELRE
BEEEDL  ARHRM  ZERFEE
KEMPEERLDRZRAETE  %HH
AR TR °
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The provision for warranty represents the present value of the
directors’ best estimate of the future outflow of economic
benefits that will be required under the Group's obligations for
warranties under the signed agreements. The estimate has been
made on the basis of historical warranty trends and may vary as
a result of new materials, altered manufacturing processes or
other events affecting product quality.
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28. IELEWA 28. DEFERRED INCOME
B Bh Government grants
FEE
The Group
2012 % 2011 4
2012 2011
ARBT ARBETIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R1A1BZE@EE Carrying amount at 1 January 4,248 4,274
FERE Granted during the year - 1,029
ZEEWR A (3% 7) Released as income (note 7) (1,055) (1,055)
RN12 831 HZEmEE Carrying amount at 31 December 3,193 4,248

BIEERIEWRA - EETE R Current portion included in deferred income,

& HibRE N EoE 2 BNEAEr s accruals and other payables (note 27)
(P&E27) (1,055) (1,055)
JEBNERER Non-current portion 2,138 3,193

KRB AR B ERERE
HEEMICCZEEBMELRE - BT
AV EBFIRIEBE AEMLCC 2 & EMBM
B MR AIE — RIS - B R B EA IR -

The government grants have been received from various
government authorities specifically for the purchases of
qualified plant and equipment in respect of the production of
MLCC. Except for the condition that the government grants
must be specifically used for the purchases of qualified plant
and equipment in respect of the production of MLCC, there are
no other conditions attached to these grants.
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29. SRITER 29. BANK LOANS
rEE
The Group

20125 20114F

2012 2011

ARET T ARBTT

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

BERBEAR—FAEE Secured and repayable within one year 144,599 261,590
(@ AEEBZRITERKRITEEHNAT (@) The Group's bank loans and bank facilities are secured

iR

() AEESFEAAR32224,000
JC (20114 + A R % 111,845,000
TL) 2B TRITER - AR
TEREBRBEEBRITERE
FRBRIKIR

(i) =FEHAARE17,618,0007T(2011
FB)IZETRERE - K
HREERE/RBERBRITE
RIRBERRIEIR - I

(i) AEBER2012F12ANBZE
TEF  BERK:SS TS
BNFEREEYE  REED
B A AR #31,332,0007C © A
B #104,717,0007T + A R #&
1,240,0007tT & A R # 22,757,000
TTQROME: DRl B AR
30,085,0007T * AR# 61,583,000
7T - AR#1,270,000 TR AR
25,698,000 7T ) ©

() AIEHFETE L A R ¥ 30,000,000 b)
7t (20114 + AFR# 160,000,0007T) K
A B #114,599,0007C (20114F © A R
#5 101,590,000 7T ) 7 Bl A A R # K 55

TCHIE
© WITEFEEEREAFEREE - ©
() |ITERZEBEFBNENF1.11% @

Z£7.22% (2011 4F : 3.36% & 6.72%) ©
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by:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

certain of the Group's bank deposits amounting to
RMB32,224,000 (2011: RMB111,845,000). The
pledged bank deposits will be released upon the
settlement of the relevant bank loans;

certain bills receivables amounting to
RMB17,618,000 (2011: nil). The pledged bills
receivables will be released upon the settlement of
the relevant bank loans; and

certain buildings, plant and machinery, prepaid
land lease payments and investment properties of
the Group with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB31,332,000, RMB104,717,000, RMB1,240,000
and RVIB22,757,000 respectively as at 31 December
2012 (2011: RMB30,085,000, RMB61,583,000,
RMB1,270,000 and RMB25,698,000 respectively).

The secured bank loans of approximately RMB30,000,000
(2011: RMB160,000,000) and RMB114,599,000 (2011:
RMB101,590,000) are denominated in RMB and United
States dollars, respectively.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans approximate
their fair values.

The effective floating interest rate of bank loans is 1.11%-—
7.22% (2011: 3.36%—6.72%).
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29. SRITER &) 29. BANK LOANS (continued)
) AEEBUTRIZEZRITES : (e)  The Group has the following undrawn banking facilities:
rEE
The Group
2012 20114
2012 2011
ARET T ARBTT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
EEAE — 1 ERNEW Floating rate — expiring within one year 244,502 54,826
30. FEMBMRRKFPHFAEH 30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
KEE The Group
(a) ELEHEEE (@) Deferred tax assets

it

kil
G EYERER 4% BER
Amortisation kit REEEEE
ofcomputer  WEFERE EUFEHE  Impairment
software in Provision  Impairment of items

excess of tax against  oftradeand  of property, FEsrER
allowed  slow-moving other plant and Accrued @it
depreciation inventories  receivables  equipment expense Total
AEBTT  ARMTT  ARETT  ARETRT  ARETRT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ROME1A18 At January 2011 8 1011 1,281 ) - 2302
ERREARTENGERAE/(31%)  Credited/(charged) to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income uring the year () 20 (120 (39) %3 30
RONENRANARNEF18 AL31 December 2011 and 1 lanuary 2012 4 1271 1,161 3 23 2702
ERREARENGERAE/(30%)  Creditcharged) to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income during the year (o 319 137 = (263) 189
R012E128318 At 31 December 2012 - 1,590 1,298 3 = 2801
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30. FEMBRRRPBAEHR @)

30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)
REH (&) The Group (continued)
(b)y EZEBEARE (b) Deferred tax liabilities
BB
Withholding
taxes
ARETTT
RMB'000
R201MEFE1 18 At 1January 2011 5,067
ERREE I HEINR Charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the year 538
R201MFE12 A31H X At 31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012
201241 A1 R 5,605
FARGA2ERERNG Charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the year 405
2012612 A31H At 31 December 2012 6,010
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BIERESEMGRE  INRIREE
WA B REER Y HINEIRE D EE
B2 1% B BIR R 10% B Bt R U T8 40
B o sZRER 200851 A1 BAEAERL -
WA 2007 F12 A31 B 28 - f#
R B K B B A% AN IR B B TR LA
BERFERKEZEE - A EASEKEN
TE - REBEARE A% - Bt -
A5 B A B K Rk 2 2 B B A R B
72008 F 1 A1 BEFAK 2 BF 5 K%
B BRNTEIF

R2012F 12 A31H @ R ETAEE
MEBARBERZATRRARNITES
RNELERIE B BER T ERQ20114F
) o

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2012, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2011: nil) for taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain of the Group's subsidiaries.
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30. HEMBERRRIOFBH &) 30. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

REE (4)
() REAZELEHEEE

R2012F12A318 ' XEBEEARBH
i A &5 18 49 A R % 7,740,000 7T (2011
& AR¥3,059,0007T) 1518 1% 38 17
FAESFAEM ° TR AREBER
EREER KRBT A g R AR K
JERBAEAB B IEEE  WER
EF IR AR A I AR R 1R (2011
FoE) o

/|

3. REEFEUROGAER 2R 5

RRmpEE —RBERE B ([%ETE) - [
UAKEZERIMELERZAER2EE
REHEEE LR - ZAt B2 ARERSEER
@A EBEMKE R RN ERFREGE
8 E2BaFREES  EREREL
ERISRBAOAL (O AEBERKE QR
MEFHREFES(BRBIUIFRITE
£ OAKREEAKE AR ERKFEE
BR (A A BT B 2 B/ E a2k AR FS
HIER : @ AKREEAKERRNETS - B
B XBHALEH  BFFE - ABF K
B AR AAREEERKERFRHER
At IR RBSREMSIRSUT AR - B
A ERFEMBRBHALHER  RE@IE
At A £ BB 8 A & o BXFT 8170 2007
1M A30B £ MERIFWEHKIERT » H
B EZERI0OFRAER

31.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)

The Group (continued)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately RMB7,740,000 (2011:
RMB3,059,000) which will expire within 5 years under the
current tax legislation. No deferred tax was recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position during
the year (2011: nil) since it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include (a) any
proposed employee, any full-time or part-time employee, or a
person for the time being seconded to work full-time or part-
time for any member of the Group; (b) a director or proposed
director (including an independent non-executive director) of
any member of the Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder
of any member of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services
to any member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant,
business or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent
or representative of any member of the Group; (f) a person or
entity that provides design, research, development or other
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to any member of the Group; and (g) an associate of
any of the foregoing persons. The Scheme became effective on
30 November 2007 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
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31. REZGEURDAE#R 2RSS 31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

RAFEREZTEIE R E B RITERET
FESNE R AR B B At B2 R B =
RITEE T E B AT ER A T ET
MRERHEE - TREBAARETRNHE
BITAAN30% » BEFRIFZATEI Al TR HA
ATEBEREESHE —KTREAZENA
NEMEfA B B A B BT 10% ° RME] 12
EAHRE - AIS1T T B R A ERSEE
MRERNEE LR ABAR BERKRED 3
TTROE1% E— TR HBEZ ERNE
PR R R AR R & LA ©

R2012F12 8318 @ BIRAEETZIIE T af 4
BE1T 2 IRAD #2853 16,300,000 A% » 1R R &
R2012F 12 A31 H 2B BITIRALI 4% ©

FAARRESE  THERK T ERRKKRE
FEENEABEA TR EBRE  BAFBY
FRITEFFAMERT ATHETT © BHN R
ER12(E A AR ARARR EZRREE
MIFHTEFRIRENEMHEA LR TH
ERRBAE - MBBARRERRRED BT
B3 #90.1% sk AR (B (3 % B EIA R R D
BA%5H 5 ) 838 5,000,000 8 TH - BAFRE
RBERAE EREHERTT AIETT o

BREBRENENTTNELHABER2BAR
EARAXNE K 1ETHRBAREBRE
BEM - REZTEREHNBRENTTES
HARRBEFEE @ WA TRBEHRFAN
ERmREEREZNRBHET10FAR
ZaTEIE B (NP EE)BER -

TRANSACTION (continued)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share options
granted and yet to be exercised under any other schemes shall
not exceed 30% of the Company’s issued share capital from
time to time. The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The total number of securities available for issue under the
share option scheme as at 31 December 2012 was 16,300,000
shares which represented approximately 4% of the issued
share capital of the Company at 31 December 2012.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted under the Scheme is
determinable by the directors of the Company, and
commences after a certain vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options or the expiry of the Scheme, if earlier.
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3. REZELURGAER 2R Z @) 31.

BRENTEERESETE - BIEERNK
T=FEW&RENARRKRMOEE : ()EH
BREREE B ARRRMDEB A THE :
R (iif) 254X H B #A0 5 (84 % A AR AR
FERSEZX P H SR (B 3R P ¥ T 25 B 52 P I T

BRREYEE TRHA ABRREHNEEREX
G LIREMRER

5 B A RS OR B R S R 1T (E B AR 42
AR -

@)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than whichever the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares; (ii) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant of the share options; and (iii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

(@  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the
end of the reporting period:

2012 &
2012

BREEE
Number
of options

2011 4
2011
fERR S B
Number

of options

BRATREE

Exercise
price
per share

171 EA Exercise period
0MNERRAEHHE 2011 results announcement

201711 H29H

date to 29 November 2017

HK$1.052/87T 16,300,000 17,200,000
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31.

3. BEEEUROGAERNIRZ #) EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

(b) EEZEE RIETFIITEENT

TRANSACTION (continued)

(b)  The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

2012 011%F
2012 2011
5k RIBHE Bk REERHE
LS AR IS AJE1T
e g C| It R EE
Weighted Number of Weighted Number of
average shares average shares
exercise issuable exercise issuable
price under price under
per share options per share options
R1A1RHARTHE Outstanding at 1 January HK$1.05238 70 17,200,000  HK$1.0525 7T 18,400,000
2 Forfeited HK$1.052 & 1T (900,000)  HK$1.052/7C (1,200,000)
R 12 A 31 BRATTE QOutstanding at 31 December HK$1.052 % 1T 16,300,000  HK$1.052787C 17,200,000
R12 B 31 BATE Exercisable at 31 December HK$1.052 7 16,300,000  HK$1.052/7C 17,200,000

R 20124512 A 31 H i 7k 17 18 B8 A% 4
ZATEEA1.0528 7T (2011 4F : 1.052
BT HINET S TANFERR49
F (20114 : 5.94F) »

ARTTEREBTTEMBRESE ARTARE
BV BT

BRENE L B BE W1 BF 2 B A E1T
% - MR B BEFm2BF - 3BF M4
BE 2 BRAIBRITES S D RIZEARK
REH) 60% ~ 30% 2 10% ©

WARH B m2E  3ERIFEZH
ANEEEFE2008E 12 A3 B IEFE 2 RE
POF A BRE = 2007 F 12 A31 B IEFEE
IR DR 18% + 2N & B & = 2009 F 12 A 31
HIEFE 7 &8z A B8R E ZE 2008 F 12
A31BIEFEEINTDR18% « RAREEH
Z2010F 12 A31 B I F & 2 KBZFF) B
A E 2009412 A31 B IEF TR
18% + 75 Al 7R ERTTEREARAE -

The options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had an
exercise price of HK$1.052 (2011: HK$1.052) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.9 years
(2011: 5.9 years).

The number of share options that can be exercised during the
exercise periods is dependent on the operating results of the
Group, details of which are as follows:

The share options may not be exercised on the first anniversary
of the date of grant and may be conditionally exercised up to
60%, 30% and 10% of the total share options on the second,
third and fourth anniversaries of the date of grant respectively.

The share options may only be fully exercised in the event that
the audited net profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2008 increases not less than 18% as compared to
that for the year ended 31 December 2007, the audited net
profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009
increases not less than 18% as compared to that for the year
ended 31 December 2008 and the audited net profit of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 increases not less
than 18% as compared to that for the year ended 31 December
2009 at the anniversary of the second, third and fourth years
respectively from the date of grant.
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31.

32.

EREEURGAEBRNIR S @)

fid LAt R RBEN B BRI F R K - AR A HE
{2 7] DA Lt B8 X HE ) 80% /RMRTTE © ARITIE
AR T R YR BRI EREEE
ERBERFRHBITEE -

HE201F12AMNBLEFE  ZEETR
2008 FH H RN F NI T 2 BB EERER
B AZ (20114 : 59,0008 7T © HER
AR#50,0007T) °

EERKER
MR AEEE

AEBRESBCRHIEATESFENENNA
REBRBIEGDE EME 8RR HIER
Berral([aBEestsll) - ®ESER—
ERBYSEATENEBERERESH
gl o BIFRESE  BEEREBDFIAR
B BB A Z 5% [FEHSI1E T (58 AR
B8 A W A BA25,0005 T (201246 A Bl &
20,0007 7 ) & LR o [mar S 1E H /4 3 ED

B -

AEBETF2N—EHPEBRFRLIOERE
BIRKRE &I - AR E T BB A RA
EEHZMERERRKENE - HBL
A9 AR TE KA 2 4.9% AR (K48 A5t &
BRRTIERNES - AEEBRLERAS
A BIH M — B AR BN E IR -

T B A48 Ak 2N A R % 3,254,000 7T (2011
F : 1,585,0007T) AN BREE 20129 12
A3MBIEFERMBBEAM 2 HR - R
2012412 A31H » WEE AL U & 58] K
SHANE B 2 RREF (2011 6F « £8]) ©

31.

32.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (continued)

The share options may only be exercised up to 80% of the
share options as set out in the above in the event that the
above conditions are not met in the respective years. The
unexercised share options may be accumulated and fully
exercised in the next year in the event that the above
conditions are met in the respective years.

The Group recognised a share option expense of nil (2011:
HK$59,000, equivalent to RMB50,000) during the year ended 31
December 2012 for the share options granted in 2008 and
vested during the year.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000 (HK$20,000 prior
to June 2012). Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a state-managed retirement
benefit scheme operated by the government of the PRC. The
employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute 4.9% of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of RMB3,254,000 (2011:
RMB1,585,000) represents contributions paid to these schemes
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012. As at 31
December 2012, there were no material forfeitures available to
offset the Group's future contributions (2011: nil).
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33. EX Kk
(@) =<

(i) EERBBRITERE

SERE
1,000,000,000 % & f%

33. CAPITAL AND RESERVE
(@) Share capital
(i) Authorised and issued share capital

2012 £
2012

2011 €
2011
FABT
HK$'000

TR
HK$°000

Authorised:
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

H{E0.018 7T~ & imAk HK$0.01 each 10,000 10,000
EETREE Issued and fully paid:
405,500,000 f& 405,500,000 ordinary shares
FREBE0OBTZ of HK$0.01 each
il 4,055 4,055
HERARBTFT Equivalent to RMB'000 3,824 3,824

ERkBEE NARERTEE
AR - YR BERRODELRR
AERLFE—RERRE- A
ERREHARBZHBTEER
BRIEHERN -

(i) WEBBERETERITZRG

R E = 2012 4F &% 2011412 A 31
BIEFE  BEREARGZE
AR HERT BB TAR D ©

SNBREAE THAARBAR
R —RRE BB ZAERN - RS
AR 18 K JE i B R AT (8 2 BE AL
ZARFR - AR ARRE R A 2 —
FHB DERNPHERERME
gl e

(b) f#&
x%EH
AEERAFERBAFE S BES

BLEBEHRUBHRRT 2 GRAERE
BRZ25 -

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled one vote per share at meetings of
the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011, no shares were issued under the Company's
share option scheme.

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Terms of the
unexpired and unexercised share options at the
end of the reporting period and further details of
these options are set out in note 31 to the financial
Statements.

(b) Reserves
The Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the financial statements.
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33. EXx Rk f#E @) 33. CAPITAL AND RESERVE (continued)
(b) @ (b) Reserves (continued)
RAT The Company
BATEE AL
Attributable to owners of the Company
K BRE EXR3 Bk
HER it i FHRE

& Share EfBR Share  Exchange ZREE  Proposed AR

Share  premium  Contributed option  fluctuation  Accumulated final Total

capital account surplus reserve reserve losses  dividend equity

\RETT  ARETT  ARETR ARETn ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 i RVMBO00  RMB'000

RONE1A18 « MR 25 At 1 January 2011, s previously stated 3824 104,657 364952 5082 (6,508) (67,548) 10,239 414,658

RENARZ2EEEME) Restatement due to reallocation to

acoumulated losses - - - - 6,508 (6,508) - -

RONE1R18 - BEF| At 1 January 2011, as restated 3824 104,657 364,952 5042 = (74,056) 10,239 414,658
ERFER Profit for the year and total comprehensive

FR2ENEEE income for the year - - - - - 257 - B

g g RRER S Equity-settled share option arrangements kil - - = 50 - - - 50

BRUERE Share options forfeited - - - (30 - a7 = -

ER00ERSRS Final 2010 dividends declared - - - - - - (10239 (10239

RAME12A318 At31 December 2011 3 10T 34,952 4785 - (40492) - B

R012E1818 - IkAI25] At 1 January 2012, as previously restated 384 104,657 34,952 4785 9902 (30,590) - B3I

ENARZ2EEEME] Restatement due to reallocation to

accumulated losses - - - - 9,902 (9.902) - -

RN12E1A1R - B&F| At 1 January 2012, as restated 381 104,657 34,952 4785 - (40,492) - I
EREERENZERR Loss for e year and total comprenensive

ot loss for the year - - - - - (5,039) - (5,039)

ERMRRE Share options forfited - - - 229 . b3 - -

RA2E1RANA At 31 December 2012 382 104,657 364,952 4,560 = 45,306) = 432,687
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33. EXRKRE#
(c) REZMEERAR

(i) KRtIEE

RERHESRBEGER)
AR B Z A B A 72k T A
RAERR - EEEREERIRAS
EHE  AREAEFRIIBER
BEEBHOEHES -

(i) EHBER
AEE
AEE 2 EYRLRTE

— BRESEEHCKRENE
AAZBEMEEREHA
BREB HI AR A AR AR A i 3%
TZERMEEZEZBAR
#& 203,536,000 7T,

— EARETBIEERER
Y IR 2 0 7 e 2
AR 2,823,0007T

— REEZTHERIITESE
BEARARYE
BNDEEZEBEMARE
1,774,0007C 5 K&

— ABERBRIITTHERE
RARREKB AR 8
REE DR - RIERRE
BEELEZERARK
9,468,000 7T °

AL A]
RRBIZEBBRERBEEREE

AR BARZREKRAELR
AIEBRITRMEE CZHE -

33. CAPITAL AND RESERVE (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(0]

(ii)
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Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the
date on which a dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Contributed surplus
The Group
The contributed surplus of the Group represents:

— the difference of RMB203,536,000 being the
excess of the nominal value of the shares and
contributed surplus of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group
reorganisation over the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor;

— the deficit of RMB2,823,000 arising from the
acquisition of DG Eyang from the non-
controlling shareholders of DG Eyang;

— the deficit of RMB1,774,000 arising from the
disposal of Shenzhen Eycom Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“SZ Eycom”) to the related party; and

— the credit of RMB9,468,000 arising from the
deemed contribution from the shareholders
when acquiring Shenzhen Eyang Energy
Company Limited and its subsidiary (the
"Energy Group”).

The Company

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the cost of investments in
subsidiaries pursuant to the group reorganization
and the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued.
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33. EXRKRE#
(c) REZMERBAZ®E)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

BRERE

BREREEERETEZER
HERAE 2 A TER D - &S
B THAR IR BT EE 2(0)() A B8 A
B fp RER 2 (k2 & 5T R HE

SMNE R B IR P A R B B INETS
MEHMERMELEZINEEZR - %
AR IB P AT 2(0) PR B2 B AT IR
RERIE o

EERE

BIBBEAFBER  AEBEET
F IR B A AR H 10% BR L&
m ) (AR SH BT FEEE) H &
BERTERE  AEREEEMR
N2 50% ° fEEEE AR MR
DR BRIEL - LHHEE Bt
MR R AR RET
B 18 s 1 N B B A /) 2 5k AR
N ERBTILEH1E - B8R
REFEM AR Z 25% ©

33. CAPITAL AND RESERVE (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iv)

(V)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion of
the fair value of unexercised share options granted
that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 2(q)(ii).

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(u).

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries in the Group are required to
appropriate 10% of their profit after tax (after
offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory reserve
until such reserve reaches 50% of their registered
capital. Transfers to the reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to shareholders.
Upon approval by relevant authorities, the statutory
reserve can be utilised to offset the accumulated
losses or to increase the registered capital of the
subsidiary, provided that the balance after such
issue is not less than 25% of its registered capital.
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33. EXRKHE =) 33. CAPITAL AND RESERVE (continued)

(d EXRER (d) capital management

AEEEAEEZETEBNERRERA
SERERBELERBRFRENERL
o AXFHEBLERBRREEZR
Rt »

NEE B B IR A AR A W AR IR AR IR
MEBEEIEHAE - ZHFRAE
BARGEE AEEXTABRERR
BT - MREFEEARNKEITH
f& 10 o & 220124 & 2011512 A 31
HIEFE EREARZBZE - BEKK
BriEeEs -

AEBENEEABHLREREAN &
=B B R AVERSF R A i b
BFFE - B FRRRITER B
NESEFARENRE - HMEMK
BREFER(TRBRLERA - BF
TF3k ~ P BB B R IR (R ) 3R
ERBAEFEYE - BB A QA
BREAZEEER(TEERA) - K
SEZBRRBEERABLIGERE
BEZKFE - REREPRZEE
BELERMT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by equity plus net debt. Net debt is
calculated as the sum of bank loans, trade and bills
payables, and other payables and accruals (excluding
deferred income, deposits from customers, grants from
PRC government and provision of warranty) less cash
and cash equivalents. Equity represents equity
attributable to owners of the Company (excluding share
capital). The Group's policy is to keep the gearing ratio at
a reasonable level. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods are as follows:

REE
The Group

2012 F 2011 4

2012 2011

AREFTT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RITER Bank loans 144,599 261,590
JERE SRR M EMNZE Trade and bills payables 119,440 69,439
H At eI B R ERTE A Other payables and accruals 40,846 33,827

B Be RReEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents

(fF5E25) (note 25) (77,104) (70,487)
(VL Net debt 227,781 294,369
BRELS Total equity 441,866 440,571
T R BT Equity and net debt 669,647 734,940
BEBELE Gearing ratio 34% 40%
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34. £ E6t 34. BUSINESS COMBINATION

R20129F9 A258 » AEBEE 5] —1H
BDEEHE((ROBERBZ] @ Kt - &
£ @B 1514 R B A A R85 36,000,000 7T 2
BARE(EHRE]  WERKESHRE
MEEEE 2R FEeRERA A M E
B AR ([EEIRER ) 2 100% Bt AfE s o
M REEEE2012FE 12 AN BIEFEZ
KEIZEANEFHE(BEBRBREBRIDBRIEL
HIEEE ) DR AR 8,000,000 7T ([R5 F
B BlZeEe FTURARE - 2WBEEEE
2012411 A 12 B °

HhFHF((READ ARLE(ARRZIE
MITEE(FR201341 A 25 BBHT) AR
BEAE(RRRRFITFBREEBAR
2R FRINFBIRE | 287TE 5 (52013
F9H18 BEHE) FARE) o BRITE « Bt
N A (FR201349 B 18 R E) B A
RAITES  HEHERLTHERIFH
BB ZRE o

HERRBERMEG LT R E 2 EEZE
ENEFR(TERMNBEFE]D PREREF
B BHBAARKEXNZ NIANGFEZ
—EFR((EEMHE])

ZHME = (RENE — KERMNEFR)
X4.5

et REER2012F 2 F 2 RERZT B R
RABSEEFE - BERANEFEREAT

LANBR =S N ERARE ([ AR ERARE
HEE ) Em A T BEREERER N A B
ERPEREANSEEN2012F12A318 2
BEFE -

ANEBEN2013E12A31 B E FHARE
BEE28BAEINRE -

ARREERR  BBEBEH  AKEA
PRl B AR RBEREZ B -

On 25 September 2012, the Group entered into a share
purchase agreement (“Share Purchase Agreement”) with the
vendors, pursuant to which the Group has conditionally agreed
to purchase 100% of the equity interest of Shenzhen Eyang
Energy Company Limited and its subsidiary (the “Energy
Group”) which was engaged in the manufacture and sale of
batteries, for a consideration payable of RMB36 million
(“Consideration Payable”). The amount would be adjusted if the
audited consolidated net profit after tax and before
extraordinary items of the Energy Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 should be less than RMB8 million (“Guaranteed
Profit"). The acquisition was completed on 12 November 2012.

The vendors (“Original Vendors”) were Ms. Shuang,
non-executive director (who resigned on 25 January 2013) and
shareholder of the Company and Mr. Liao, executive director
(who resigned on 18 September 2013) and shareholder of the
Company, and Shenzhen Eyang Investment Group Limited (“SZ
Eyang Investment”). Mr. Chen, Mr. Liao and Mr. Xu (retired on
18 September 2013), executive directors of the Company and
Ms. Shuang were the shareholders of SZ Eyang Investment.

In the event that the audited consolidated net profit after tax
and before extraordinary items (“Actual Net profit”) is less than
the Guaranteed Profit, the vendors should pay to the Group an
amount (“Shortfall Compensation”) calculated in accordance
with the following formula:

Shortfall Compensation = (Guaranteed Profit — Audited Net
Profit) X 4.5

If the Energy Group should record a net loss in the audited
financial statements for the full year of 2012, the Actual Net
Profit shall be deemed to be zero.

The Consideration Payable after deduction of the Shortfall
Compensation (“Net Contingent Consideration Payable”) shall
not in any event be lower than the net assets of the Energy
Group as at 31 December 2012 in such audited financial
statements.

The consideration should be settled by the Group on 31
December 2013 or on such later date as both vendors and the
Group may agree.

The directors of the Company considered that the business

combination would allow the Group to expand into the battery
business, which had a wide application on renewable energy.

2012445 « Annual Report 2012 137



B RR M5
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE20124912 A31H |F4E For the year ended 31 December 2012

34. ¥E6t#) 34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

HREEREENREE2012F12 A31H IEF
[EEEEEFE  ARRREESRERE
BER2012F 12 A31 B 2 KB EEEE -

B U iE B EifE = 5 BRI HARE © sER & &
REBZE2012F12 A3 BIEFEAREE
U A A R #11,199,0007T K B8 A R #&
4,846,000 7T °

W IEEIHAE2012F1ATBEE - AEE
BE2012F12A31A L FE 2 WA RERE
152 Bl & A K 618,430,000 T & A K #&
91420007 - EER A ZE[HE | HF
RYEHREBRBIZFCEEFEHATL
ATE - RERPEZLEBRE—(E2EE -

As the Energy Group recorded a net loss for the year ended 31
December 2012, the adjusted consideration should equal to
the audited net asset of the Energy Group as at 31 December
2012.

During the period from the date of acquisition to the end of the
reporting period, the Energy Group contributed RMB11,199,000
to the revenue of the Group and a loss of RMB4,846,000 to the
loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2012, the revenue
and loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
would have been RMB618,430,000 and RMB9,142,000
respectively. The directors considered these ‘pro-forma’
numbers represent an approximate measurement of the
performance of the combined group on an annualized basis for
providing a reference point for comparison in future periods.
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34. ¥¥E6t#)

TEREENUBEERBEEREE ZKE
AR PR B E MR ERE 2 A FE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The following table summarises the consideration paid for
Energy Group, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed at the acquisition date.

ARETT
RMB'000

fRfE -
Ui B 2
SRR EEH 2 AFE

Consideration:
At acquisition date
Fair value of the Net Contingent Consideration
Payable 3,510

YR B B2 R] 8B B B 2 R g

The fair values of the identifiable assets acquired

BEMAFENT : and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date
were as follows:

BB K 5t Plant and equipment 2,799
e MIRTTH R Cash and bank balances 885
FEWE 2 BR 5K Trade receivables 36,834
TEIFRIE ~ e R E AR KGR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 19,258
FE Inventories 5,145
FES IR Tax payable (8,292)
FES B 2 BRFK Trade payables (36,133)
FEET B A R E Ath FE (I FIR Accruals and other payables (15,810)
Al AFEE Identifiable net assets 4,686
T (B & E R GIR Indemnification asset receivable 8,292
RIEREEE Deemed contribution from the shareholders (9,468)

3,510

RUEEEMELNBRESRA
BRBNRE RIREFEMER

Cash inflow arising on acquisition:
Cash and cash equivalents balance acquired 885

REER - IREBNREFRZATVEE
UTERSEZRE : ((ENREBBELMGEE
BRBEZ B S () R BRI SR P IR E
B 2012512 A3 B 2 At B EFME ©

At the date of acquisition, the fair value of the Net Contingent
Consideration Payable represented the present value of the
higher of (i) excess of the Consideration Payable over the
estimated Shortfall Compensation or (ii) the estimated net
assets of the Energy Group as at 31 December 2012 in the
audited financial statements.
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34. ¥E6t#) 34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

T =R EREERMERERTERERE
R2012F 12 A3 B 2 s EEFE - 9K
R Uk 255% - B35 Monte Carlo#8 ##)% ¥ 42 IR
SEEE2012F12A3NBLEFEERZTE
BIEIREE - RIERDBE % - SKARER
REFECRUR) HEEN TARES T
EARKICEETT °

RKEBHZ%  SIABRMNREFEZATF
EFATEREE(EIR)AERARE
3,510,000 TR EZE - HERARERERNE
Z2012F 12 AN B ILFEHBEBFE
ARR2012F 12 A3 BB AEEFHEAR
# 352,000 7T,

WEBERAR AR AR 410,000t B B EK
Bk - YR&GEEENaRTERRASF
BZTRER -

HAAEEWEREREBE SR N EARE
BRI R EE A TE  RIERREE
A B #9,468,000 7T BN R 1A % 18 B0 B B & B4
R ©

NFED Bl A AR 36,834,000 7T B A R#
10,092,000 7T 2 Y B [ Uk B 5 BR 3R I H fth g
WHRE HBEAGHNSEIRABARE
36,834,000 7T & A R # 10,092,000 7T © 7 Uk
BHE  WHEHEAKLDNENBEEREZ
REMBTAT -

BHEAHN ERERASEMERENEE
TRZEMNTIE - AEEEER —BRESE
EARES292000T HEFEAGEZA
FEES HBEFEEEE S BRARNME
HZBBNERUBRBE T EE(TEE) -
WEEEZERSTEN2012F12A318I
B EE o

The estimated Shortfall Compensation and the estimated net
assets of the Energy Group as at 31 December 2012 in the
audited financial statements were determined by applying
income approach and projected payoff using the Monte Carlo
simulation for the year ended 31 December 2012 of the Energy
Group. In accordance with the Share Purchase Agreement, the
range of outcomes (undiscounted) of the Net Continent
Consideration Payable should be RMB nil to RMB36 million.

Subsequent to the acquisition date, the fair value of the Net
Contingent Consideration Payable decreased from
RMB3,510,000 to nil, which used unobservable input (level 3),
as a result of the fact that Energy Group recorded a net loss for
the year ended 31 December 2012 and had net liabilities at 31
December 2012 was RMB352,000.

Acquisition related costs amounting to RMB410,000 have been
excluded from the consideration transferred and have been
recognised as administrative expenses in the current year in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

As the total consideration transferred by the Group for the
acquisition of Energy Group was lowered than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, deemed contribution from the
shareholders of RMB9,468,000 was recognised immediately in
contribution surplus in the reserve.

The acquired trade and other receivables with a fair value of
RMB36,834,000 and RMB10,092,000 respectively had gross
contractual amount of RMB36,834,000 and RMB10,092,000
respectively. The best estimate at the acquisition date of
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is nil.

The vendors have contractually agreed to indemnify the Group
for the underprovision of tax payable for the pre-acquisition
period. An indemnification asset of RMB8,292,000 equivalent to
the fair value of the indemnified liability, has been recognised
by the Group. As is the case with the indemnified liability there
has been no change in the amount recognised for the
indemnification asset as at 31 December 2012, as there has
been no change in the range of outcomes or assumptions used
to develop the estimate of the liability.
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34. ¥E6t#) 34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

2012612 3181 + ’K20135%F11 4158 -
ANEMERE T & e (TS
EHzl)  BUEERESEREREE 2
100% Az ([HEFIELD o o AR
BREEB ARSI RAUGR RSB &
EZMBHRERROLERZEZEE HHEAR
BE AEBERREACHEBIRDEER
W2 &K BEBERER 2 [T
GRE | v RMEFT REERER 2 [ REE
ZEHAEEERERE ] - AEBEREFE—D
BERAEBRERNDEEHREERNRE A
Nz ABRNREFEEAZEAARYE
9,200,000 7T ([ LA EARE]) - BIRZE
REERIGAEEREMTHERERR
2012512 A3 B2 B EFE -

AR H & 73 70 201356 12 A 24 B 217 HI AR
FERIAS FESE  BRAKEBR  MEE
EIED AR 2013412 B 27 H5ERK °

RN EEHE - RE S ERAEE SR
Z R E®EEAS AR 10,400,000t @ &
A R # 9,200,000 7T ([ #8518 1) 3 A R
EHERAERERE  MBETREARKE
1,200,0007T * ZHA R E F R 2013F 12 A 31
Hek 2% AR ST - g2lR&E B 2 742013
F12/827 HER L E -

RRARESRA  WELREE 2 KRR
NREDBDEE2012F12A3MBILEEEZ
RALEE MBBEREE ZREREL
2012F9AXBEENRMNBERZAE
i WREBABMEREEREZIRNELS
G A FEMEE -

Subsequent to 31 December 2012, on 15 November 2013, the
Group entered into a share disposal agreement (“Share
Disposal Agreement”) with the Original Vendors under which it
was agreed that the Original Vendors should repurchase 100%
of the equity interest of the Energy Group (“Disposal”). In
addition, since the audited financial statements of the Energy
Group prepared in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in Hong Kong have not yet been finalized
as at signing date of the Share Disposal Agreement, the Group
and the Original Vendors agreed to amend the terms of the
Share Purchase Agreement such that references to “audited
consolidated accounts” of the Energy Group were amended
to"unaudited consolidated management accounts” of the
Energy Group. The Group and the Original Vendors further
confirmed that the amount of Net Contingent Consideration
Payable by the Group to the original vendors under the Share
Purchase Agreement should be adjusted to RMB9,200,000
(“Adjusted Consideration Payable”) being the amount of the
net assets of the Energy Group at 31 December 2012 as
recorded in such unaudited consolidated management
accounts.

The Share Disposal Agreement was approved, confirmed and
ratified by an extraordinary general meeting held on 24
December 2013 and the Disposal was completed on 27
December 2013.

Pursuant to the Share Disposal Agreement, the total
consideration payable by the Original Vendors to the Group
was RMB10,400,000 in which RMB9,200,000 (“Set-off
Consideration”) was set off against the Adjusted Consideration
Payable and the remaining consideration of RMB1,200,000
shall be satisfied by the Original Vendors in cash on 31
December 2013 or later. The disposal of Energy Group was
completed on 27 December 2013.

The directors of the Company considered that the Adjusted
Consideration Payable for the acquisition of the Energy Group
was a non-adjusting event after the year ended 31 December
2012 and the consideration for the acquisition of Energy Group
should be based on the Share Purchase Agreement signed on
25 September 2012 and should be valued at fair value in
accordance with HKFRS 3 Business Combinations.
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35. &I 35. COMMITMENTS
(a) REHLOEAE (a) Operating lease commitments

(i) EAHHBAA (i) As lessor

KEH The Group

AEBERBEEEOLTHELR
BEWE (ME17) - Kl 280
FHH1FE6F TS -

R2012F12 A31H @ KEER
BHEBPT AT EMEIEZ
TR B L2 F4) - BREUR K

The Group leases its investment properties (note
17) under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to six
years.

At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as

REHS@ENOT follows:
20125 2011 48
2012 2011
ARBTT ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB’000
1ER Within one year 4,470 4,724
F2E5F (BEFHRE249)  Inthe second to fifth years, inclusive 2,903 2,757
7,373 7,475
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35. &iEE) 35.

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a) BREHLOREE) (a) Operating lease commitments (continued)
(i) MEREBEA (i) As lessee
KEH The Group
AREERBEEMAOLTHEAS The Group leases certain of its factories and office
THERRFRERYZE - EHE2 premises under operating lease arrangements.
HAFER2F o Leases for properties are negotiated for terms of
two years.
MR2012F12A318 @ XEEH IR At 31 December 2012, the Group had total future
R T 51 BR RS BN 2R 2 A AT R e A minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
B AEMNARKER S operating leases falling due as follows:
BT ¢
2012 F 20114
2012 2011
AR® T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1R Within one year 273 340
FEoE In the second year - 305
273 645
(b) BEAFEIE (b) Capital commitments

rER
The Group
2012 & 20114
2011
AREFIT
RMB'000

2012

AR®T T
RMB’000

BRI AVBARBAE - Contracted, but not provided for:
¥ Buildings - 7,710
= N2 Plant and machinery 115 17,820
115 25,530
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36. BEL R Z Rtk

AEERFRNEBET ZEAR S MNEE
HIREAREE )T 2 HEERI0 T

(a)

REMZRS

BES B
Name of parties

R=

SMABERERAA]
(MRE=Se@ ) ()

Dongguan Guangtong Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (“DG Guangtong”) (i)

REmEBEEARAR

(RZ=12E) (i)

Dongguan Deyang Industrial
Co., Ltd. ("DG Deyang”) (ii)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

The Group had the following material transactions with related
parties during the year and balances with related parties at the
end of the reporting period:

(@) Recurring transactions

REME
Nature of transactions

B Rt E] 2 S HA (v) (Vi) 57 57
Rental income received
from DG Guangtong (iv) (vi)

B R @5 E] 2 A (v) (Vi) 36 36
Rental income received
from DG Deyang (iv) (vii)

IR (i) MARYIEBEHE MLCCW) 4,438 2,119
SZ Eycom (jii) Sale of MLCC to SZ Eycom (v)
BRYIEBUE] 2 F U (iv) (viil) 1,993 867
Rental income received
from Sz Eycom (iv) (viii)

FfiaE - Notes:

() REABZBRRER/ERDANITESRR () The shareholders of DG Guangtong are the brothers and
S A SR iA Ik o sisters of Mr. Chen, an executive director of the Company.

iy HEBEHBZBREAARTZERRER @iy  The shareholders of DG Deyang are the brothers of Ms.
BRLt2zREH - Luo Zhanli, a shareholder of the Company.

(i) FIEBZEERRABERRBESR (i) The ultimate shareholders of SZ Eycom are Mr. Chen, Ms.
S BRTRBEE - Shuang and Mr. Liao, directors of the Company.

(v) AEEEBEEFZ2ENHREER (iv)  The tenancy agreements entered into between the Group
MR E ZIERETSL © and the related parties are based on mutually agreed

terms.

V) HERSHIRMEEETET (v)  The transactions were conducted in accordance with

normal commercial terms.

Vi R2012%F12A318 - % 227,000 .

v 7£(201 f'; 5 /\Eﬁﬁ%‘22}7\§)§—lﬁ) SN (viy At 31 December 2012, RMB227,000 (2011: RMB227,000)
41 5 3R 0 R ( iﬁﬁ%ﬁ(a)(i)) - was included in the operating lease commitments as set
SRS : out in note 35 (@)(i).

(vi)  BR2012F 124318 - AK#72,000 (vi) At 31 December 2012, RMB72,000 (2011: RMB108,000)
7L (20114 : AK#108,0007T) &t A was included in operating lease commitments as set out
AR KA (BB EE35()3)) © in note 35 (a)(i)

(vii) P2012F12 8318 » AR# 4,257,000 (vii) At 31 December 2012, RMB4,257,000 (2011:

JC(20114F + A R #1,069,0007T ) 51
ALE TR 4 EME (R KIEE35()3)) °

RMB1,069,000) was included in operating lease
commitments as set out in note 35 (a)(i).
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36. BEAR G RiEER )

(b) FEERS
I WERZ RIS B

AELEH
Name of parties

RYIEB
SZ Eycom

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(b) Non-recurring transactions

REMHEE

Nature of transactions

B RYMEBUE 2 BRI E ()
Service fee received
from SZ Eycom (i)

Service fee received

2012 &
2012

20114
2011
AREFIT
RMB'000

AR®T T
RMB’000

95 39

. WEEKHEBLE

HZE2012F12A31H L FE -
AEBRZRIFHEE BrL
MEEE (B AARRRRER) K
BRoREE 2 23 - FEH
HMIEE34 °

n. SiiHe

AELEH
Name of parties

RYIE B
SZ Eycom

REMHEE

Nature of transactions

AR Y| {558 $5 5 2t (i)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group acquired the entire equity interest in the
Energy Group from SZ Eyang Investment, Ms.
Shuang and Mr. Liao, related parties of the
Company. The details were set out in note 34.

Sale of battery

2012 &
2012
AR®T T
RMB’000

2011 4F
2011
AREFIT
RMB'000

51 =

Sale of battery to SZ Eycom (i)

IV. BEBBHFH

BELER
Name of parties

RIME R
SZ Eycom

Iv.

REMHE

Nature of transactions

BARYIEBEEBEE FH ()

Purchase of mobile phone

2012 &
2012

20114F
2011
AREFIT
RMB’000

AR®T T
RMB’000

198 =

Purchase of mobile phone

from SZ Eycom (ii)
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36. BEAR G RiEER ) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(b) FEEXRZ @) (b) Non-recurring transactions (continued)

MEE Notes:

(i) NEBESRIEBI LR EER (i) The Group and SZ Eycom have entered into a logistics
= B RYIERERAE R A cooperation agreement under which SZ Eycom will pay to
BEXSH2REE (R FYERE the Group for each transaction a service fee which will be
TRASEEH 2 EWEREZ0.3% calculated at 0.3% of the value of the goods which are
FTHE) - shipped by the Group as instructed by SZ Eycom.

(il ZERGE AT (i)  The transactions were conducted in accordance with

normal commercial terms.
(c) BELHE&H (c) Balances with related parties
AEH The Group
BEALESE
Maximum amount outstanding
2012 201 2012 20114
2012 2011 2012 2011
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
YRR Due from
e DG Guangtong 4,437 2,648 4,437 2,765
FED DG Deyang 129 824 829 837
FIER SZ Eycom 1,022 3,267 3,267 3267
EBERNEERAR Hong Kong Eycom Technology
GaeiEvE) Co., Limited ("HK Eycom”) (i) 4,986 - 4,986 -
TRt A EREBRE Anhui Century Eycom Digtal
BRAR([ZRIERD) ) Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Anhui Eycom”) (i 295 - 295 -

10,869 6,739
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36. BERR G Rk #)

(c) BELEH)

REBREDTF

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(c) Balances with related parties (continued)

The Group and the Company

BEAGEESH
Maximum amount outstanding
2012% 01E
2012 2011
ARBT R ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000

20125 014

2012 201

ARBTR
RMB'000

AEBTR
RVB'000

T 50E Dug to

EY Ocean Management EY Ocean Management Limited

Limited (TEY Ocean ) (i) ("EY Ocean”) (iil 35 & 35 3b
Legend New-Tech Legend New-Tech Investment

Investment Limited Limited (“Legend New-Tech") (iii

(TLegend New-Tech ) (i) 4 a* 4 4
Ever-win Management Ever-win Management Limited

Limited ([ Ever-win ) (i) ("Ever-win") (i 1 (& 1 1
ShengXue Management ShengXue Management Limited

Limited ([ShengXue ) (i) ("ShengXue") (iv) - (& 1 1

40 41*

& SR ETA2011F 12 A31 B 2 HA
FERSFOE -

() BERBZERARATRRERE
REZRE -

(i) LREEBZEREBERAARAREER
T BRERBRE -

(i) EY Ocean - Legend New-Tech &
Ever-win#g AR R RIREE o

(iv)  shengXue AZANARIRLE °

(v) EHZE2012FK%2011F 12 A31HIEF
B BESERYARERR  RER
RERIFEE o

V) ZEEHBZEEEEEQNTERS -

*

Notes:

(Vi)

The amounts were included in other payables during as at
31 December 2011.

The shareholder of HK Eycom is the brother of Ms. Luo
Zhanli, a shareholder of the Company.

The ultimate shareholders of Anhui Eycom are Mr. Chen,
Ms. Shuang and Mr. Liao, directors of the Company.

EY Ocean, Legend New-Tech and Ever-win are the
shareholders of the Company.

ShengXue was the shareholder of the Company.
For the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011, the
balances with related parties are unsecured, interest-free

and repayable on demand.

The carrying amounts of these balances approximate
their fair values.
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36. BELRZ REER#) 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

(d) FEEEEABZEHH

AEBTBERE AL M (BEH
HNFREXNTFAAREEL 25)
mF :

BALANCES (continued)

(d) Key management personnel
remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 11 is as follows:

20125 2011 4

2012 2011

AR%T T ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR A AR E UARR ) AR 2t 3k Equity-settled share-based payment - 25
HHEERET Short-term employee benefits 2,251 2,631
1B EBERL B 12 F Post-employment benefits 62 110
2,313 2,766

37. BERERE 2B HREE

AEBEZETEZSRTAPTETARIN B
AHRIRITER  RERRITEBRREERR
TR ELSMTAZTIEANTIRALE
BrREREES AKERAZHREERL
HLBELZEMMEMEENRAE - PIANE
WE IR ENE SRR -

AEEEMTASRZEEZRRAMEE
B2 - SMNERER - EERBR MRS E SRR o
SEEeERUMETERBARRIBEK 8§
RARRBA T o

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank loans, cash and
bank balances and pledged bank deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables and trade payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.
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37.

REREE BN RBEER &)

(a)

(b)

AT

REBREDTF

N20124F R201MFE12 8318 T A
SR TAZEREREEAFEZEN
GFEEARER -

FERR

REME

0]

(i)

EERRERRZH T BRTE
TERHEEMERAEE AR
MBERER - NEE D HRA
—HERREEREERFNR
ZETETRS AT R
EXNMBEERR -

FhIE U 5 AR SR I EL A R UK IR
KMEWBELTFAME - SR
BREERE  BEREEREREE
BE HEERZEEERR -
AEEEHHE[EBRBEBALZ
RN RAEREITEER A -
ZEHEE R HERABEN
R M ERED - XER
BEHAREEERERBERRE L
FEER AEELARE SR
BEERGBTER BRESE
KRB RE RAHREE 2251
ARZIHE -

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Fair values

(b)

The Group and the Company

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values at 31 December
2012 and 2011.

Credit risk

The Group

(i)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted
a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults.

In respect of trade and other receivables and
amounts due from related parties, in order to
minimise risk, the management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluation
of debtors’ financial position and condition is
performed on each and every major debtor
periodically. These evaluations focus on the
debtors’ past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the debtor as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the debtor operates. The Group does not
require collateral in respect of its financial assets.
Trade receivables are usually due within 2 to 5
months from the date of billing.
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REREE BN RBEER &)

(b) EEERR )

FEE(E)

(i) BEKRZEZEAME - AEEM
Yz EERREE i‘%%ﬂf
MERNSBEE TP EEME
TEZEDRRTEERERRE
FE -RNBEPR - ARAKE

ZRARFESESRARE ZE
HEWRE ZER - EUREIER K
BREKREES B E13%
(20114 : 1%) K 23% (20114 :
11%) @ At AN EEEEH —EHE
hEERR  KEEAEBETFS
222 FERREERERZ
FEEKFE BEERE  ZEPE
ERB TS ANEEATENE
BEEHRR

(v) BRRZHEHTREREEFRE

BRTBREEETIRET
KRBES EERRER -
AAT

EER E KB AR RIAEEAN

EERR  FEERZSEWB AR ZEH
i‘%ﬁéﬁ*’*fﬁ BEHBERIFEE - AR
65% (2011 £ : B%%%%WEQE

RIEH KB — %Mﬂ%/&ﬁﬂ PSS 7NN
7%@E$E% o

RRIRITERRBITER D FRARE
BEARFBEREEFNRZRIT
FH Lt AERE (= & R IR AR SRR

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The Group (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

In respect of trade receivables, the Group’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The
default risk of the industry in which customers
operate also has an influence on credit risk. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 13% (2011: 1%) and
23% (2011: 11%) of the trade receivables, amounts
due from related parties and bills receivables was
due from the Group'’s largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively. Taking into account
the creditworthiness of the Group’s customers, the
credit risk measures and the historical levels of the
bad debts, the directors consider that such
concentration of credit risk would not result in
significant credit default exposure to the Group.

In respect of the credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Company

The directors consider that there is no significant credit
risk on receivables from subsidiaries given their strong
financial background and good credibility. The Company
has concentration of credit risk as 65% (2011: 73%) on
the amounts due from subsidiaries is due from one
subsidiary.

The credit risk for bank deposits and bank balances
exposure is considered minimal as such amounts are
placed in banks in Hong Kong with good reputation and
credit ratings.

150 FE#ER(%£E)ER2T o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED



B SR R B 5 1
Notes to the Financial Statements

HZE20124E12 4318 |4 E For the year ended 31 December 2012

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

37. BEREE 2 BHNRBER #)

(c) F=mEp&
xEH

AEBEHOTHHEEHEAREE
SR BHAFHHE L BERH R
Wi Bl 2 2 S M AT S o

AEEZRSRENRERERRE
BMERITERER (ZEERFER
BIEE29) - AR ZFF B RMEFR -
SEBNRFE TR D ERBEEF
KBl AEBECATIMEIEHA
#) - AR BN R BB TS| B2 R

29) ° AT - B E 201212 A31 8 Ik
FE - FAMNEEEHANEEH A
BETU AN EEERER
RFXTE WEERNFEHE—F
SR R E R o

REBZ RITERERR ) R K8 5

(c)

Interest rate risk
The Group

The Group exposed to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's debt
obligations with variable interest rates and time deposits
with fixed interest rates which are short term.

The Group's exposure to cash flow interest rate risk in
relates primarily to variable-rate bank borrowings (see
note 29 for details of these borrowings). In relation to
these variable-rate borrowings, the Group aims at
keeping certain proportion of its borrowings at fixed
rates. In order to achieve this result, the Group had
entered into interest rate swap contracts to hedge
against its exposure to potential variability of cash flows
arising from changes in variable interest rates (see note
29 for details). However, during the year ended 31
December 2012, all the interest rate swap contracts
expired and no new swap contract was taken up. The
management continuously monitors interest rate
fluctuation and will consider further hedging interest rate
risk should the need arise.

The effective interest rates and terms of repayment of

BE R B ISR 5E 29 © the bank loans of the Group are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.
(i) F=EBER (i) Interest rate profile

TRHRATEEBRRBEHAR
ZHMEIGR -

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s borrowings at the end of the
reporting period:

N |
The Group

20126

2012
BRAI=
Effective
interest rate
%

AR®TR
RMB'000

2011 4

2011
ERA=
Effective
interest rate
%

ARBTT
RMB'000

FRMER Variable rate
borrowings:
RITER Bank loans 1.11-7.22 144,599 3.36 -6.72 261,590
ERSE Total borrowings 144,599 261,590
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REREE BN RBEER &)

(c) AT
(i) SUREDH

LA TSR E D TR IR R ¥R &5 HA
Xit%ﬁfi@%ﬂlﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ
EE EBERMNE HED
tﬁﬁﬁj‘“iﬁiﬁﬂﬂez%aﬁ{ﬁm
Fiiﬁiﬁﬂiﬁaﬁ %0 iR
201N F 2 E— HETT o

R20129F12 8318 @ 4 Fl = &
B2 F+,NB&E 100 Iﬁﬂﬁ %EF)’T
BHMEERETE 215

AT AEE 2 B4 E1E & B Tﬁﬁ
FagEm mLHARE
1,133,0007C (20114 : EE 2 7
1835 F R B B FIE R A 4
AR #2002,0007T) © HiEE5H
MG AEE TS R K&
Ft/ T E& ks -

AT

EZRB NEARBARBZEE
WARERX -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for non-derivative financial instruments at the end
of the reporting period. For variable-rate
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the
borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2011.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax and
retained profits by approximately RMB1,133,000
(2011: increase/decrease the group’s profit after
tax and retained profits by approximately
RMB2,002,000). Other components of consolidated
equity would not change in response to the general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The Company

The directors consider that the interest rate risk is

insignificant for the Company.
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37. UKRREE 2B NRBE#) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) E¥E (d) Currency risk

EN

AEEEXZEKER - ZERHE
LHERERNERBIEEBAIINE
BETHE  BEIRTENRSIE -
AEEERIBENHES REHER
XS S0 BUSMNE Rl B 2 5K A
BERERZEBER - AKEHIH
BWARRXERRTER - XA AR
EEXCERNEE  {EMm&EMERK
BHEB o HE -

TRAVIAEBR HRERRAZD
E¥RR  ZFEEEARITRLAR
BERONEEEAINEETEND
EREEXBEMEL -RE2HMEN
mE - RBREAAREIIR  LAF

The Group

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales, purchases or bank loans by
operating group entities in currencies other than the
entities’ functional currencies. The Group tends to accept
foreign currency exchange risk avoidance or allocation
terms when arriving at purchase and sale contracts to
minimise its transactional currency exposures. The Group
takes rolling forecast on the foreign currency revenue
and expenses, and matches the currency and the
amounts incurred, so as to alleviate the impact on
business due to exchange rate fluctuations.

The following table details the group’s exposure at the
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of

HRERBNEAE R E - the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using the

spot rate at the year end date.

MR UARBAER)
Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in RMB)
s M
2012 201

EJ B A eI BT =

United States  Hong Kong Japanese  United States Hong Kong Japanese
Dollars Dollars Yen Dollars Dollars Yen
ARETR  AR¥Tn ARBTr ARBTT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

BN SRR EMERTE  Trade and other receivables 31,116 19,846 - 16,751 16,668 780
BHES WL RETES  Pledged deposits and cash and
bank balances 16,933 8,933 - 1,804 4124 -
ERZSRTREMENTE  Trade and other payables (57,907) (8,405) (3,894) (19,789) (1,540) (5,786)
RITER Bank loans (114,478) - - (71,403) - (107)
DRABERAGBMELSSN  Netexposure arising from
FRER recognised assets and liabilities (124,336) 20,374 (3,894) (72,631) 19,252 (5,113
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37. EREE 2B MWRBEK®) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d) E¥RE) (d) currency risk (continued)
REE(E) The Group (continued)

TRINTEMBEMARTRFTIET
RBEHRET - BLRBRZEAZ
ERSEMAIEEBHARE R
R M T A8 A 2 BURE -

= United States dollars
BT Hong Kong dollars

= Japanese Yen
PN

7 2N BB 3 4 51 2 S M TR o
B EEERENERRINEE
B E B R EASMEAR o AR R
BEREEMEAREARE AR
Ay EBEEEREATE -

154 FS#ERKR(£E)ER2T o EYANG HOLDINGS (GROUP) CO., LIMITED

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the United States dollar, Hong Kong dollar and
Japanese yen exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax.

2012 & 2011 4
2012 2011
BRETEBLAT FR PSR
Y2 A i )
#hn, #hn
ORi2) ORA)
k=840~ Increase/ Ltighn, Increase/
(#4) (decrease) Cm4)  (decrease)
Increase/ in profit Increase/ in profit
(decrease) before (decrease) before
in rate income tax inrate  income tax
AR¥ T ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
5 (6,217) 5 (3,632)
(5) 6,217 (5) 3,632
5 1,019 5 963
(5) (1,019) (5) (963)
5 (195) 5 (256)
(5) 195 (5) 256
The Company

The Company currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the directors monitor its foreign
exchange exposures and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposures should the need arises. The
Company does not expect any significant currency risk
which might materially affect the Company’s result of
operations.
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37. BEREE 2 BHNRBER #)

(e)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

HREE SRR (e) Liquidity risk

AEERARBERBRABE S5
S THAEREESRERER - HWTA
ERESBRTANEREE (WEKE
SR 2B A R EZRER

=
E-°

REBRARFPIZBRREFTRER
RN FEY  KBEBRITEFA
BNELEESHE -

REEHK AEEREARAZ S5
B B IRIRET R BB A 2 B R
W :

T EE

RITER Bank loans

ERE SRR Trade and bills payables
FADES:

HidEMNZIERESER  Other payables and accruals

JE S RaE A Due to related parties

The Group and the Company monitors its risk to a
shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its financial
instruments and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s and the Company’s policy is to maintain
sufficient cash and cash equivalents and have available
funding through bank loans to meet its working capital
requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as
follows:

The Group

20125
2012
EHRBBERERS
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
M12A31H
RERK 3 3 oy ZEREE

Carrying

Less than amount at

Oon demand 1 year Total 31 December
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

- 145,200 145,200 144,599
- 119,440 119,440 119,440
- 28,980 28,980 28,980
40 - 40 40

40 293,620 293,660 293,059
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37. EREE 2B MWRBEK#) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) RBEZRM &)

(e) Liquidity risk (continued)

REE (&) The Group (continued)
2011 4F
2011
BHRUFRER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
®12A31H8
REKEF DR E st ZERHEE
Carrying
Less than amount at
On demand 1year Total 31 December
ARET T ARETT ARET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RITER Bank loans = 263,444 263,444 261,590
ERE SRR Trade and bills payables
ANES = 69,439 69,439 69,439
Hi e B R ETER  Other payables and accruals - 31,746 31,746 31,746
= 364,629 364,629 362,775
AT The Company
20125
2012
BNARBERBE SR
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
®12A31H
RERE D1 E st ZEREE
Carrying
Less than amount at
On demand 1year Total 31 December
ARET T ARETR AR¥TR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
HidEMZEREEE  Other payables and accruals - 2,798 2,798 2,798
FERHIB AR FIE Due to subsidiaries 15,298 - 15,298 15,298
[EfTRAE R A Due to related parties 40 - 40 40
15,338 2,798 18,136 18,136
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37. BEEREE 2 HWREBER#) 37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) "BESEZ) (e) Liquidity risk (continued)
AT (&) The Company (continued)
2011 4F
2011
BHRUFRER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
®12A31H8
REKEF DR E FEEy ZERHEE
Carrying
Less than amount at
On demand 1year Total 31 December
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HidEMNZERESER  Other payables and accruals - 1,241 1,241 1,241
AN ENGT R Due to subsidiaries 23,275 - 23,275 23,275
23,275 1,241 24,516 24,516

3B.EERBRARERAT RE#AE 38. IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING

9] COMPANY AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

MR2012F12A318  EFRA 5 NEEBEE At 31 December 2012, the directors consider the ultimate
Bt B o fift BX 32 Z EY SHINE Management parent company to be EY SHINE Management Limited (“EY
Limited (TEY Shinel) A&& AR @ MmHE Shine") which is incorporated in British Virgin Islands, and the
B E & # 5 i fit &K L ZEY Ocean immediate parent company to be EY Ocean Management
Management Limited ([EY Oceanl) & & # Limited (“EY Ocean”), which is incorporated in the British Virgin
B2 7] ° EY Shine X EY Ocean)8 B iREL/AF Islands. EY Shine and EY Ocean did not produce financial
BTG ERER o AR R HRAXERR T AREY Shine © statements available for public use. The ultimate controlling

party of the Company is EY Shine.

39. REHEAREAR 2EEH 39. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@) M2013F6A28H @ BB EEK(E (@)  0On 28 June 2013, the resolution for the voluntary winding-
B TRER) BB R ZRETE up of HK Weichang, which operated the Mobile Phone
WiE o FREFRE o SEEEHAMEE Business, was passed and the winding-up process
2(b)(iiy ° commenced. The details are set out in note 2(b)(ii).

(D) M2013F 1M A15H » REFHEESH (b)  On 15 November 2013, the Group entered into the share
IR EE R REAREREE disposal agreement with the original vendors and the
REREB 2 2 2P E - SFIFE M original vendors agreed to repurchase 100% of the equity
34 interest of the Energy Group. The details are set out in

note 34.
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40. L BB F

41.

BTERNFEZ2HRATHE—B - AKF2012
FHRREBRBRTLRESH S THUBREF
ETHELEHIER -

BZE2012F12A31HLFES
MBS RERBZABET A ~ FE]
B RBEZEESE

HEUWSEUHRRZ2BMELY  BESHE
EZBGEEMUNMERTA « FaI £ KR
B EREBRA Rl RREREE
202F12ANBILEFEHRER  BARR
I BTSSRI R B o

e RIS 198 (BFTAN)
IAS1T Amendments

BRSBTS 5 22 RIS 1 5% (IBRTAX)
IFRS 1 Amendments
BB T5 5 2RI 7 5% (IBRTA)

BT

N

40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

41.

Y o =
=]

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted and
reclassified to conform to current year’'s presentation and to
provide comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed in
2012.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the ISAB
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2012 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements.

TERIZE 1 B REZZS 65 — A2 EKmEE 2 £23)
Amendments to IAST Presentation of Financial Statements

— Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income’
BITE
Government Loans?
wE—RigeHEERTFHER?

7

IFRS 7 Amendments Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Il % B 75 e 5 22 R 28 9 55% TETA

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

Il % B 75 e 5 2 R 28 10 5% e BHR?

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?
IR B 7 S 5 2RI 28 11 5% B E L

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

Il % B 75 e 5 AR R 28 12 5% BB M E R

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?
Il R B 75 e 5 2 R 28 13 5% N TEEE?

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

BRSBTS 5 2RI EE 95 (IBFT AR ) K&
BIPR B RS 5 22 R EE 7 5% (18R] A)

IFRS 9 Amendments and IFRS 7
Amendments

BIPR B RS 2ERIZE 1055 £ 115 &%
21258 (fE5F] 24%)

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 Amendments

BRI TSRS ERIZE 1057 « 51258 &%

BIFR &5 RIS 27 5% (RIERT) ZIERT A

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (Revised)
Amendments

Il R B 75 e S5 R R 28 14 5%

IFRS 14

B BT 75 8 2 2E RN 3 9 5% 4 /1L 4 3% B B R A B 1 1 28 7
Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosure’
BEES?

Transition Guidance?
KA ERES

Investment Entities®

EEFERA
Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
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HZ2012F12A31HLEEE 41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

BB s R E M ZAERT A ~ 5]
EARZEZBESZE 5

Ra ot RIS 195 (BRI A)
IAS 19 Amendments

BB =T 4ERI 5 27 9% (&8 1E3ET])
IAS 27 (Revised)

Re e AR5 28 5% (KE1E3F])
IAS 28 (Revised)

Re e AR 325k (155 A)

IAS 32 Amendments

BB =T 2R 5 36 9% (185]4)

IAS 36 Amendments

R AR 39 5% (IB5TA)

IAS 39 Amendments

BRI REREZESREF 20%
IFRIC 20

BRI REREZESREF21%
IFRIC 21

FERETE B

Annual Improvements Projects
BUBR B T i 22 Bl 2B RT AR
Amendments to IFRSS

BUBR B T i 22 Bl 2B RT AR
Amendments to IFRSS

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 (continued)

FEEFIFE] - 1B S H#H°

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contribution*
B

Separate Financial Statements?

REERNAIRE &R A ZIRE?

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures?
RigeHEERTFERE?

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities®

FE$ B A EE A o] £ BE 1R 75

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets®
PTHETAFE RENETHEZEE?

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting®
BRIBEEE R FIFRK AR

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine?
BES

Levies®

BBR B 755 35 2 2 Rl 2 4F JZ 2AEE (2009-2011 2 Hf ) 2

Annual Improvements to IFRSS 2009-2011 Cycle?

BBR A1 755 35 2 2E Rl 2 F JZ2AEE (2010-2012 8 H) °

Annual Improvements to IFRSS 2010-2012 Cycle®

BBR A1 75 75 25 2E Rl 2 F JZ 2AEE (2011-2013 8 5 )

Annual Improvements to IFRSS 2011-2013 Cycle*
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HZ2012512A31BLEER
BB R E M ZAERTA ~ 15T
EARZEZBEZE #)

R2012%7 A1 A2 RRAR c FRMEE
3

R20135 1 A1 Az & Rm 2 FEHRE
53

R201451 A1 Az R Rm 2 FEMRE
44

R201457 A1 A2 RRAR 2 FRMEE
3

R2014 57 A1 Az & Rn 2 FESRE
B BRERBISN

R2016 51 A1 AR ZRRAKR 2 BN FER
IR B 765 it o A B B A R AR AR 2K
AHEA — RHMEERA RN EERE
M MELRE R 2 REMEREETE

AREE B I FHA L FHR] R B R 2 BIRR B 7%
BEEANRTRAME 2 BRZE - 25
RUEREERE - RAULFHR] REETZ
BRI 5 E ER N A R e AR 2 &
EENVWBERABEATE -

41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012 (continued)

1

2

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014
with limited exceptions

Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016

Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be
determined when the outstanding phases of IFRS 9 are finalized

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised IFRSS is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group's results of operations and financial position.
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